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Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the Registration
Statement is declared effective.

If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to
Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest
reinvestment plans, check the following box. ☐

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act,
please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement under the earlier effective registration
statement for the same offering. ☐

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same
offering. ☐

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

2



If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following
box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same
offering. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ☐ Accelerated
Filer ☐ 

Non-accelerated filer ☐ (Do not check if smaller reporting company)
Smaller
Reporting
Company

☒

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of each class of securities to be registered
Amount to
be
registered

Proposed
maximum
offering
price per
unit

Proposed
maximum
aggregate
offering
price

Amount of
registration
fee

Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share,
underlying subscription rights 2,224,020 $ 2.75 $ 6,116,055 (2) $ 710.69 (4)

Non-transferable Subscription Rights to purchase
Common Stock — — — — (3)

Total $ 710.69 (4)

(1)

This registration statement relates to: (a) non-transferable subscription rights to purchase common stock of the
Registrant, which subscription rights are to be distributed to holders of the Registrant's common stock; and (b) the
shares of common stock deliverable upon the exercise of the non-transferable subscription rights pursuant to the
rights offering.

(2)Represents the gross proceeds from the assumed exercise of all non-transferable subscription rights to bedistributed. 

(3)
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Pursuant to Rule 457(g) under the Securities Act of 1933, no separate registration fee is required for the rights
because the rights are being registered in the same registration statement as the common stock of the Registrant
underlying the rights.

(4)$646.08 of the registration fee was previously paid.

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay
its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this
registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with section 8(a) of the Securities Act of
1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Security and Exchange
Commission, acting pursuant to said section 8(a), may determine.
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The information in this preliminary prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities
until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This preliminary
prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state or
jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED MAY 12, 2015

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS

 GYRODYNE COMPANY OF AMERICA, INC.

2,224,020 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE
OF SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS AT $2.75 PER SHARE

We are distributing, at no charge to our shareholders, non-transferable subscription rights to purchase an aggregate
of 2,224,020 shares of common stock at a price of $2.75 per whole share. We refer to this offering as the “rights
offering.” 

We are offering to each of our shareholders three subscription rights for every two full common shares owned by each
shareholder as of the close of business on May 6, 2015, the record date, provided that no fractional shares will be
issued in the rights offering and exercises therefore will be rounded to the nearest whole number, with halves rounded
down. Additionally, shareholders may over-subscribe for additional shares of common stock to the extent that offered
subscription rights are not exercised by other shareholders, although we cannot assure you that we will fill any
over-subscriptions. If all rights are exercised and all of the shares issuable upon exercise of the rights are sold in this
offering, the total purchase price of the shares offered in the rights offering would be approximately $6,166,055.

We have not entered into any standby purchase agreement or other similar arrangement in relation to this rights
offering. This offering is being conducted on a best-efforts basis and there is no minimum number of shares that we
must sell or amount of proceeds that we must receive in order for us to close the offering.
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All members of our board of directors (who are also shareholders) have advised us they intend to exercise their basic
subscription privilege under rights received and that they also intend to exercise their over-subscription privilege with
respect to additional shares that become available for purchase. If they do so, their ownership percentage may increase
significantly if shareholders do not exercise basic subscription privileges with respect to a significant number of
shares. Their expressed intention, however, does not constitute a binding obligation on their part.

To the extent you properly exercise your over-subscription privilege for a number of shares of common stock that
exceeds the number of the unsubscribed shares available to you, the subscription agent will return to you any excess
subscription payments, without interest or penalty, as soon as practicable following the expiration of the rights
offering.

We have engaged Computershare Trust Company, N.A. to serve as the subscription agent for the rights offering. The
subscription agent will hold the funds we receive from subscribers in a segregated account until we complete or cancel
the rights offering.

The subscription rights will expire if they are not exercised by 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on June [ ● ], 2015, but
we may extend the rights offering for additional periods ending no later than July [ ● ], 2015. We may cancel the rights
offering for any reason at any time before it expires. If we cancel the rights offering, the subscription agent will return
all subscription payments received, without interest or penalty, as soon as practicable.
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You should carefully consider whether to exercise your subscription rights before the rights offering expires.
All exercises of subscription rights are irrevocable. The purchase of shares of common stock involves a high
degree of risk.

You should read “Risk Factors” beginning on page 18. Our board of directors is making no recommendation
regarding your exercise of the subscription rights.

The subscription rights are non-transferable. The shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of the
subscription rights will be listed for trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “GYRO.” The last
reported sales price of our common stock on May 11, 2015 was $3.17 per share.

We have not entered into any standby purchase agreement or other similar arrangement in relation to this rights
offering. The shares of common stock are being offered directly by us without the services of an underwriter or selling
agent.

Per
Share Total

Subscription Price $ 2.75 $ 6,116,055 (1)
Estimated Expenses $ 0.23 $ 510,050
Proceeds to Us $ 2.52 $ 5,606,000
(1)Assumes the rights offering is fully subscribed.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities regulator has approved or
disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is accurate or complete. Any representation to
the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is May 12, 2015.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to
provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should
not rely on it. We are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not
permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date on the
front cover of this prospectus regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or the time of any exercise of the
subscription rights. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since the
date of this prospectus.

In this prospectus, we rely on and refer to information and statistics regarding our industry. We obtained this market
data from independent publications or other publicly available information that we believe are reliable.

No action is being taken in any jurisdiction outside the United States to permit a public offering of our securities or
possession or distribution of this prospectus in that jurisdiction. Persons who come into possession of this prospectus
in jurisdictions outside the United States are required to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions as to
this offering and the distribution of this prospectus applicable to those jurisdictions.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, all references in this prospectus to the “Company,” “Gyrodyne,” “we,” “us” and “our”
refer to Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc. and our wholly owned subsidiaries, except that in the discussion of our
subscription rights and capital stock and related matters, these terms refer solely to Gyrodyne Company of America,
Inc. and not to its subsidiaries.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this prospectus are forward-looking statements about Gyrodyne within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Statements containing the words “believes,” “anticipates,”
“estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “seeks,” “will,” “may,” “should,” “would,” “projects,” “continues” and similar expressions or the
negative of these terms constitutes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. We intend such
forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and they are included in this prospectus for the purpose of
invoking these safe harbor provisions. Such statements are based on current expectations and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and changes in condition, significance, value and effect. In September 2013, our board of directors
approved a plan of liquidation intended to qualify as a tax liquidation, which included a plan of merger and other
related transactions. The risks, uncertainties and changes in condition, significance, value and effect that could cause
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Gyrodyne’s actual results to differ materially from anticipated results include risks and uncertainties relating to the
process of exploring strategic alternatives, risks associated with Gyrodyne’s ability to implement the tax liquidation,
plan of liquidation or the plan of merger, the risk that the proceeds from the sale of assets may not be sufficient to
satisfy our obligations to our current and future creditors, the risk of shareholder litigation relating to the tax
liquidation, the plan of liquidation or the plan of merger and other unforeseeable expenses related to the proposed
liquidation, the tax treatment of condemnation proceeds, the effect of economic and business conditions, risks inherent
in the real estate markets of Suffolk and Westchester Counties in New York, Fairfax County in Virginia and Palm
Beach County in Florida, the ability to obtain additional capital to develop the real estate that we manage and other
risks detailed from time to time in Gyrodyne’s SEC filings. Except as may be required under federal law, we undertake
no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes
available or other events occur.

i
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS RELATING TO THE RIGHTS OFFERING

The following are what we anticipate will be common questions about the rights offering. The answers are based on
selected information from this prospectus. The following questions and answers do not contain all of the information
that may be important to you and may not address all of the questions that you may have about the rights offering.
This prospectus contains more detailed descriptions of the terms and conditions of the rights offering and provides
additional information about us and our business, including potential risks related to the rights offering, our common
stock, and our business.

Exercising your subscription rights and investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. We urge you to
carefully read the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 18 of this prospectus, and all other information
included in this prospectus in its entirety before you decide whether to exercise your subscription rights.

What is a rights offering?

A rights offering is a distribution of subscription rights on a pro rata basis to all shareholders of a company. We are
distributing to holders of our issued and outstanding capital stock as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on May 6,
2015, the “record date,” at no charge, non-transferable subscription rights to purchase shares of our common stock. You
will receive three subscription rights (rounded to the nearest whole number, with halves rounded down) for every two
shares of our capital stock you own as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the record date. The subscription rights
will be evidenced by rights certificates. Each subscription right consists of a basic subscription privilege and an
over-subscription privilege.

What is the basic subscription privilege?

Shareholders will receive in the rights offering three subscription rights for each two shares held. Each whole
subscription right gives our shareholders the opportunity to purchase one share of our common stock for $2.75 per
share. We determined the ratio of subscription rights to distribute per our issued and outstanding shares (1,482,680) by
dividing the number of shares we determined to offer in the rights offering, 2,224,020, by the number of shares issued
and outstanding on the record date (2,224,020/1,482,680 =1.5).

What is the over-subscription privilege?
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We do not expect all of our shareholders to exercise all of their basic subscription privileges. The over-subscription
privilege provides shareholders that do exercise their entire basic subscription privileges the opportunity to purchase
the shares that are not purchased by other shareholders. Accordingly, if you fully exercise your basic subscription
privilege and other shareholders do not fully exercise their basic subscription privileges, then you may also exercise
an over-subscription privilege to purchase additional shares of common stock that remain unsubscribed at the
expiration of the rights offering, subject to the availability and pro rata allocation of such shares among persons
exercising this over-subscription privilege. To the extent that the number of the unsubscribed shares are not sufficient
to satisfy all of the properly exercised over-subscription privilege requests, then the available shares will be allocated
pro rata among those who properly exercise their over-subscription privileges. “Pro rata” means in proportion to the
number of shares of our common stock that you and the other shareholders have subscribed for under the
over-subscription privilege, so that the number of shares that would be allocated to you would equal the number of
shares you have subscribed for in your over-subscription request multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is
the number of available shares and the denominator of which is the aggregate number of over-subscription shares
requested by all shareholders.

In order to properly exercise your over-subscription privilege, you must deliver the subscription payment related to
your over-subscription privilege prior to the expiration of the rights offering. Because we will not know the total
number of unsubscribed shares prior to the expiration of the rights offering, if you wish to maximize the number of
shares you purchase pursuant to your over-subscription privilege, you will need to deliver payment in an amount equal
to the aggregate subscription price for the maximum number of shares of our common stock available to you,
assuming that no shareholder other than you has purchased any shares of our common stock pursuant to their basic
subscription privilege and over-subscription privilege. See “The Rights Offering—Over-Subscription Privilege.”

1

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

13



How many shares may I purchase if I exercise my subscription rights?

Each subscription right entitles you to purchase one whole share of our common stock for $2.75 per share. We will
not issue fractional subscription rights or shares of common stock in the rights offering, and holders will only be
entitled to purchase a whole number of shares of common stock. You may exercise any number of your subscription
rights (including the over-subscription privilege), or you may choose not to exercise any subscription rights. As
explained elsewhere in this prospectus, there is no limit on the number of offered shares that may be purchased
pursuant to your over-subscription privilege.

If you hold your shares in street name through a broker, bank, or other nominee who uses the services of the
Depository Trust Company, or “DTC,” then DTC will issue three subscription rights to your nominee for every two
shares of our common stock you own at the close of business on the record date. Each subscription right can then be
used to purchase one share of common stock for $2.75 per share pursuant to the basic subscription privilege. For more
information, see the question “What should I do if I want to participate in the rights offering, but my shares are held in
the name of my broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominees (commonly referred to as “street name”)? ” below.

Will fractional subscription rights or shares be issued in the rights offering?

No. We will not issue fractional subscription rights or subscription rights to purchase fractional shares of common
stock in the rights offering. In allocating subscription rights among our shareholders, each two shares of capital stock
held of record at the close of business on the record date will entitle the holder of such shares to receive three
subscription rights (rounded to the nearest whole number, with halves rounded down), and each subscription right
granted in the rights offering may only be exercised for a full share of our common stock.

Are we requiring a minimum aggregate subscription to complete and close the rights offering?

No. This offering is being conducted on a best-efforts basis and there is no minimum number of shares that we must
sell or amount of proceeds that we must receive in order for us to close the offering.

Are there backstop or standby purchasers?
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No. We have not entered into any standby purchase agreement or other similar arrangement in relation to this rights
offering.

Are there any limits on the number of shares I may purchase in this rights offering?

Yes. The total number of offered shares in this rights offering represents the maximum number of shares you may
potentially purchase. In all cases, you are entitled (but not required) to purchase all shares available to you under your
basic subscription privilege. Shares in excess of those available to you under your basic subscription privilege must be
purchased pursuant to your over-subscription privilege. As explained elsewhere in this prospectus, other shareholders
may also exercise their over-subscription privilege. If this occurs, the number of shares available for purchase by you
will be reduced accordingly.

In no event may you exercise subscription and over-subscription privileges to the extent that any such exercise would
result in your owning, without approval of our board of directors, 20% or more of our issued and outstanding common
stock, which is the ownership limitation that would trigger the provisions of our shareholder rights plan, after giving
effect to your purchase under the basic subscription privilege and the over-subscription privilege.

In addition, to ensure compliance with the so-called “5/50 rule” of the Internal Revenue Code, which generally prohibits
five or fewer shareholders from owning in the aggregate in excess of 50% of the value of the shares of a REIT during
the last half of any of the REIT’s taxable years (starting with the REIT’s second taxable year), subscription and
over-subscription privileges will be subject to proportionate cutbacks to the extent that any such exercises would
result in five or fewer shareholders owning in the aggregate in excess of 50% of the value of our shares.

2
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Am I required to exercise the subscription rights I receive in the rights offering?

No. You may exercise any number of your subscription rights, or you may choose not to exercise any subscription
rights. However, if you choose not to exercise your subscription rights in full, the relative percentage of our shares of
common stock that you own will decrease, and your voting and other rights will be diluted. Furthermore, if you fail to
exercise your full basic subscription privilege, you will not be eligible to exercise your over-subscription privilege.
For more information, see the question “ How many shares of capital stock will be issued and outstanding after the
rights offering? ” below.

Will our directors and significant shareholders be exercising their subscription rights?

Our directors and any greater-than-5% beneficial shareholders may participate in this offering at the same subscription
price per share as all other purchasers, but none of our directors or greater-than-5% beneficial shareholders are
obligated to so participate. All directors (who are also shareholders) have indicated that they will purchase shares that
are subject to their subscription rights, and that they will exercise their over-subscription privilege (if available), at the
same subscription price offered to our shareholders. If they do so, their ownership percentage may increase
significantly if shareholders do not exercise basic subscription privileges with respect to a significant number of
shares. Nevertheless, none of our directors have executed agreements to purchase shares and there is no guarantee or
commitment that they will subscribe for shares in the offering. Any shares purchased in the rights offering by our
directors will be deemed “control securities” under federal securities rules and will likely not be eligible for public resale
unless sold in accordance with the limitations of Rule 144 or the public resale of such shares is registered with the
SEC.

Has our Board of Directors made a recommendation to our shareholders regarding the exercise of rights under
the rights offering?

No. Our board of directors is making no recommendation regarding your exercise of the subscription rights.
Shareholders who exercise their subscription rights risk loss on their investment. We cannot assure you that the
market price of our common stock will be above the subscription price or that anyone purchasing shares at the
subscription price will be able to sell those shares in the future at the same price or a higher price. You are urged to
make your decision based on your own assessment of our business and the rights offering. See the “Risk Factors”
section of this prospectus for a discussion of some of the risks involved in investing in our common stock.

Why are we conducting a rights offering?
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Our board of directors believes that the rights offering will facilitate the vote of two-thirds of the outstanding shares
needed under New York law to approve the proposed merger of Gyrodyne and Gyrodyne Special Distribution, LLC
(“GSD”) with and into Gyrodyne, LLC (the “Merger”), which we believe is supported by holders of more than two-thirds
of our outstanding shares. On June 5, 2014, Gyrodyne announced that a special meeting of Gyrodyne shareholders
would be held on August 14, 2014 to authorize the Merger. Gyrodyne postponed the special meeting, first to August
27, 2014 and then to December 5, 2014, to allow additional time for shareholders to vote on the Merger. Although the
shares that were voted in these previous attempts to conduct the special meeting were voted overwhelmingly in favor
of the Merger, not enough shares were voted to achieve the two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote requirement.
Accordingly, on November 4, 2014, Gyrodyne announced a further postponement of the special meeting until the first
half of 2015. Given the small size of holdings of many Gyrodyne shareholders and the nature of various holders, we
believe many holders may not have paid enough attention to the Merger to exercise their right to vote. The board
believes, however, that shareholders who would exercise their subscription rights in the rights offering may be more
interested in the current structure of Gyrodyne and thus more likely to vote their shares on the Merger proposal. If all
rights in the rights offering are exercised and all of the shares issuable upon exercise of the rights are sold in this
offering, there will be 3,706,700 shares outstanding, in which case holders of at least 2,471,134 shares will need to
vote in favor of the Merger to satisfy the requirement that holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote in favor
of the Merger. There is no minimum number of shares, however, required to complete the rights offering. Gyrodyne
intends to conduct the special meeting to authorize the Merger as soon as reasonably possible after the consummation
of the rights offering.

We are also conducting the rights offering because it provides our shareholders the opportunity to participate in an
offering of our shares on a pro rata basis and minimizes the dilution of their ownership interest in our Company. The
proceeds of the rights offering will provide Gyrodyne with needed liquidity as we pursue an orderly liquidation of the
properties currently owned by GSD and managed by Gyrodyne.

3
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How was the subscription price of $2.75 per share determined?

The subscription price of $2.75 per share was determined by our board of directors. Factors considered by the board
included the price at which our shareholders might be willing to participate in the rights offering, historical and
current trading prices of our common stock, our business prospects, the condition of the trading market for our
common stock, the condition of the securities and capital markets in general and comparable precedent transactions in
terms of the percentage of shares offered, the terms of the subscription rights being offered, the subscription price and
the discount that the subscription price represented to the immediately prevailing closing prices for those offerings.
The board also considered the advice of the investment banking firm of Coady Diemar Partners, which we retained to
provide financial advisory services to us in connection with the offering. We cannot assure you that the market price
for our common stock during the rights offering will be equal to or above the subscription price or that a subscribing
owner of rights will be able to sell the shares of common stock purchased in the rights offering at a price equal to or
greater than the subscription price.

How soon must I act to exercise my rights?

If you received a rights certificate and elect to exercise any or all of your subscription rights, the subscription agent
must receive your completed and signed rights certificate and related payment prior to the expiration of the rights
offering, which is June [ ● ], 2015 at 5:00 p.m., New York City time. If you hold your shares in the name of a custodian
bank, broker, dealer or other nominee, your custodian bank, broker, dealer or other nominee may establish a deadline
prior to 5:00 p.m. New York City time, on June [ ● ], 2015 by which you must provide it with your instructions to
exercise your subscription rights and pay for your shares.

Although we will make reasonable attempts to provide this prospectus to all holders of subscription rights, the rights
offering and all subscription rights will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time on June [ ● ], 2015 (unless extended
for up to 30 additional days), whether or not we have been able to locate each person entitled to receive subscription
rights. Although we reserve the right to extend the expiration of the rights offering for up to 30 additional days, we
currently do not intend to do so.

May I transfer my subscription rights?

No. You may not sell or transfer your subscription rights to anyone.

Can the Board of Directors cancel, terminate, amend or extend the rights offering?
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Yes. Although there is no present intention to do so, our board of directors may change the terms of the rights offering
for any reason at any time. If we should make any fundamental changes to the terms set forth in this prospectus, we
will offer potential purchasers who have subscribed for rights the opportunity to cancel such subscriptions, issue a
refund of any money advanced by such shareholder and recirculate an updated prospectus. In addition, upon such
event, we may extend the expiration date of this rights offering to allow holders of rights ample time to make new
investment decisions and for us to recirculate updated documentation. The terms of the rights offering cannot be
changed after the expiration date of the rights offering. We have the option to extend the rights offering and the period
for exercising your subscription rights for up to 30 additional days, although we do not presently intend to do so. Our
board of directors may cancel the rights offering at any time for any reason. If the rights offering is cancelled, all
subscription payments received by the subscription agent will be returned promptly, without interest or penalty.

Will funds be held in a segregated account pending consummation or cancelation of the rights offering?

Yes. The subscription agent will hold funds received in payment for shares of the common stock in a segregated
account pending completion of the rights offering. The subscription agent will hold this money in a segregated
account until the rights offering is completed or is withdrawn and canceled. If the rights offering is canceled for any
reason, all subscription payments received by the subscription agent will be returned promptly, without interest or
penalty, as soon as practicable. In addition, all subscription payments received by the subscription agent will be
returned, without interest or penalty, as soon as practicable, if subscribers decide to cancel their subscription rights in
the event that we extend the rights offering for a period of more than 30 days after the expiration date or if there is a
fundamental change to the rights offering.

4
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When will I receive my subscription rights certificate?

Promptly after the date of this prospectus, the subscription agent will send a subscription rights certificate to each
registered holder of our common stock as of the close of business on the record date, based on our shareholder register
maintained by the transfer agent for our common stock. If you hold your shares of common stock through a brokerage
account, bank, or other nominee, you will not receive an actual subscription rights certificate. Instead, as described in
this prospectus, you must instruct your broker, bank or nominee whether or not to exercise rights on your behalf. If
you wish to obtain a separate subscription rights certificate, you should promptly contact your broker, bank or other
nominee and request a separate subscription rights certificate. If you hold your shares of common stock through a
brokerage account, bank, or other nominee, it is not necessary to have a physical subscription rights certificate in order
to exercise your subscription rights.

What will happen if I choose not to exercise my subscription rights?

If you do not exercise any subscription rights, the number of our shares of common stock you own will not change.
Nevertheless, due to the fact that other shareholders may purchase shares in the rights offering, your percentage
ownership of Gyrodyne will be diluted after the completion of the rights offering unless you do exercise your
subscription rights. For more information, see the question “How many shares of capital stock will be issued and
outstanding after the rights offering?” below.

How do I exercise my subscription rights?

If you wish to participate in the rights offering, you must take the following steps:

●deliver payment to the subscription agent; and

●deliver your properly completed and signed rights certificate, and any other subscription documents, to thesubscription agent.

Please follow the payment and delivery instructions accompanying the rights certificate. Do not deliver documents to
Gyrodyne. You are solely responsible for completing delivery to the subscription agent of your subscription
documents, rights certificate, and related payment on or prior to the deadline for receipt of such items. We urge you to
allow sufficient time for delivery of your subscription materials to the subscription agent so that they are received by
the subscription agent by 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on June [ ● ], 2015. We are not responsible for subscription
materials sent directly to our offices. If you cannot deliver your rights certificate to the subscription agent prior to the
expiration of the rights offering, you may follow the guaranteed delivery procedures described under the “The Rights
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Offering—Guaranteed Delivery Procedures” section of this prospectus.

If you send a payment that is insufficient to purchase the number of shares you requested, or if the number of shares
you requested is not specified in the forms, the payment received will be applied to exercise your subscription rights
to the fullest extent possible based on the amount of the payment received, subject to the availability of shares under
the oversubscription privilege and purchase limitations and subject to the elimination of any fractional shares. Any
excess subscription payments received by the subscription agent will be returned promptly, without interest or penalty,
following the expiration of the rights offering.

What should I do if I want to participate in the rights offering but my shares are held in the name of my
broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee (commonly referred to as “street name”)?

If you hold your shares of common stock in the name of a broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee, then your
broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee is the record holder of the shares you own. Consequently, you will not
receive a rights certificate. Instead, the record holder (i.e., your broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee) must
exercise the subscription rights on your behalf for the shares of common stock you wish to purchase.
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If you hold your shares of our common stock in the name of a broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee and
you wish to purchase shares in the rights offering, please promptly contact your broker, dealer, custodian bank or
other nominee as record holder of your shares. For our part, we will ask your record holder to notify you of the rights
offering. Nevertheless, if your broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee does not contact you regarding the
rights offering, you should promptly initiate contact with that intermediary if you wish to participate in the offering.
Your broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee may establish a deadline prior to 5:00 p.m. New York City time
on June [ ● ], 2015, which we have established as the expiration date of the rights offering.

When will I receive my new shares?

If you purchase shares in the rights offering by submitting a rights certificate and payment, our subscription agent will
mail you a share certificate as soon as practicable after the completion of the rights offering. One share certificate will
be generated for each rights certificate processed. Until your share certificate is received, you may not be able to sell
the shares of our common stock acquired in the rights offering. If your shares as of the record date were held by a
custodian bank, broker, dealer or other nominee, and you participate in the rights offering, you will not receive share
certificates for your new shares. Instead, your custodian bank, broker, dealer or other nominee will be credited with
the shares of common stock you purchase in the rights offering as soon as practicable after the completion of the
rights offering.

After I send in my payment and rights certificate, may I change or cancel my exercise of rights?

No. All exercises of subscription rights are irrevocable, even if you later learn information that you consider to be
unfavorable to the exercise of your subscription rights. However, if we amend the rights offering to allow for an
extension of the rights offering for a period of more than 30 days or make a fundamental change to the terms of the
rights offering set forth in this prospectus, you may cancel your subscription and receive a refund of any money you
have advanced. You should not exercise your subscription rights unless you are certain that you wish to purchase
additional shares of our common stock at a subscription price of $2.75 per share.

How many shares of capital stock will be issued and outstanding after the rights offering?

As of May 6, 2015, there were 1,482,680 shares of our common stock outstanding. We will issue 2,224,020 shares of
common stock in the rights offering, assuming the rights offering is fully subscribed, but there is no minimum number
of shares required to complete the rights offering. Based on the number of shares outstanding as of May 6, 2015, if we
issue all 2 ,224,020 shares of common stock available in this rights offering, the number of shares of common stock
we would have outstanding will be 3,706,700. 
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Are there risks in exercising my subscription rights?

Yes. The exercise of your subscription rights involves risks. Exercising your subscription rights involves the purchase
of additional shares of common stock and should be considered as carefully as you would consider any other equity
investment. Among other things, you should carefully consider the risks described in the section of this prospectus
entitled “Risk Factors.”

If the rights offering is not completed, will my subscription payment be refunded to me?

Yes. The subscription agent will hold all funds it receives in a segregated bank account until completion of the rights
offering. If the rights offering is not completed, all subscription payments received by the subscription agent will be
returned promptly, without interest or penalty. If you own shares in “street name,” it may take longer for you to receive
payment because the subscription agent will return payments through the record holder of your shares (i.e., through
your custodian bank, broker, dealer or other nominee).

Will the subscription rights be listed on a stock exchange or national market?

No. The subscription rights may not be sold, transferred or assigned and will not be listed for trading on Nasdaq or on
any other stock exchange or market or on the OTC Bulletin Board.
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How do I exercise my rights if I live outside the United States?

We will not mail this prospectus or the rights certificates to shareholders whose addresses are outside the United
States or who have an army post office or foreign post office address. The subscription agent will instead hold rights
certificates for the account of these shareholders. To exercise subscription rights, our foreign shareholders must notify
the subscription agent and timely follow other procedures described in the section of this prospectus entitled “The
Rights Offering—Foreign Shareholders.”

What fees or charges apply if I purchase the shares of common stock?

We are not charging any fee or sales commission to issue subscription rights to you or to issue shares to you if you
exercise your subscription rights. If, however, you exercise your subscription rights through your broker, dealer,
custodian bank or other nominee, you are responsible for paying any fees your nominee may charge you.

What are the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of exercising my subscription rights?

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, you should not recognize income or loss upon receipt or exercise of
subscription rights. You should consult your tax advisor as to your particular tax consequences resulting from the
rights offering. For a more detailed discussion, see the “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences” section of this
prospectus.

How much money will Gyrodyne receive from the rights offering?

If we issue all 2,224,020 shares available in the rights offering, the net proceeds to us, after deducting estimated
offering expenses, will be approximately $5,606,000.  However, there is no minimum number of shares required to
complete the rights offering. We estimate that the expenses of the rights offering will be approximately $510,000,
irrespective of the number of shares we sell or the amount of proceeds we raise in the offering. Accordingly, the
estimated $510,000 of offering expenses will constitute approximately 9% of the offering proceeds if we issue
all 2,224,020 shares available in the rights offering, or a greater percentage of such net proceeds to the extent that we
close the offering with net proceeds below $5,606,000.

To whom should I send my forms and payment?

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

24



If you received a rights certificate with this prospectus and wish to purchase shares during the rights offering, you
should send your properly completed and signed rights certificate, any other subscription documents and payment by
hand delivery, first class mail or courier service to the subscription agent at:

If Delivering by Hand or Overnight:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer

250 Royall Street, Suite V

Canton, MA 02021

By Mail:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Attn: Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer

P.O. Box 43011

Providence, RI 02940-3011 

You are solely responsible for completing delivery to the subscription agent of your subscription materials.  The
subscription materials are to be received by the subscription agent on or prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on
June [ ● ], 2015.  We urge you to allow sufficient time for delivery of your subscription materials to the subscription
agent.

Whom should I contact if I have other questions?

If you have more questions about the rights offering or need additional copies of the rights offering documents, please
contact the information agent, MacKenzie Partners, Inc., 105 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10016, or telephone
(800) 322-2885 (toll free).

For a more complete description of the rights offering, see “The Rights Offering” beginning on page 81 of this
prospectus.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights the information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary does not contain all of
the information that you should consider before deciding whether to exercise your subscription rights. You should
carefully read this entire prospectus, including the information under the heading “Risk Factors”. In this prospectus,
all references to the “Company,” “Gyrodyne” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc., a
New York corporation, and its subsidiaries and predecessors, unless the context otherwise requires or where
otherwise indicated.

Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc.

Gyrodyne, a self-managed and self-administered real estate investment trust (or REIT) formed under the laws of the
State of New York, manages a diversified portfolio of real estate properties comprising office, industrial and
service-oriented properties primarily in the New York metropolitan area. Prior to the payment of the First Special
Dividend issued in December 2013 and described below, Gyrodyne owned a 68 acre site approximately 50 miles east
of New York City on the north shore of Long Island, which includes industrial and office buildings and undeveloped
property that is the subject of development plans and is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as “Flowerfield.”
Prior to payment of the First Special Dividend described below, Gyrodyne also owned medical office buildings in Port
Jefferson Station, New York, Cortlandt Manor, New York and Fairfax, Virginia. As part of the First Special Dividend
as described below, the foregoing properties were transferred to GSD, a subsidiary of Gyrodyne, and all of the
outstanding shares of GSD were then distributed to the shareholders of Gyrodyne. Gyrodyne is also a limited partner
in Callery Judge Grove, L.P., the only assets of which consist of potential future payments upon the achievement of
certain development benchmarks by the purchaser in the 2013 sale by the partnership of an undeveloped 3,700 plus
acre property in Palm Beach County, Florida. As of December 31, 2014, Gyrodyne has an investment in mortgage
loans and line of credit both due to it from GSD of $12,889,463 and $4,280,943, with both loans eliminated in
consolidation.

On December 24, 2014, Gyrodyne and GSD executed a management services agreement, pursuant to which
Gyrodyne’s taxable REIT subsidiary, Flowerfield Properties Inc (“FPI”), continues to provide GSD with acquisition and
disposition services, asset management services, accounting and other administrative services, property management
services and shareholder services. In consideration for these services, GSD reimburses FPI for 85% of FPI’s general
and administrative expenses and pays FPI a fee equal to 8.5% of such reimbursed amount; reimburses FPI for all
rental expenses, whether value added (such as contractor and consultant expenses) or non-value added (such as
utilities and taxes) paid by FPI in respect of the properties; pays FPI a fee equal to 8.5% of all value added rental
expenses paid by FPI in respect of the properties (but no fee in respect of non-value added rental
expenses); reimburses FPI for 100% (without mark-up) of any bonuses paid by FPI to its employees and directors and
related payroll taxes on account of any sales of GSD properties; and pays interest to Gyrodyne at the rate of 5.0% per
annum on any funds advanced by Gyrodyne to GSD pursuant to a liquidity facility, currently of up to $5.5 million,
made available to GSD by Gyrodyne.
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The shares of common stock of Gyrodyne, par value $1.00 per share, are traded on NASDAQ under the symbol
GYRO. Gyrodyne’s principal executive offices are located at One Flowerfield, Suite 24, Saint James, New York 11780
and its telephone number is (631) 584-5400.

Strategic Process

In July 2012, Gyrodyne received $167,501,657 from the State of New York in payment of the judgments in
Gyrodyne’s favor in its condemnation litigation with the State, which consisted of $98,685,000 in additional damages,
$1,474,941 in costs, disbursements and expenses and $67,341,716 in interest. In August 2012, Gyrodyne announced
that it was undertaking a strategic review to maximize shareholder value through one or more potential cash
distributions and/or through a potential sale, merger, reinvestment or other strategic combination, consistent with
Gyrodyne’s previously announced goal of providing one or more tax efficient liquidity events to its shareholders.  
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On September 12, 2013, following Gyrodyne’s receipt of a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (the
“2013 PLR”) (as described below), our board of directors concluded that it was in the best interests of Gyrodyne and its
shareholders to liquidate Gyrodyne for federal income tax purposes and adopted a Plan of Liquidation and Dissolution
(the “Plan of Liquidation”). In adopting the Plan of Liquidation for federal income tax purposes, our board of directors
also determined to pursue the actual disposition of our remaining assets in an orderly manner designed to obtain the
best value reasonably available for such assets. The completion of the Merger would complete the liquidation of
Gyrodyne for federal income tax purposes within the two year period from the adoption of the Plan of Liquidation, as
provided by Section 562(b)(1)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) even though the
actual disposition of the properties within the same period had not necessarily occurred. Our board of directors
believed that the prompt completion of the Tax Liquidation by means of the Merger while permitting a longer period
to dispose of the remaining assets would help obtain better values by enabling the sales to take place without the
potential timing constraints created by completing the Merger as promptly as practicable. In addition, the ability to
extend the time of holding the properties would permit Gyrodyne to seek enhancements of the value of Flowerfield
including by pursuing various development or zoning opportunities. In this prospectus, we refer to such liquidation as
the “Tax Liquidation.”

On September 13, 2013, our board of directors declared the First Special Dividend, in the amount of $98,685,000, or
$66.56 per Gyrodyne share, of which approximately $68,000,000, or $45.86 per share, was to be paid in cash. In
connection with the First Special Dividend, our board of directors requested the opinion of Valuation Research
Corporation (“Valuation Research”) as to the solvency of Gyrodyne after giving effect to the First Special Dividend. On
September 13, 2013, at a meeting of our board of directors, Valuation Research delivered its opinion that, immediately
after the completion of the First Special Dividend, (i) the fair value and the present fair saleable value of our aggregate
assets exceeds the sum of our total liabilities, (ii) we will be able to pay our debts as such debts mature or otherwise
become absolute or due, and (iii) we do not have unreasonably small capital.

On December 19, 2013, our board of directors determined that the non-cash portion of the First Special Dividend
would be paid by a distribution of all of the outstanding shares in GSD, a subsidiary of Gyrodyne into which all of
Gyrodyne’s real estate assets were previously contributed as part of an internal restructuring. We refer to such
properties as the Contributed Properties. Our board also determined that, after consideration of a management
presentation regarding the fair market value of the properties to be transferred to GSD, the aggregate value of the
outstanding equity interests of GSD (“GSD Interests”) distributed in the First Special Dividend was $30,685,000 (an
amount determined by our board of directors to be equal to the estimated fair market value of the properties, net of all
liabilities encumbering such properties, including mortgage loans payable to a subsidiary of Gyrodyne in the
aggregate amount of $13,840,889 as of December 31, 2013).

The First Special Dividend was paid on December 30, 2013 to shareholders of record as of November 1, 2013. As
required by NASDAQ rules governing special dividends of this magnitude, the ex-dividend date was set one business
day following the payment date.

The transfer of the Contributed Properties by Gyrodyne to GSD resulted in the recognition of approximately $28.4
million of capital gain income by Gyrodyne in 2013. Giving effect to offsetting deductions, Gyrodyne determined that
it would have approximately $18 million in REIT income for 2013. In order to satisfy applicable REIT distribution
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requirements, on December 20, 2013, Gyrodyne declared an additional dividend (the “Second Special Dividend”),
payable to Gyrodyne shareholders of record as of December 31, 2013 on January 31, 2014. The Second Special
Dividend was paid in the form of uncertificated interests in a global dividend note due June 30, 2017 (the “Dividend
Note”) aggregating $16,150,000 ($10.89 per share) in principal amount. The Dividend Note bears interest at 5.0% per
annum, payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing June 15, 2014, and may be
payable in cash or in the form of additional notes. On June 16, 2014, the initial semi-annual interest payment on the
Dividend Note was paid in kind in the form of uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note due June 30,
2017 in the principal amount of $302,813 that otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to the initial
semi-annual interest payment date thereunder. On December 15, 2014, the second semi-annual interest payment on
the original Dividend Note was paid in kind in the form of uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note
due June 30, 2017 in the principal amount of $403,750 that otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to
the initial semi-annual interest payment date thereunder. The initial interest due of $7,570 on the note issued on June
16, 2014 was paid in cash on December 15, 2014. 

The following table shows information with respect to all distributions made by Gyrodyne to its shareholders since
November 2005, the time of the taking by New York State of 245.5 acres of our Flowerfield property.  The values
indicated for the non-cash distributions (GSD Interests and interests in notes) are stated values as of the time of the
respective distributions made in good faith by the board. There can be no assurance that such values represent actual
market values or that any shareholders could realize those values now or at any time in the future.
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Ex-Div. Date/

Interest Payment Date

Distributions

per Share
Consideration

3/22/2007 $ 4.00 Cash Dividend
12/17/2012 $ 38.30 Cash Dividend

12/27/2013 $ 10.89 Interests in Dividend
Note

12/31/2013 $ 66.56 $45.86 cash, $20.70 in
GSD Interests

6/16/2014 $ 0.20 Interests in PIK Note

9/24/2014 $ 0.46 Interests in Dividend
Note

12/15/2014 $ 0.27 Interests in PIK Note

Total Distributions per Share $ 120.68
On September 15, 2014, our board declared a special supplemental dividend in the amount of $682,033 or $0.46 per
share of Gyrodyne common stock. The dividend was paid in the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a
dividend note on December 31, 2014 to all shareholders of record as of September 26, 2014 (the “2014 Dividend
Note”). The dividend is intended to distribute Gyrodyne’s undistributed 2013 REIT taxable income.

During the second quarter of 2014, our board of directors approved the hiring of real estate brokers to facilitate the
sale of the Cortlandt Manor Medical Center and Fairfax Medical Center. In early 2015, the Company became aware
that various aspects of the plaintiff’s claims in a putative class action lawsuit against the Company, members of the
Company’s board of directors, GSD and Gyrodyne, LLC were interfering with the aforementioned proposed sale of
such properties. As stated in the 2014 Form 10-K – under “Item 3. Legal Proceedings--Putative Class Action Lawsuit”,
the defendants believe the lawsuit is without merit. The Company will vigorously defend such action and take steps to
seek to eliminate the issues created by the pending action that are impeding the sale. The Company believes that the
issues will be resolved in the Company’s favor and that it will be able to liquidate the properties proposed to be sold
with no impact to fair value, assuming the market itself does not materially change during the period the Company
needs to resolve such issues. As a result of this interference in the sale process, however, the Company believes that as
of December 31, 2014, it no longer met the requirements for such assets and liabilities to qualify as assets and
liabilities as held for sale and discontinued operations and therefore has reclassified them to operating assets and
liabilities and continuing operations and is not reporting discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,
2014.

Rights Offering

The following summary describes the principal terms of the rights offering, but is not intended to be complete.  See
“The Rights Offering” for a more detailed description of the terms and conditions of the rights offering.
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Securities Offered

We are distributing, at no charge, to holders of our common stock
non-transferable subscription rights to purchase up to 2,224,020 shares
of our common stock. You will receive three subscription rights for each
two shares of common stock held of record, as of 5:00 p.m., New York
City time, on May 6, 2015.

Subscription Price $2.75 per share
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Basic Subscription Privilege

Under the basic subscription privilege, for each subscription right you
will be entitled to purchase one share of our common stock at a
subscription price of $2.75 per full share. The number of subscription
rights you may exercise appears on your rights certificate.

Over-Subscription Privilege

If you exercise your basic subscription privilege in full and other
shareholders do not exercise their basic subscription privilege in full,
you will also have an over-subscription privilege to purchase any shares
that our other subscription rights holders do not purchase under their
basic subscription privilege, subject to proration of available
shares.  The subscription price for shares purchased pursuant to the
over-subscription privilege will be the same as the subscription price for
the basic subscription privilege.

If you are not allocated the full amount of shares for which you
over-subscribe, you will receive a refund of the subscription price,
without interest or penalty, that you delivered for those shares of our
common stock that are not allocated to you.  The subscription agent will
mail such refunds as soon as practicable after the completion of the
offering.

No fractional shares of common stock will be issued.  Any fractional
rights resulting from the share allocation process specified above will be
rounded to the nearest whole number, with halves rounded down.

Amount of Proceeds

Assuming we receive valid subscriptions for the full 2,224,020 shares,
the gross proceeds to us will be $6,115,055 and the net proceeds to us,
after deducting estimated offering expenses, will be approximately
$5,606,000. However, there is no minimum amount of proceeds
required to complete the rights offering.

Limitation on the Purchase

of Shares

In no event may a shareholder exercise subscription and
over-subscription privileges to the extent that any such exercise would
result in the shareholder, without the approval of our board of directors,
owning 20% or more of our issued and outstanding common stock, the
limit under our shareholder rights plan, after giving effect to such
shareholder’s purchase under the basic subscription privilege and the
over-subscription privilege.  Subscription and over-subscription
privileges will also be subject to proportionate cutbacks to the extent
that any such exercises would result in five or fewer shareholders
owning in the aggregate in excess of 50% of the value of our shares.

Record Date May 6, 2015

Expiration Date The subscription rights will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on
June [ ● ], 2015, unless the expiration date is extended.  We reserve the
right to extend the subscription rights period at our sole discretion for a
period not to exceed 30 days, although we do not presently intend to do
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so.

Procedure for Exercising

Subscription Rights

The subscription rights may be exercised at any time during the
subscription period, which commences on May [ ● ], 2015.  To exercise
your subscription rights, you must take the following steps: 
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If you are a registered holder of our shares of common stock, you may
deliver payment and a properly completed rights certificate to the
subscription agent before 5:00 p.m., New York City time on June [ ● ],
2015, unless the expiration date is extended.  You may deliver the
documents and payments by mail or commercial carrier.  If regular
mail is used for this purpose, we recommend using registered mail,
properly insured, with return receipt requested.

If you are a beneficial owner of shares that are registered in the name
of a broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee, or if you would
rather an institution conduct the transaction on your behalf, you should
instruct your broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee to
exercise your subscription rights on your behalf and deliver all
documents and payments before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on
June [ ● ], 2015, unless the expiration date is extended

Use of Proceeds

We intend to use the net proceeds received from the rights offering to
pay accrued interest and principal on certain outstanding dividend and
payment-in-kind notes, to meet current funding obligations of the
pension plan resulting from its termination, to provide funding to GSD
under the liquidity facility established pursuant to GSD’s operating
agreement, for pursuing development rights for the Flowerfield
property, for necessary capital improvements in GSD’s real estate
portfolio which we manage and for general working capital. See “Use
of Proceeds.” However, there is no minimum number of shares required
to complete the rights offering, and the gross and net proceeds could
be considerably less than the $6,116,055 and $5,606,000, respectively,
we would receive assuming full subscription.  

Non-Transferability of

Subscription Rights

The subscription rights may not be sold, transferred or assigned to
anyone else and will not be listed for trading on the NASDAQ Capital
Market or any other stock exchange or market or on the OTC Bulletin
Board.

No Revocation

All exercises of subscription rights are irrevocable, even if you later
learn information about us that you consider unfavorable to the
exercise of your subscription rights, or even in the event we extend the
rights offering.  However, if we extend the rights offering for a period
of more than 30 days or make a fundamental change to the terms set
forth in this prospectus, you may cancel your subscription and receive
a refund of any money you have advanced.  You should not exercise
your subscription rights unless you are certain that you wish to
purchase the shares of common stock offered pursuant to this rights
offering at a subscription price of $2.75 per share.

Extension; Cancellation; Amendment
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We have the option to extend the rights offering and the period for
exercising your subscription rights, although we do not presently
intend to do so.  If we elect to extend the expiration of the rights
offering, we will issue a press release announcing such extension no
later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next business day
after the most recently announced expiration of the rights
offering.  We will extend the duration of the rights offering as required
by applicable law or regulation and may choose to extend it if we
decide to give investors more time to exercise their subscription rights
in this rights offering.  If we elect to extend the rights offering for a
period of more than 30 days, then holders who have subscribed for
rights may cancel their subscriptions and receive a refund of all money
advanced. 
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Our board of directors also reserves the right to cancel the rights offering
at any time prior to the expiration date for any reason.  If the rights
offering is canceled, all subscription payments received by the
subscription agent will be returned, without interest or penalty, as soon
as practicable to those persons who subscribed for shares in the rights
offering. 

Our board of directors also reserves the right to amend or change the
terms of the rights offering.  If we should make any fundamental
changes to the terms set forth in this prospectus, we will file a
post-effective amendment to the registration statement in which this
prospectus is included, offer potential purchasers who have subscribed
for rights the opportunity to cancel such subscriptions and issue a refund
of any money advanced by such shareholder and recirculate an updated
prospectus after the post-effective amendment is declared effective by
the SEC.  In addition, upon such event, we may extend the expiration
date of this rights offering to allow holders of rights ample time to make
new investment decisions and for us to recirculate updated
documentation.  Promptly following any such occurrence, we will issue
a press release announcing any changes with respect to this rights
offering and the new expiration date. Although we do not presently
intend to do so, we may choose to change the terms of the rights offering
for any reason, including, without limitation, in order to increase
participation in the rights offering.  Such changes may include a change
in the subscription price although no such change is presently
contemplated. The terms of the rights offering cannot be changed after
the expiration date of the rights offering.

No Board Recommendation

Our board of directors is making no recommendations regarding your
exercise of the subscription rights.  You are urged to make your own
decision whether or not to exercise your subscription rights based on
your own assessment of our business and the rights offering.  See the
section of this prospectus entitled “Risk Factors” for a discussion of some
of the risks involved in investing in our common stock.

Director Participation

All Gyrodyne directors (who are also shareholders) have indicated that
they will purchase shares that are subject to their subscription rights, and
that they will exercise their over-subscription privilege (if available), at
the same subscription price offered to our shareholders. If they do so,
their ownership percentage may increase significantly if shareholders do
not exercise basic subscription privileges with respect to a significant
number of shares. Nevertheless, these shareholders have not executed
agreements to purchase shares and there is no guarantee or commitment
that they will subscribe for shares in the offering. 

Issuance of Common Stock If you purchase shares in the rights offering by submitting a rights
certificate and payment, we will mail you a stock certificate as soon as
practicable after the completion of the rights offering.  If your shares as
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of the record date were held by a custodian bank, broker, dealer or other
nominee, and you participate in the rights offering, you will not receive
stock certificates for your new shares.  Your custodian bank, broker,
dealer or other nominee will be credited with the shares of common
stock you purchase in the rights offering as soon as practicable after the
completion of the rights offering
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Listing of Common Stock

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the
symbol “GYRO”, and we expect the shares to be issued in connection with
the rights offering will also be listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market
under the same symbol.

Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations

The receipt and exercise of your subscription rights will generally not be
taxable under U.S. federal income tax laws.  You are urged to seek
specific tax advice from your personal tax advisor in light of your
personal tax situation and as to the applicability and effect of any tax
laws.  See “Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.”

Subscription Agent Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Information Agent MacKenzie Partners, Inc.

Shares of Common Stock Outstanding
Before

the Rights Offering

As of May 6, 2015, 1,482,680 shares of our common stock were
outstanding.

Shares of Common Stock Outstanding After

Completion of the Rights Offering

We will issue 2,224,020 shares of common stock in the rights offering,
assuming the full number of subscription rights are exercised.  Based on
the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of May 6, 2015, if
we issue all 2,224,020 shares of common stock available in this rights
offering, we would have 3,706,700 shares of common stock outstanding
following the completion of the rights offering. However, there is no
minimum number of shares required to complete the rights offering.

Risk Factors

Shareholders considering making an investment by exercising
subscription rights in the rights offering should carefully read and
consider the information set forth in “Risk Factors” beginning on page 18
of this prospectus, together with the other information contained in this
prospectus, before making a decision to invest in our common stock.

Fees and Expenses We will pay the fees and expenses incurred by us related to the rights
offering.

Summary Financial Information

During the second quarter of 2014, we engaged real estate brokers to sell the Cortlandt Manor Medical Center and the
Fairfax Medical Center. The Cortlandt Manor Medical Center was acquired by Gyrodyne in 2008 and the neighboring
lots were acquired by Gyrodyne in 2009 and 2010. The Fairfax Medical Center was acquired by Gyrodyne in 2009.
These acquisitions were part of an overall strategy of reinvesting tax free under Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue
Code (the “Code”) the $26,315,000 payment received from New York State in 2006 which the Company elected under
New York State’s eminent domain law to treat as advance payment while it pursued its claim for just compensation. In
late 2013, these properties were contributed to a wholly owned subsidiary of Gyrodyne, GSD, the interests in which
were distributed to our shareholders as a non-cash dividend with Gyrodyne retaining only a managing member interest
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(no ownership interest). As of April 1, 2014, all of the operations related to the Cortlandt Manor Medical Center and
the Fairfax Medical Center were reported as discontinued operations and were presented as such in the unaudited
second and third quarter consolidated financial statements, In early 2015, the Company became aware that various
aspects of the plaintiff’s claims in a putative class action lawsuit against the Company, members of the Company’s
board of directors, GSD and Gyrodyne, LLC were interfering with the aforementioned proposed sale of such
properties. As stated in the 2014 Form 10-K - under “Item 3. Legal Proceedings--Putative Class Action Lawsuit”, the
defendants believe the lawsuit is without merit. The Company will vigorously defend such action and take steps to
seek to eliminate the issues created by the pending action that are impeding the sale. The Company believes that the
issues will be resolved in the Company’s favor and that it will be able to liquidate the properties proposed to be sold
with no impact to fair value, assuming the market itself does not materially change during the period the Company
needs to resolve such issues. As a result of this interference in the sale process, however, the Company believes that as
of December 31, 2014, it no longer met the requirements for such assets and liabilities to qualify as assets and
liabilities as held for sale and discontinued operations and therefore has reclassified them to operating assets and
liabilities and continuing operations and is not reporting discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,
2014.
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The following is a summary of selected statement of operations and balance sheet data for each of the periods
indicated. The selected financial data presented below for the years ended December 31, 2014, December 31, 2013,
December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 are derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements and related notes. You are encouraged to review our financial statements (and the notes to our consolidated
financial statements) prior to exercising your subscription rights and investing in our common stock.

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Statement of Operations Data
Total gross revenues $4,948,688 $5,029,969 $4,989,108 $5,519,704 $5,550,863
Total rental expenses 2,605,844 2,514,530 2,308,036 2,347,400 2,218,589
Condemnation (costs)/income - - 167,370,518 (333,308 ) (109,354 )
Mortgage interest expense - 5,748 965,506 1,193,875 1,117,963
Tax (benefit) provision (565,000 ) (61,553,442) 61,649,000 - 109,000
Net (loss) income (3,105,366 ) 46,055,205 99,048,253 (1,124,665 ) (1,081,465 )
Net loss from Non-Controlling
Interest in GSD, LLC 3,252,919 8,001 - - -

Net income (loss) Attributable to
Gyrodyne 147,553 46,063,206 99,048,253 (1,124,665 ) (1,081,465 )

Balance Sheet Data
Real estate operating assets, net $30,115,138 $30,357,365 $32,533,102 $32,976,274 $33,071,570
Land held for development 2,519,811 2,382,313 2,274,312 2,166,066 2,041,037
Total assets 43,876,364 50,981,788 135,518,999 47,806,589 39,768,219
Mortgages including interest rate
swap - - 5,013,415 21,143,780 21,845,279

Cash distribution paid - 67,995,704 56,786,652 - -
Total equity 23,457,611 27,997,481 64,768,002 23,987,798 14,961,340
Total Gyrodyne stockholders’ equity 7,652,063 8,939,014 64,768,002 23,987,798 14,961,340
Other Data
Funds from operations (“FFO”) (1) $(2,541,568 ) $(12,370,658) $(5,712,917 ) $(179,490 ) $(233,911 )
Company Adjusted funds from
operations (“AFFO”) 504,449 209,943 (48,911 ) 183,201 (124,557 )

Cash flows (used in) provided by:
operating activities (5,470,298 ) (8,105,339 ) 161,712,775 (477,273 ) (346,936 )
investing activities (3,550,192 ) (1,437 ) (5,010,995 ) (905,834 ) (1,524,192 )
financing activities - (73,009,119) (72,913,052 ) 9,617,579 3,143,864
Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents (9,020,490 ) (81,115,895) 83,788,728 8,234,472 1,272,736

Medical property
Rentable square footage 130,910 130,910 131,125 131,113 130,648
Occupancy Rate (2) 88 % 83 % 78 % 88 % 95 %
Industrial property
Rentable square footage 130,426 130,426 128,586 128,141 127,062
Occupancy (2) 70 % 84 % 85 % 83 % 81 %
Cash dividend declared per share $- $45.86 $38.30 $- $-
Net income (loss) per common
share attributable to Gyrodyne–

0.10 31.07 66.80 (0.84 ) (0.84 )

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

40



basic and diluted
FFO per common share (3) (1.71 ) (8.34 ) (3.86 ) (0.13 ) (0.18 )
AFFO per common shares (4) 0.34 0.14 (0.03 ) 0.13 (0.09 )
Basic and diluted weighted average
common shares outstanding 1,482,680 1,482,680 1,482,680 1,340,706 1,290,039

15

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

41



(1)As of the period end.

(2)Occupancy Percentage is calculated by dividing the total rented square footage as of the end of the period by thetotal rentable square footage at the end of the period.

(3)

The Company calculates funds from operations (“FFO”) in accordance with the White Paper on FFO approved by the
Board of Governors of NAREIT (National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts) excluding the FFO
adjustment for impairment charges. NAREIT recently approved the adjustment to FFO for impairment charges. As
a result, the Company excludes impairment charges from FFO. The white paper defines FFO as net income or loss
calculated in accordance with GAAP, excluding extraordinary items, as defined by GAAP, and gains and losses
attributable to the sale of depreciable operating property, plus real estate related depreciation and amortization
(excluding amortization of deferred financing costs) and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and
joint ventures.

We believe that FFO is a useful supplemental measure of our operating performance. The exclusion of gains and
losses on the sale of real estate allows investors and analysts to identify the operating results of the assets that
reflect the core of our activity and assists in comparing the results of that activity across reporting periods.
Additionally, FFO is the recognized industry standard for reporting the operations of a REIT. As a result, providing
FFO data facilitates comparison of operating performance with other REITs.

Historical cost accounting under GAAP measures implies that real estate asset values diminish over time. Since
real estate assets have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many investors and analysts consider
presentation of operating results utilizing historical cost accounting alone to be insufficient. Because FFO excludes
depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, we believe reporting FFO along with the required GAAP
presentation provides a more complete measurement of our performance relative to our competitors. However, our
FFO includes a material cost for condemnation litigation which other REITs may not incur. Condemnation is not
an extraordinary item as defined by GAAP; therefore such costs were included in the computation of FFO. We
disclose separately our condemnation costs to enable the investors and analysts to compute the impact of
condemnation costs on FFO which we reflect in the computation of Company adjusted FFO (“AFFO”). During years
where condemnation income was recognized, we exclude condemnation income and the related costs from FFO
and AFFO.

FFO or AFFO should not be viewed as alternative measures of our operating performance since they do not reflect
either depreciation and amortization costs or the capital expenditures and capitalized leasing costs necessary to
maintain the operating performance of our properties. Such capital expenditures are significant economic costs and
can materially impact results of operations and net cash flow provided or used between reporting periods.

Noncash adjustments to arrive at FFO included depreciation and amortization, impairment charges and the tax
benefit under Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue Code. The tax benefit results from the dividend distribution
following receipt of the 2013 PLR. Under the definition of FFO, gain or loss from property transactions and
income or loss from partnerships are excluded from FFO. There were no other NAREIT defined FFO adjustments
contained in the operating results. 

We also present Company adjusted FFO (“AFFO”), which adjusts FFO for certain items which we believe are
non-recurring and not indicative of the operating results of our real estate portfolio. We believe this is an
appropriate presentation as it is frequently requested by security analysts, investors and other interested parties.
Since others do not calculate funds from operations in a similar fashion, AFFO may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures as reported by others. FFO and AFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income as
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an indicator of our operating performance or as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity. The
adjustments to FFO include condemnation costs in years where no income was recognized due to the contingency
of the event, early debt prepayment penalties, fees and related costs inclusive of any write-off of loan origination
fees, fees / costs related to the pursuit of strategic alternatives, incentive compensation plan costs and excise tax
triggered by the dividends, pension termination and related funding costs, costs triggered by the issuance of a
dividend and restructuring fees which were not incurred in the comparative periods, 2010 through 2013.
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The following table provides the reconciliation of net income to FFO and AFFO for the years ended December 31,
2010 through 2014, inclusive:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net (Loss) Income $(3,105,366) $46,055,205 $99,048,253 $(1,124,665) $(1,081,465)
Net income from condemnation - - 167,370,518 - -
Depreciation and amortization 969,571 953,725 900,095 876,101 803,725
Impairment charges 200,000 2,100,000 - - -
Amortization of capitalized leasing costs 90,937 73,854 60,253 69,074 43,829
Less Income tax (benefit) provision (696,710 ) (61,553,442) 61,649,000 - -
Funds from Operations (“FFO”) (2,541,568) (12,370,658) $(5,712,917 )* $(179,490 ) $(233,911 )

Company adjustments to FFO
Compensation related costs to employees
under the Incentive Compensation plan
triggered by the Special Dividend.

- 898,456 1,090,213 - -

Director fees under the Incentive
Compensation Plan triggered by the
Special Dividend

- 2,471,854 2,380,345 - -

Compensation and director fee related
costs under the Incentive Compensation
Plan to former employees and former
director that was vested prior to the
Special Dividend.

- 1,726,171 779,405 - -

Costs to pursue strategic alternatives 1,836,476 3,637,123 1,013,043 29,383 -
Nonrecurring Governance items relating
to ICP - 5,565 - - -

Excise tax (49,321 ) 3,521,320 - - -
Condemnation costs during period
income is not recognized - 2,360 - 333,308 109,354

Tax expense related to managing GSD 131,710 - - - -
Restructuring Fees 43,945 64,237 - - -
Pension expense recognized and
associated with distributions to former
employees following decision to
terminate the pension plan.

324,998 - - - -

Dividend note interest 749,004 - - - -
Amortization of dividend origination
costs 9,205 - - - -

Debt prepayment penalties and related
costs - 253,515 401,000 - -

Company adjusted Funds from
Operations (“AFFO”) $504,449 $209,943 $(48,911 ) $183,201 $(124,557 )
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the specific risks described
below before making an investment decision. See the section of this prospectus entitled “Where You Can Find More
Information.” Any of the risks we describe below could cause our business, financial condition, results of operations
or future prospects to be materially and adversely affected. The market price of our common stock could decline if one
or more of these risks and uncertainties develop into actual events and you could lose all or part of your investment.
Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations or future prospects. In addition,
some of the statements in this section of the prospectus are forward-looking statements. For more information about
forward-looking statements, see the section of this prospectus entitled “Cautionary Statement Concerning
Forward-Looking Information” above.

Risks Related to the Rights Offering

If we consummate the rights offering and you do not fully exercise your basic subscription privilege, your interest
in us will be diluted.  In addition, if you do not exercise your basic subscription privilege in full and the
subscription price is less than the market price of our common stock, then you would experience an immediate
dilution of the aggregate fair value of your shares, which could be substantial.

Assuming we consummate the rights offering and you do not choose to fully exercise your basic subscription
privilege, your proportionate voting interest and your percentage ownership interest in us will decrease.  In addition, if
you exercise your basic subscription privilege in full but do not exercise your over-subscription privilege in full and
other subscription rights holders fully exercise their basic and over-subscription privileges, the percentage of our
common stock owned by those other subscription rights holders will increase.  For example, if you own 14,827 shares
of common stock before the rights offering, or approximately 1.0% of our common stock, and you do not exercise any
of your basic or over-subscription privileges while all other subscription rights holders exercise their subscription
privileges in full, then your percentage ownership will be reduced from 1.0% to approximately 0.4%.  In addition, if
you do not exercise your basic subscription privilege in full and the subscription price is less than the market price of
our common stock, you would experience immediate dilution of the value of your shares relative to what your value
would have been had our common stock been issued at the market price.  This dilution could be substantial.

The subscription price determined for the rights offering is not necessarily an indication of the fair value of our
common stock.
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Our board of directors determined the terms of the rights offering, including the subscription price.  In determining the
subscription price, our board of directors considered a number of factors, including:

●the size and timing of the rights offering and the price at which our shareholders might be willing to participate in arights offering offered on a pro rata basis to all shareholders with an over-subscription privilege;
●subscription price discounts in similar rights offerings;
●our need for additional capital, liquidity and financial flexibility;

●the board’s perception of the value of the Contributed Properties and of the likelihood of consummating the Mergerwhen compared to the current market capitalization;
●current economic and financial market conditions;
●alternatives available for raising equity capital;
●historical and current trading prices for our common stock; and

●potential costs associated with pursuing development rights for the Flowerfield property, necessary capitalimprovements in the real estate portfolio and general operations.

The subscription price was established by our board of directors at a price of $2.75 per share.  The subscription price
is not necessarily related to our book value, results of operations, cash flows, financial condition or net worth or any
other established criteria of value and may or may not be considered the fair value of our common stock at the time
the rights offering was approved by our board of directors or during the rights offering period.  On May 11, 2015, the
closing sale price for our common stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market was $3.17 per share and traded at an
average closing price of $4.16 per share for the thirty trading day period ended May 11, 2015 and $4.08 per share for
the three-month period ended May 11, 2015.  On April 24, 2015, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the
subscription price, the closing sales price of our common stock was $4.25.  We retained the investment banking firm
of Coady Diemar Partners to provide financial advisory services to us in connection with the offering, including on the
issue of the subscription price. We cannot assure you that the trading price of our common stock will not decline
during or after the rights offering.  We also cannot assure you that you will be able to sell shares purchased in this
offering at a price equal to or greater than the subscription price.  We do not intend to change the subscription price in
response to changes in the trading price of our common stock prior to the closing of the rights offering.
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The rights offering may cause the price of our common stock to decline.

The subscription price of $2.75 per share is lower than the average of the closing sales prices of our common stock
over the thirty trading day period ended April 24, 2015, the last trading day prior to the announcement of the
subscription price.  On that day, the closing sales price of our common stock was $4.25.  The average of the closing
sales prices of our common stock over the thirty trading day period ended April 24, 2015 was $4.32 and the average
closing price for the three-month period ended April 24, 2015 was $4.09 per share.  The announcement of the rights
offering and its terms, including the subscription price, together with the number of shares of common stock we could
issue if this offering is completed, may result in an immediate decrease in the trading price of our common
stock.  This decrease may continue after the completion of the rights offering.  If that occurs, your purchase of shares
of our common stock in the rights offering may be at a price greater than the prevailing trading price.  Further,
assuming subscription rights for the full 2,224,020 shares are exercised in the rights offering and the holders of the
shares received upon exercise of those subscription rights choose to sell some or all of those shares, the resulting sales
could also depress the trading price of our common stock.

We may cancel the rights offering at any time prior to the expiration of the rights offering, and neither we nor the
subscription agent will have any obligation to you except to return your subscription payments.

We may, in our sole discretion, decide not to continue with the rights offering or decide to cancel the rights offering
prior to the expiration of the rights offering. If the rights offering is cancelled, we will issue a press release notifying
shareholders of the cancellation and all subscription payments received by the subscription agent will be returned,
without interest, as soon as practicable.

The rights offering does not have a minimum amount of proceeds or number of shares and there can be no
assurance that shareholders will choose to exercise their subscription rights, which means that we may not have
achieved our stated objective of facilitating the Merger and if you exercise your rights you may be investing in a
company that continues to desire additional capital.

There is no minimum amount of proceeds required to complete the rights offering. There can be no assurance that any
shareholders will exercise their subscription rights. All our directors (who are also shareholders) have indicated that
they will purchase shares that are subject to their subscription rights, and that they will exercise their over-subscription
privilege (if available), at the same subscription price offered to our shareholders. If they do so, their ownership
percentage may increase significantly if shareholders do not exercise basic subscription privileges with respect to a
significant number of shares. Nevertheless, these shareholders have not executed agreements to purchase shares and
there is no guarantee or commitment that they will subscribe for shares in the offering. In addition, all exercises of
subscription rights are irrevocable, even if you later learn information that you consider to be unfavorable to the
exercise of your subscription rights and even if the rights offering is extended by our board of directors. However, if
we amend the rights offering to allow for an extension of the rights offering for a period of more than 30 days or make
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a fundamental change to the terms of the rights offering set forth in this prospectus, you may cancel your subscription
and receive a refund of any subscription payments you have advanced. Also, one of the main reasons for conducting
this rights offering is to facilitate the Merger, because we believe that shareholders who purchase shares in this rights
offering may be more interested in the current structure of Gyrodyne and thus more likely to vote their shares on the
Merger proposal. Accordingly, if we do not sell enough shares, the rights offering will not have furthered this
objective. In addition, if you exercise the basic subscription privilege or the over-subscription privilege, but we do not
raise the desired amount of capital in this rights offering, you may be investing in a company that continues to desire
additional capital.
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We may amend or change the terms of the rights offering at any time prior to the expiration of the rights offering
in our sole discretion.

Our board of directors reserves the right to amend or change the terms of the rights offering in its sole discretion.
Although we do not presently intend to do so, we may choose to amend or change the terms of the rights offering for
any reason, including, without limitation, in order to increase participation in the rights offering.  Such amendments or
changes may include a change in the subscription price, although no such change is presently contemplated.  If we
should make any fundamental changes to the terms set forth in this prospectus, we will file a post-effective
amendment to the registration statement in which this prospectus is included, offer potential purchasers who have
subscribed for rights the opportunity to cancel such subscriptions and issue a refund of any money advanced by such
shareholder and recirculate an updated prospectus after the post-effective amendment is declared effective by the
SEC.  In addition, upon such event, we may extend the expiration date of this rights offering to allow holders of rights
ample time to make new investment decisions and for us to recirculate updated documentation.  Promptly following
any such occurrence, we will issue a press release announcing any changes with respect to this rights offering and the
new expiration date.  The terms of the rights offering cannot be amended or changed after the expiration date of the
rights offering.

Because you may not revoke or change your exercise of the subscription rights, you could be committed to buying
shares above the prevailing trading price at the time the rights offering is completed.

Once you exercise your subscription rights, you may not revoke or change the exercise.  The trading price of our
common stock may decline before the subscription rights expire.  If you exercise your subscription rights, and,
afterwards, the trading price of our common stock decreases below the $2.75 per share subscription price, you will
have committed to buying shares of our common stock at a price above the prevailing trading price and could have an
immediate unrealized loss.  There can be no assurances that the trading price of our common stock will equal or
exceed the subscription price at the time of exercise or at or after the expiration of the subscription rights offering
period.

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol, “GYRO”, and the closing sale price of
our common stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market on May 11, 2015 was $3.17 per share.

You may not be able to resell any shares of our common stock that you purchase pursuant to the exercise of
subscription rights immediately upon expiration of the subscription rights offering period or be able to sell your
shares at a price equal to or greater than the subscription price.
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If you exercise subscription rights, you may not be able to resell the common stock purchased by exercising your
subscription rights until you, or your broker, custodian bank or other nominee, if applicable, have received those
shares.  Moreover, you will have no rights as a shareholder of the shares you purchased in the rights offering until we
issue the shares to you.  Although we will endeavor to issue the shares as soon as practicable after completion of the
rights offering, including after all necessary calculations have been completed, there may be a delay between the
expiration date of the rights offering and the time that the shares are issued.  Additionally, as a result of our common
stock being thinly traded, we cannot assure you that following receipt of the common stock, the market will provide a
sufficient amount of buyers to enable you to sell a portion or all of the common stock at a price equivalent, above or
even below the price of the stock on the date the rights offering closed.

Because we will have broad discretion over the use of the net proceeds from the rights offering, you may not agree
with how we use the proceeds.

We intend to use the net proceeds received from the rights offering to pay accrued principal and interest on
outstanding dividend and payment-in-kind notes issued by Gyrodyne, to fulfill our obligation to provide a liquidity
facility to GSD, for pursuing development rights for the Flowerfield property, for necessary capital improvements in
GSD’s real estate portfolio which we manage, to fund any obligations under the Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc.
Pension Plan and for general working capital.  However, we may allocate the proceeds among these purposes in our
discretion.  Also, there is no minimum number of shares required to complete the rights offering, and the gross and net
proceeds could be considerably less than the $6,116,055 and $5,606,000, respectively, we would receive assuming full
subscription. In addition, economic and financial market conditions may require us to allocate portions of the net
proceeds for other purposes.  Accordingly, you will be relying on the judgment of our management with regard to the
use of proceeds from the rights offering, and you will not have the opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to
assess whether the proceeds are being used in a manner that you consider appropriate.  It is possible that the proceeds
will be used in a way that does not yield a favorable, or any, return for Gyrodyne.  See “Use of Proceeds.”
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If you do not act promptly and follow the subscription instructions, your exercise of subscription rights may be
rejected.

Subscription rights holders who desire to purchase shares in the rights offering must act promptly to ensure that all
required forms and payments are actually received by the subscription agent prior to the expiration date of the rights
offering.  If you are a beneficial owner of shares of our common stock, but not a record holder, you must act promptly
to ensure that your broker, dealer, custodian bank or other nominee acts for you and that all required forms and
payments are actually received by the subscription agent prior to the expiration of the rights offering period.  We are
not responsible if your broker, dealer, custodian bank or nominee fails to ensure that all required forms and payments
are actually received by the subscription agent prior to the expiration of the rights offering period.  If you fail to
complete and sign the required subscription forms, send an incorrect payment amount or otherwise fail to follow the
subscription procedures that apply to your exercise in the rights offering prior to the expiration of the rights offering
period, the subscription agent may, depending on the circumstances, reject your subscription or accept it only to the
extent of the payment received.  Neither we nor the subscription agent undertakes to contact you concerning, or
attempt to correct, an incomplete or incorrect subscription form or payment.  We have the sole discretion to determine
whether the exercise of your subscription rights properly and timely follows the subscription procedures.

Because the subscription rights are non-transferable, there is no market for the subscription rights.

You may not sell, transfer or assign your subscription rights to anyone else, and we do not intend to list the
subscription rights on the NASDAQ Capital Market, any other stock exchange or the OTC Bulletin Board.  The
subscription rights are only transferable by operation of law.  Because the subscription rights are non-transferable,
there is no market or other means for you to directly realize any value associated with the subscription rights.  You
must exercise the subscription rights and acquire shares of our common stock to realize any value that may be
embedded in the subscription rights.

The price of our common stock is volatile and may decline before or after the subscription rights expire.

The market price of our common stock is subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, including
factors that have little or nothing to do with us or our performance, and these fluctuations could materially reduce our
stock price.  These factors include, among other things, actual or anticipated variations in our operating results and
cash flow, risks and uncertainties relating to the Plan of Liquidation, the Plan of Merger and the respective
transactions contemplated thereby, the nature and content of our competitors’ earnings releases, business conditions in
our markets, the general state of the securities markets and the market for similar stocks, changes in capital markets
that affect the perceived availability of capital to companies in our industry, governmental legislation or regulation, as
well as general economic and market conditions.  In addition, the stock market historically has experienced significant
price and volume fluctuations.  These fluctuations are often unrelated to the operating performance of particular
companies.  These broad market fluctuations may cause declines in the market price of our common stock.
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Risks Associated with the Plan of Liquidation and Plan of Merger

On June 5, 2014, Gyrodyne announced that a special meeting of Gyrodyne shareholders would be held on August 14,
2014 to authorize the Merger. Under New York law, the affirmative vote of holders of at least two-thirds of our
outstanding shares is required to approve the Merger. Gyrodyne postponed the special meeting, first to August 27,
2014 and then to December 5, 2014, to allow additional time for shareholders to vote on the Merger. Although the
shares that were voted in these previous attempts to conduct the special meeting were overwhelmingly voted in favor
of the Merger, not enough shares were voted to achieve the two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote requirement.
Accordingly, on November 4, 2014, Gyrodyne announced a further postponement of the special meeting until the first
half of 2015. Given the small size of holdings of many Gyrodyne shareholders and the nature of various holders, we
believe many holders may not have paid enough attention to the Merger to exercise their right to vote. The board
believes, however, that shareholders who would exercise their subscription rights in the rights offering may be more
interested in the current structure of Gyrodyne and thus more likely to desire completion of the Merger. If all rights in
the rights offering are exercised and all of the shares issuable upon exercise of the rights are sold in this offering, there
will be 3,706,700 shares outstanding and holders of at least 2,471,134 shares will need to vote in favor of the Merger
to satisfy the two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote requirement. Gyrodyne intends to conduct the special meeting
to authorize the Merger as soon as reasonably possible after the consummation of the rights offering.
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This prospectus is not to be considered material to solicit proxies or deemed an offer to sell the Gyrodyne, LLC
equity interests (“Gyrodyne, LLC Shares”), which solicitation and offer will only be made through a definitive
proxy statement/prospectus relating to the Merger and the issuance of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. Gyrodyne
filed definitive proxy materials with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on July 1, 2014 with
respect to the Plan of Merger. If our board determines to try again to hold the special meeting to authorize the
Plan of Merger, which is our current intention, Gyrodyne will solicit proxies through such definitive proxy
statement or, if necessary, a post-effective amendment thereto.

There are risks and uncertainties associated with the Plan of Liquidation generally.

There are a number of risks and uncertainties relating to the Plan of Liquidation (including those associated with the
proposed Merger and the respective transactions contemplated thereby). For example:

●the transactions may not be consummated (including as a result of a legal injunction) or may not be consummated ascurrently anticipated;
●there can be no assurance that approval of our shareholders for the Merger will be obtained;

●
there can be no assurance other conditions relating to implementation of the Merger will be satisfied or waived or
that other events will not intervene to delay or result in our board of directors rescinding the Plan of Liquidation or
terminating the Plan of Merger;

●
if the transactions are not completed, the share price of shares of common stock may change to the extent that the
current market price of Gyrodyne shares reflects an assumption that the transactions contemplated by the Plan of
Liquidation and the Plan of Merger will be consummated;

●
we are incurring and may continue to incur significant costs arising from efforts to engage in the transactions
contemplated by the Plan of Liquidation and the Plan of Merger, and these efforts may not result in the successful
completion of such transactions;

●

even if the transactions contemplated by the Plan of Liquidation and the Plan of Merger are consummated; achieving
the anticipated benefits of the transactions is subject to a number of uncertainties. Failure to achieve anticipated
benefits could result in increased costs and could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations and the value of Gyrodyne to our shareholders;

●
we may continue to incur difficulties in preserving the commercially sensitive confidential information that we may
need to disclose to other persons during this process.  If we are unable to effectively manage these risks, our
business, financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected. 

The allocation of Gyrodyne, LLC Shares to be issued in the Merger to Gyrodyne shareholders, GSD Interest
holders and holders of interests in dividend notes is subject to adjustment in the discretion of the Gyrodyne board
of directors up to 10 days prior to the special meeting at which shareholders will be asked to vote on the Merger.

If the Merger is approved and consummated, Gyrodyne and GSD would merge into Gyrodyne, LLC, and Gyrodyne
shares and the GSD Interests issued in the First Special Dividend would be converted into, and the Dividend Note
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issued as the Second Special Dividend and certain other notes issued by Gyrodyne would be redeemed for, Gyrodyne,
LLC Shares. The Plan of Merger originally provided that holders of Gyrodyne shares will receive approximately
15.2% of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares in the aggregate, holders of interests in the Dividend Note ($16,150,000 principal
amount) would receive approximately 29.2% of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares in the aggregate, and holders of GSD
Interests would receive approximately 55.6% of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares in the aggregate. The Plan of Merger also
provides, however, that the foregoing allocations are subject to adjustment in the discretion of the Gyrodyne board of
directors. The board of directors determined the foregoing allocations based on the relative values it attributed to the
three categories of securities that will be exchanged or redeemed for Gyrodyne, LLC Shares, namely the assumed pro
forma book value of Gyrodyne of $8,450,000 (approximately $5.70 per share), the principal amount of the Dividend
Note ($16,150,000 or $10.89 per share) and the fair market value of GSD Interests as determined by our board
($30,685,000 or $20.70 per share). 
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At a board of directors meeting held on April 24, 2015, our directors determined to adjust the allocation of common
shares of Gyrodyne, LLC to be issued pursuant to the Merger to account for certain developments since such
allocations were originally set in December 2013. Assuming the full exercise of the subscription rights in the rights
offering, the common shares of Gyrodyne, LLC to be issued in the Merger will be allocated as follows:

●Approximately 22.6% in the aggregate to Gyrodyne shareholders;

●Approximately 30.0% in the aggregate to holders of interests in dividend notes issued by Gyrodyne in the aggregateprincipal amount of $17,533,000 (the “Dividend Notes”); and

●Approximately 47.4% in the aggregate to holders of common shares of GSD.

Gyrodyne’s board of directors determined the foregoing allocation adjustments based on the increase in the adjusted
net book value of Gyrodyne shares due to the rights offering and the anticipated net proceeds to Gyrodyne of
$5,606,000 from the rights offering, assuming all 2,224,020 shares are sold. In addition, the allocation reflects
adjusted net book value, face value and “fair value” (based on appraised values of underlying properties owned by GSD,
less liabilities) of Gyrodyne, the Dividend Notes and GSD, respectively, in each case as of December 31, 2014. This
methodology is consistent with the valuation metrics used to determine the original allocations in December, 2013.

It is possible that the Gyrodyne board of directors may make further adjustments to the foregoing allocations prior to
the shareholders meeting at which shareholders will be asked to vote on the Merger to the extent any developments
materially impact the relative values of Gyrodyne, the Dividend Notes and GSD, including without limitation, any
material shortfall in the number of shares actually sold in the rights offering from the maximum number of shares
offered. Any such further allocation adjustments will be announced via press release, a copy of which will be filed
with the SEC under cover of a Current Report on Form 8-K, issued and filed at least ten days prior to the shareholders
meeting at which shareholders will be asked to vote on the Merger. In addition, in carrying out its fiduciary
obligations to Gyrodyne and its shareholders, its legal obligations to GSD and its contractual obligations to the holders
of interests in the Dividend Notes, our board of directors may face situations where there may be a conflict among the
interests of Gyrodyne’s shareholders, GSD’s shareholders and the Dividend Notes interest holders.

If our shareholders do not authorize the Plan of Merger, it may be difficult for us to continue our business
operations.

Our board adopted the Plan of Liquidation, pursuant to which we intend to dispose of our remaining assets in an
orderly manner designed to obtain the best reasonably available value for such assets and to complete the Tax
Liquidation. In the event that the Plan of Merger is not approved by the shareholders, we will continue our business
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operations as a self-managed and self-administered REIT and continue to act as the managing member of GSD. In
light of our announced intent to liquidate and the impact of the Special Dividend, prospective employees, suppliers,
tenants and other third parties may be less likely to form relationships or conduct business with us if they do not
believe we will continue to operate as a going concern.  

We cannot assure you of the exact timing and amount of any further distributions to our shareholders under the
Plan of Liquidation.

Although consummation of the Merger will complete the Tax Liquidation, our board currently intends that, if the
Merger is consummated, Gyrodyne, LLC will operate with a business plan to dispose of its current real property assets
in an orderly manner designed to obtain the best value reasonably available for such assets. The liquidation process is
subject to numerous uncertainties, may fail to create value for our shareholders and may not result in any remaining
proceeds for distribution to our shareholders. The precise nature and timing of any distribution to our shareholders
subsequent to the Merger, if consummated, will depend on and could be delayed by, among other things, sales of our
real estate assets, claim settlements with creditors, resolution of outstanding litigation matters, payment of incentive
bonuses to employees, directors and former employees and a former director who were vested under the Incentive
Compensation Plan and unanticipated or greater-than-expected expenses. Examples of uncertainties that could reduce
the value of or eliminate distributions to our shareholders include unanticipated costs relating to:

●failure to achieve favorable values for our properties in their disposition;

●the defense, satisfaction or settlement of lawsuits or other claims that may be made or threatened against us in thefuture; and
●delays in our liquidation, including due to our inability to settle claims.

As a result, we cannot determine with certainty the amount or timing of distributions to our shareholders or to holders
of Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. 
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Our board may abandon or delay implementation of the Plan of Liquidation or the Plan of Merger even if the Plan
of Merger is authorized by our shareholders.

Even if the Merger pursuant to the Plan of Merger is authorized by our shareholders, our board has reserved the right,
in its discretion, to abandon or delay implementation of the transactions contemplated thereby and by the Plan of
Liquidation, in order, for example, to permit us to pursue new strategic opportunities.

If our Common Stock were delisted from NASDAQ, shareholders may find it difficult to dispose of their shares.

If our common stock or, subsequent to the Merger, Gyrodyne, LLC Shares were to be delisted from NASDAQ,
trading of our common stock or, subsequent to the Merger, Gyrodyne, LLC Shares most likely will be conducted in
the over-the-counter market on an electronic bulletin board established for unlisted securities such as the Pink Sheets
or the OTC Bulletin Board. Such trading will reduce the market liquidity of our common stock or, subsequent to the
Merger, Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. As a result, an investor would find it more difficult to dispose of, or obtain accurate
quotations for the price of, our common stock or, subsequent to the Merger, Gyrodyne, LLC Shares.

If the Plan of Merger is not authorized, the board may decide to pursue the Plan of Liquidation in another manner.

If the Plan of Merger is not approved, the board may determine not to withdraw the Plan of Liquidation but to
continue to pursue a tax liquidation by other means, including dissolution under New York law or a merger under
different terms than those set forth in the Plan of Merger. In such event, Gyrodyne may suffer from a period of
uncertainty while any necessary shareholder approval is obtained, costs of the liquidation may increase, and
shareholders may be delayed in their receipt of liquidation proceeds and the amount of such proceeds may be reduced
significantly.

We may not be able to settle all of our obligations to creditors at the amount we have estimated.

We have current and may incur future obligations to creditors. Our estimated distribution to shareholders takes into
account all of our known obligations and our best estimate of the amount reasonably required to satisfy such
obligations. As part of the wind-down process, we will attempt to settle those obligations with our creditors. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to settle all of these obligations for the amount we have estimated for purposes
of calculating the likely distribution to shareholders. If we are unable to reach an agreement with a creditor relating to
an obligation, that creditor may bring a lawsuit against us. Amounts required to settle obligations or defend lawsuits in
excess of the amounts estimated by us will reduce the amount of remaining proceeds available for distribution to
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shareholders.

Our shareholders may be liable to our creditors for an amount up to the amount distributed by us if our reserves
for payments to creditors are inadequate.

In the event our shareholders receive funds by means of the Special Dividend or as distributions from Gyrodyne, LLC
and there are not left sufficient funds to pay any creditors who seek payment of claims against Gyrodyne, shareholders
(or holders of Gyrodyne, LLC Shares) could be held liable for payments made to them and could be required to return
all or a part of distributions made to them.

There will be adverse tax consequences to Gyrodyne and to its shareholders if we fail to complete the Tax
Liquidation within two years after adoption of the Plan of Liquidation

If Gyrodyne does not complete the Tax Liquidation prior to September 12, 2015 (the two year anniversary of the
adoption of the Plan of Liquidation), the Board of Directors expects to withdraw the Plan of Liquidation, in which
case all prior distributions made pursuant to the Plan of Liquidation will be treated to shareholders as taxable dividend
income (generally subject to the highest marginal federal income tax rates and not the reduced rates applicable to
“qualified dividend income” in the case of U.S. shareholders, and to 30% withholding tax in the case of non-U.S.
investors) to the extent of Gyrodyne’s current or accumulated earnings and profits, rather than as non-taxable returns of
capital and/or capital gains as would be the case if the Tax Liquidation is completed. Gyrodyne’s failure to complete
the Tax Liquidation will therefore cause taxable shareholders to incur, on a retroactive basis, a significantly larger
U.S. federal income tax liability than if the Tax Liquidation were completed. In addition, any previously filed tax
returns on which such distributions were reflected would be incorrect, and thus, in order to properly report the
consequences of such distributions, shareholders would be required to amend such tax returns and pay any additional
taxes with interest and applicable penalties. Other adverse tax consequences may also result for shareholders.
Shareholders are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the adverse reporting and other tax consequences to
them if Gyrodyne does not complete the Tax Liquidation.
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In addition, Gyrodyne itself could be subject to adverse tax consequences if the Tax Liquidation is not completed. For
example, in connection with the change in the character of the distributions, Gyrodyne may be subject to taxes,
interest, and penalties as a result of its failure to properly withhold on dividend distributions to non-U.S. investors or
its failure to make certain designations or elections that normally do not apply with respect to liquidating distributions.
In addition, Gyrodyne has provided information returns to the IRS and to its shareholders, and has filed its own
corporate tax returns, on the basis that each of the First Special Dividend and the Second Special Dividend were
liquidating distributions. Gyrodyne will be required to issue corrected information returns to shareholders, as well as
to amend its own tax returns, and will be subject to IRS penalties with respect to the previously provided incorrect
information and other returns except to the extent it is able to qualify for “reasonable cause” exemptions from penalties
in certain circumstances. No assurance can be given that Gyrodyne will be able to qualify for such exemptions.

A number of obstacles could prevent Gyrodyne from completing the Tax Liquidation. Under New York law, the
affirmative vote of holders of at least two-thirds of our outstanding shares is required to approve the Merger.
Gyrodyne has previously called for a special meeting three times to have a vote on the Plan of Merger and has been
forced to postpone the special meeting three times, most recently until the first half of 2015, because of an inability to
secure the requisite two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote. Although the shares that were voted in these previous
attempts to conduct the special meeting were overwhelmingly voted in favor of the Merger, not enough shares were
voted to achieve the two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote requirement. On March 6, 2015, Gyrodyne filed a
registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for a rights offering to its existing shareholders
to facilitate the two-thirds vote. There can be no assurance that the rights offering will be successful or that
shareholders will approve the Merger prior to September 12, 2015. Also, on July 3, 2014, a purported shareholder of
Gyrodyne filed a putative class action lawsuit against Gyrodyne and members of its board of directors seeking, among
other things, injunctive relief enjoining the Merger and the other transactions relating to the Plan of Liquidation. The
court scheduled a preliminary conference in the case, which has been adjourned until September 14, 2015.
Accordingly, no assurance can be given that we will be able to complete the Tax Liquidation and thereby avoid the
significant adverse tax consequences described above for Gyrodyne and its shareholders.

If the Plan of Merger is authorized, but the Merger does not occur, shareholders may not be able to recognize a
loss in their Common Stock for federal income tax purposes until they receive a final distribution from us, which
may be up to two years after our adoption of the Plan of Liquidation.

In general, if our shareholders approve the proposal to authorize the Plan of Merger, a shareholder will recognize, for
federal income tax purposes, gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the sum of the amount of cash and the fair
market value of other property distributed to such shareholder in the Special Dividend and in any other distributions
we may make pursuant to the Tax Liquidation, whether by merger or otherwise, and (ii) such shareholder’s adjusted
tax basis in its shares of common stock. Liquidating distributions pursuant to the Plan of Liquidation and/or Plan of
Merger may occur at various times and in more than one tax year. Any gain will be recognized in such year(s) when
the shareholder receives a distribution that, in the aggregate with all other distributions received pursuant to the Tax
Liquidation, whether by merger or otherwise, is in excess of the shareholder’s basis in its shares of common stock; loss
will be recognized only in the year in which the final distribution to the shareholder is made, and only if the
shareholder has not received distributions equal to the shareholder’s basis in its shares of common stock. The tax
treatment for non-U.S. shareholders may differ from that described above. Shareholders are urged to consult their tax
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advisors as to the specific tax consequences to them of a Tax Liquidation pursuant to the Plan of Liquidation and/or
Plan of Merger.

Risks Relating to our Business and our Company

We no longer own our properties, and there could be conflicts between our shareholders and holders of GSD
Interests.

Shareholders of Gyrodyne who sold their shares in Gyrodyne on or following December 31, 2013, the ex-dividend
date of the First Special Dividend, will continue to hold their GSD Interests indefinitely because such interests are
generally non-transferable. Accordingly, conflicts could arise between shareholders of Gyrodyne and those holders of
GSD Interests who no longer hold shares in Gyrodyne. Under GSD’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement (the “LLC Agreement”), Gyrodyne has sole authority as GSD’s managing member to manage the
affairs of GSD. Gyrodyne was also obligated to provide an initial liquidity facility to GSD, in such amount up to $2.5
million as Gyrodyne may determine from time to time, in order to permit GSD to conduct its operations. During the
third quarter of 2014, our board authorized an increase in the liquidity facility to $3.5 million, and in January 2015 our
board authorized a further increase to $5.5 million. On December 24, 2014, Gyrodyne and GSD entered into a
management services agreement (the “Management Services Agreement”) pursuant to which Gyrodyne agreed to
continue providing management services to GSD under substantially the same terms previously provided under the
management provisions contained in the LLC Agreement. In carrying out its obligations under the Management
Services Agreement, Gyrodyne may face situations where there may be a conflict between what is in the best interest
of Gyrodyne and what is in the best interest of GSD. There also may be conflicts in setting transfer pricing between
Gyrodyne and GSD. Finally, holders of GSD Interests who no longer own shares in Gyrodyne will not be entitled to
vote at the special meeting that Gyrodyne intends to call in order to vote upon the Plan of Merger. See
“Business--Management Services Agreement”. 
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Pension Plan liabilities could impair our liquidity or financial condition.

On November 25, 2013, Gyrodyne’s board of directors determined that it was advisable and to the advantage, welfare
and best interests of Gyrodyne to terminate the Pension Plan as of February 28, 2014. Pursuant to our board of
directors’ decision, Gyrodyne froze benefits and additional participation as of December 23, 2013 and is seeking an
IRS determination letter to complete the termination. Gyrodyne will be required to distribute all assets of the Pension
Plan to its participants within 120 days following receipt of the determination letter from the IRS regarding the
termination of the Pension Plan. Based on the current assets and liabilities of the Pension Plan on a termination basis,
Gyrodyne expects to be required to fund additional amounts to complete the termination and liquidation of the
Pension Plan. The exact amount of this funding obligation has not yet been determined.

The Pension Plan is considered to be a defined benefit pension plan for accounting purposes. If a defined benefit
pension plan is terminated without being fully funded on a termination basis, the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation, or PBGC, could obtain a lien on the sponsor company’s assets for the amount of this liability. The
measurement of our obligations, costs and liabilities associated with benefits pursuant to the Pension Plan requires that
we estimate the present value of projected future payments to all participants, including assumptions related to
discount rates, investment returns on designated plan assets and demographic experience. Our liability to the Pension
Plan will be equal to the amount by which the liabilities of the Pension Plan, calculated on a termination basis, exceed
the assets of the Pension Plan. As a result of the termination of the Pension Plan, Gyrodyne may have to make
additional contributions to the Pension Plan to satisfy obligations due and payable to its participants. The exact
amount of that funding obligation is not known at this time.

We may be the potential target of a reverse acquisition or other acquisition prior to or after the Merger.

Until the Merger, we will continue to exist as a public company. Public companies that exist with limited operations
have from time to time been the target of “reverse” acquisitions, meaning acquisitions of public companies by private
companies in order to bypass the costly and time-intensive registration process to become publicly traded companies.
In addition, we could become an acquisition target, through a hostile tender offer or other means, as a result of our
cash holdings or for other reasons. In the event of an acquisition bid other than through a hostile tender offer, approval
of the acquisition would be subject to our board of directors and/or shareholder approval. On August 8, 2014, we
extended the expiration date of our shareholder rights plan, which would significantly dilute the ownership of a hostile
acquirer and may have the effect of lengthening the time required for a person to acquire control of us through a proxy
contest or the election of a majority of our board of directors, may deter efforts to obtain control of us and may make
it more difficult for a third party to acquire us without negotiation. If we become the target of a successful acquisition,
notwithstanding the shareholder authorization of the Plan of Merger, our board of directors could potentially decide
either to delay or completely abandon the Merger, and our shareholders may not receive any proceeds that would have
otherwise been distributed in connection with the liquidation and may receive less than they would have received in
the liquidation.
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Following the Merger, Gyrodyne, LLC similarly could become an acquisition target, which would delay or prevent
the liquidation of its assets, thereby potentially delaying or reducing any proceeds that would have otherwise been
distributed in connection with the liquidation.

Our directors and executive officers may have interests that are different from, or in addition to, those of our
shareholders generally.

Our board and executive officers may have interests in the Plan of Liquidation that may be in addition to, or different
from, your interests as a shareholder. In connection with the Plan of Liquidation, some of our executive officers will
be entitled to receive severance benefits and other payments for health insurance. In addition, following the Merger,
our directors and executive officers will be entitled to continuing indemnification and liability insurance. For a more
detailed discussion of the interests of our management, see page 80 of this prospectus .

As described on page 78 of this prospectus, on May 30, 2014 the board of directors of Gyrodyne adopted a retention
bonus plan for the benefit of directors, officers and employees of Gyrodyne. See “page 78 —  Retention Bonus Plan.”
The plan was intended to recognize the nature and scope of the responsibilities related to such business plan, to reward
and incent performance in connection therewith, to align the interests of directors, executives and employees with our
shareholders and to retain such persons during the term of such plan. As the funding for such plan will reduce the
amounts otherwise available to GSD, or, subsequent to the Merger, holders of Gyrodyne, LLC Shares, a conflict of
interest between such holders and the beneficiaries of the retention bonus plan could be deemed to exist.
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We will continue to incur the expenses of complying with public company reporting requirements.

We have an obligation to continue to comply with the applicable reporting requirements of the Exchange Act. Even if
we proceed with the Plan of Merger and it is approved, it is anticipated that Gyrodyne, LLC will continue to be
subject to such requirements during the period its assets are liquidated even though compliance with such reporting
requirements involves time and expense. 

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation, our by-laws, our shareholder rights plan and New York law could
make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, discourage a takeover and adversely affect existing
shareholders.

Provisions contained in our certificate of incorporation, our by-laws, our shareholder rights plan and New York law
may have an anti-takeover effect that may delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt and thereby prevent shareholders
from receiving a “control premium” for their shares.  For example, these provisions may defer or prevent tender offers
for our common stock or purchases of large blocks of our common stock, thus limiting the opportunities for our
shareholders to receive a premium for their common stock over then-prevailing market prices.

These provisions include the following:

●
Staggered board.   Our board is divided into three classes with each director generally serving for a three-year
term.  This staggering of the board may discourage offers for Gyrodyne or make an acquisition of Gyrodyne more
difficult, even when an acquisition is in the best interest of our shareholders.

●

New York anti-takeover statute.   Under New York’s anti-takeover statute, any person who acquires 20% or more of
our common stock is prohibited from engaging in a business combination with us for five years unless the board has
approved (i) the particular business combination or (ii) the stock purchase that put the shareholder over the 20%
threshold.

●Shareholder rights plan.  In 2004, we adopted a shareholder rights plan intended to deter a hostile takeover by
making any proposed hostile acquisition of us more expensive and less desirable to a potential acquirer.  If a person
or group acquires or announces an intention to acquire 20% or more of our outstanding common stock, each right
holder (other than the acquiring person) would be entitled to purchase, at the then-current exercise price, such
number of shares of our common stock which are equivalent to shares of common stock having a value of twice the
exercise price of the right.  If we are acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction after any such

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

64



20% threshold event, each right holder would then be entitled to purchase, at the then-current exercise price, shares
of the acquiring company’s common stock having a value of twice the exercise price of the right. The shareholder
rights plan could delay or discourage transactions involving an actual or potential change in control of us, including
transactions in which shareholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current prices. On
August 8, 2014, we extended the expiration date of the shareholder rights plan from August 11, 2014 to August 11,
2015.

Provisions of Gyrodyne, LLC’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, including its
classified board and 20% ownership limitation could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire Gyrodyne,
LLC, discourage a takeover and adversely affect its members.

Gyrodyne, LLC’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement contains certain provisions that may
have the effect of making more difficult, delaying, or deterring attempts by others to obtain control of Gyrodyne,
LLC, even when these attempts may be in the best interests of its members. These include provisions on maintaining a
classified board, limiting members’ powers to remove directors and an ownership limitation that prohibits members
from holding Gyrodyne, LLC Shares representing in excess of 20% of the outstanding Gyrodyne, LLC Shares at any
time. These provisions and others that could be adopted in the future may have the effect of discouraging unsolicited
takeover proposals and therefore may delay or prevent a change of control not approved by Gyrodyne, LLC’s board or
may delay or prevent changes in Gyrodyne, LLC’s control or management, including transactions in which holders of
Gyrodyne, LLC Shares might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current market prices.
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Our incentive compensation plan, provisions in our executive officers’ employment agreements and our retention
bonus plan may make a change of control of our company and/or an acquisition of our owned or managed assets
more costly.

Benefits under Gyrodyne’s incentive compensation plan (the “ICP”) are realized upon either a change-in-control (as
defined in the ICP) of Gyrodyne, or upon the issuance by Gyrodyne of an excess dividend (as defined in the ICP)
following certain asset sales. The ICP provides that payments made in connection with an excess dividend may not
exceed the hypothetical ICP payments that would have been made had there instead been a change in control
transaction consummated on the dividend payment date. The ICP payments that would have been made had there been
a Change in Control transaction consummated on December 30, 2013, the payment date of the $98,685,000 First
Special Dividend, were approximately $5,277,800. The ICP payments actually made in respect of the $68,000,000
cash portion of the First Special Dividend totaled $5,044,600. Consequently, remaining ICP payments to be made in
connection with the First Special Dividend when and to the extent GSD holders, or following the Merger Gyrodyne,
LLC holders, receive cash in respect of their interests, may not exceed $233,200 ($5,277,800 -
$5,044,600).  Liquidation proceeds that otherwise would be available to our shareholders generally will be reduced by
the foregoing benefit to be paid to participants in the plan.  Moreover, inasmuch as the rights under the plan are
vested, there is a risk that individual participants may elect to terminate their employment with Gyrodyne, or in the
case of directors resigned from the board, without forfeiting their general right to receive benefits under the plan.
Frederick C. Braun III and Gary Fitlin, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, are not
participants in the plan.

Our employment agreements with Mr. Braun and Mr. Fitlin provide for a bonus equal to $125,000 payable if the
executive is employed by Gyrodyne on the effective date of a change-in-control.  Under such agreements, a
change-in-control means the first to occur of a change in ownership, in effective control or in the ownership of a
substantial portion of the assets of Gyrodyne, as each such term is defined under Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and its corresponding regulations. In addition, each agreement provides that if
the executive is terminated without cause (as defined in the employment agreement), the executive is entitled to a
payment equal to the change-in-control bonus ($125,000) and, if the executive signs a separation agreement in
reasonable and customary form provided by, and acceptable to, Gyrodyne, severance pay equal to base salary for six
months from the date of termination.

On May 30, 2014, our board of directors adopted a retention bonus plan for the benefit of directors, officers and
employees of Gyrodyne. See “page 78 — Retention Bonus Plan.” The plan was intended to recognize the nature and scope
of the responsibilities related to our business plan, to reward and incent performance in connection therewith, to align
the interests of directors, executives and employees with our shareholders and to retain such persons during the term
of such plan. If the Merger does not occur, GSD will reimburse, under the terms of the Management Services
Agreement, 100% (without mark-up) of any bonuses (under the retention bonus plan or otherwise) paid by Gyrodyne
to its employees and directors and related payroll taxes on account of any sales of the Contributed Properties. If the
Merger does occur, the funding for such plan will reduce the amounts otherwise payable to holders of Gyrodyne, LLC
Shares.
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We may not be able to deduct for tax purposes as an operating expense a portion or all of the above amounts paid to
the executives.

The foregoing provisions may make a change of control of Gyrodyne and any post-Merger sale of assets, even if it is
in the best interests of our shareholders, more costly and may reduce the amounts our shareholders would receive in
any such transaction.

The corporate structure and interrelationships of Gyrodyne and GSD present risks of conflicts between the entities
and their equity holders as long as they are operated as separate entities.

As a result of the First Special Dividend, Gyrodyne’s taxable REIT subsidiary, Flowerfield Properties Inc. (“FPI”), has
been managing GSD, initially pursuant to the terms of GSD’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement, and since December 24, 2014 pursuant to the terms of the Management Services Agreement. Pursuant to
the Management Services Agreement, FPI provides GSD with acquisition and disposition services, asset management
services, accounting and other administrative services, property management services and shareholder services. In
consideration for these services, GSD reimburses FPI for 85% of FPI’s general and administrative expenses and pays
FPI a fee equal to 8.5% of such reimbursed amount; reimburses FPI for all rental expenses, whether value added (such
as contractor and consultant expenses) or non-value added (such as utilities and taxes) paid by FPI in respect of the
properties; pays FPI a fee equal to 8.5% of all value added rental expenses paid by FPI in respect of the properties (but
no fee in respect of non-value added rental expenses); reimburses FPI for 100% (without mark-up) of any bonuses
paid by FPI or Gyrodyne to its employees and directors and related payroll taxes on account of any sales of GSD
properties; and pays interest to Gyrodyne at the rate of 5.0% per annum on any funds advanced by Gyrodyne to GSD
pursuant to a liquidity facility, currently of up to $5.5 million. 
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In carrying out Gyrodyne’s and FPI’s obligations under GSD’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement or the Management Services Agreement, there may be instances where a conflict could arise between what
is in the best interest of Gyrodyne and what is in the best interest of GSD. Although such agreements establish
applicable standards, there also may be actual or perceived conflicts between Gyrodyne and GSD in establishing
actual compensation and reimbursement under those standards. Gyrodyne shareholders who sold their shares on or
following the ex-dividend date of the First Special Dividend will continue to hold their GSD Interests indefinitely
because such interests are generally non-transferable. Accordingly, conflicts between Gyrodyne and GSD could result
in conflicts between Gyrodyne shareholders and those holders of GSD Interests who no longer hold Gyrodyne shares.

Conflicts of interest may exist between the shareholders of Gyrodyne and the holders of Dividend Notes.

Although holders of the Dividend Note and the 2014 Dividend Note were shareholders of Gyrodyne as of the
December 31, 2013 and September 26, 2014 respective record dates for the Dividend Notes, as a result of transfers of
shares of Gyrodyne common stock subsequent to such dates, there now exists certain disparities between the holders
of the Dividend Notes and the holders of shares of Gyrodyne common stock. As the Dividend Notes represent debt
obligations of Gyrodyne and the shares are equity of Gyrodyne, the Dividend Notes are entitled to priority in the
distribution of assets of Gyrodyne. If GSD sold properties and repaid mortgage and liquidity facility debt to
Gyrodyne, the board of directors of Gyrodyne would have to determine whether to redeem or repurchase Dividend
Notes or retain the cash proceeds of the mortgage debt for other uses. In addition, if the Merger is not completed and
Gyrodyne continues as an operating entity, future changes in operating results, whether accretive or dilutive, may
result in changes to its equity value.

Risks associated with our investment in Callery-Judge Grove, L.P.

We own approximately 10.12% limited partnership interest in Callery Judge Grove, L.P., a New York limited
partnership, which owned a 3,700+ acre citrus grove located in Palm Beach County, Florida. The property is the
subject of a plan for a mixed use of residential, commercial, and industrial development which is under review by
state and local municipal authorities. We face several risks inherent in ownership of a minority interest in a limited
partnership.

We account for the investment under the equity method. As of December 31, 2014, the carrying value of our
investment was $0. We cannot predict what, if any, value we will ultimately realize from this investment.

On March 18, 2011, the Grove’s lender, Prudential Industrial Properties, LLC (“Prudential”), commenced a foreclosure
action against the Grove by filing a complaint in the Circuit Court of Palm Beach County to foreclose upon the Grove
property, alleging that the Grove had defaulted on its loan from Prudential and that the Grove is indebted to Prudential
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in the amount of over $37 million in principal and over $8 million in interest and fees. We are a limited partner in the
Grove but are not a guarantor of any debt related to the Grove. Our investment is held in a taxable REIT subsidiary
where we had a $1,315,000 deferred tax liability related to the Grove which represented taxable losses not yet
recorded pursuant to the equity method of accounting. Following certain taxable gains received in 2014 which were
offset by prior losses that were not yet recorded, the Company reversed the deferred tax liability in total in 2014 and
recorded a current tax liability of approximately $618,000 and a tax benefit of $697,000, accordingly.

On September 19, 2013, the Grove property was sold, the foreclosure lawsuit was dismissed and the Grove property
was conveyed to Minto Florida Developments, LLC (“Minto”), a family-owned real estate development, construction
and management company, and the Grove’s debt to Prudential was repaid. Our investment continues to be held in a
taxable REIT subsidiary of Gyrodyne with $0 carrying value but no longer has a deferred tax liability. We recognized
a $618,000 deferred tax liability and a tax benefit for the balance of the 2013 deferred taxes of $697,000. The
$618,000 represents the tax effect of taxable income in the current year in excess of taxable losses in prior years not
yet recorded pursuant to the equity method of accounting. Gyrodyne did not receive any distribution in connection
with the sale of the Grove property. Under the agreement with Minto, however, the Grove may receive certain
additional payments if certain development benchmarks are achieved by Minto, which could enable future
distributions to Gyrodyne. Gyrodyne cannot predict whether these benchmarks will be achieved or as to the timing or
amount of any further distributions by the Grove.

We are limited in our ability to transfer our interest in the Grove; our interest can only be assigned or transferred upon
the terms and conditions set forth in the limited partnership agreement.  Those restrictions may at times preclude a
transfer of our interest.  We may not transfer our interest without prior written notice to, and receiving consent in
writing and at the sole discretion of the Grove’s managing partner.  The transferor must also provide the Grove’s
managing partner on request an opinion of counsel that the transfer will not violate any securities, tax or other laws or
rules and will not affect the tax status or treatment of the Grove.  No public market for the Grove’s interests exists or is
contemplated in the foreseeable future.
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Since limited partners do not participate in management of the Grove’s business, we must rely on the managing partner
to adequately manage the Grove’s affairs.  The managing partner of the Grove controls the Grove and is in a position
to exercise sole decision-making authority regarding the Grove’s assets, including any realization or monetization of
authority over any potential receivables resulting from or growing out of the aforementioned sale to Minto and
including, but not limited to, the method and timing of disposition of the assets. We do not participate in the
management or control of the Grove or the conduct of its business.  We have only limited voting rights with respect to
the Grove’s affairs. We must rely upon the fiduciary responsibility and judgment of the managing partner of the Grove
to manage the Grove’s affairs in the best interests of the limited partners.

Our investment in the Grove is in a taxable REIT subsidiary and is subject to federal and state income tax on any
taxable income from the investment.  As a limited partner in the Grove, we have minimal  influence over its
management and operations.  Substantial income from the Grove, either through debt forgiveness or operations,
exceeded our historical losses resulting in a tax liability in 2014.

Risks Related to Our REIT Status

The federal income tax laws governing REITs are complex.

The Company has qualified, and expects to continue to qualify, as a real estate investment trust (REIT) for federal and
state income tax purposes under section 856(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”).  As long as we qualify for
taxation as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal and state income tax.  If we fail to qualify as a REIT in
any taxable year, we will be subject to federal and state income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate
rates.  Unless entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we will also be disqualified for taxation as a REIT
for the four taxable years following the year in which we lose our qualification.  Even if we qualify as a REIT, we
may be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property and to federal income and excise taxes on
our undistributed income.  

Failure to make distributions could subject us to tax.

In order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, each year we must pay out to our shareholders in distributions at least
90% of our REIT taxable income, excluding net capital gain.  To the extent that we satisfy this distribution minimum,
but distribute less than 100% of our taxable income, we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on our
undistributed taxable income.  In addition, we will be subject to a 4.0% nondeductible excise tax if the actual amount
that we pay out to our shareholders in a calendar year is less than the minimum amount specified under federal tax
laws.  Our only source of funds to make these distributions comes from our cash and investments in mortgage backed
securities, and net cash payments, if any, received from managing GSD and the payments received on the mortgage
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loan and liquidity facility provided to GSD.  Accordingly, we may be required to borrow money or sell assets to make
distributions sufficient to enable us to pay in cash out enough of our taxable income to satisfy the distribution
requirement and to avoid corporate income tax and the 4.0% nondeductible excise tax in a particular year.
Alternatively, we could make distributions in the form of dividend notes, as was the case with the Dividend Note and
the 2014 Dividend Note.

There are certain ownership limitations to maintain REIT status and we have no charter provisions to ensure
compliance.

Not more than 50% of the value of our outstanding shares of stock may be owned, directly or indirectly, by five or
fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities) during the last half of a taxable year (other than
the first year for which an election to be a REIT has been made).  Although our shareholder rights plan has a 20%
ownership trigger, our certificate of incorporation contains no restrictions limiting the ownership and transfer of
shares of our common stock and other outstanding shares of stock.  Consequently, if five or fewer individuals acquire
ownership in excess of 50% in the aggregate of the value of our outstanding shares of stock, we may lose our REIT
status.

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to federal income tax.

If we fail to remain qualified as a REIT in any taxable year and if the relief provisions were not to apply, we will be
subject to federal income tax on our taxable income.  If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we would not be required to
make any distributions.  In addition, any distributions that we do make will not be deductible by us.  This would
substantially reduce our earnings, our cash available to pay distributions, and the value of our common stock.
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The resulting tax liability might cause us to borrow funds, liquidate some of our investments, or take other steps that
could negatively affect our operating results in order to pay any such tax.  Moreover, if our REIT status is terminated
because of our failure to meet a technical REIT requirement and the relief provisions did not excuse our failure to
qualify as a REIT, or if we voluntarily revoke our election, we generally would be disqualified from re-electing
treatment as a REIT until the fifth taxable year after the year in which we failed to qualify as a REIT.

Failure to qualify as a REIT may result in increased difficulty in raising capital or obtaining financing.

If we fail to remain qualified as a REIT, we may have to reduce or eliminate any planned distributions to our
shareholders in order to satisfy our income tax liabilities.  Any distributions that we do make to our shareholders
would be treated as taxable dividends to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits.  This may
result in negative investor and market perception regarding the market value of our common stock, and the value of
your shares of our common stock may be reduced.  In addition, we may face increased difficulty in raising capital or
obtaining financing if we fail to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT because of the resulting tax liability and
potential reduction of our market valuation.

Even if we remain qualified as a REIT, we may face other tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow.

Even if we remain qualified for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain federal, state and local taxes on our
income and assets.  For example:

●We will be required to pay tax on undistributed REIT taxable income.
●We may be required to pay “alternative minimum tax” on our items of tax preference.

●
If we have net income from the disposition of foreclosure property held primarily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business or other non-qualifying income from foreclosure property, we must pay tax on that
income at the highest corporate rate.

●
If we sell a property in a “prohibited transaction,” our gain from the sale would be subject to a 100% penalty tax. A
“prohibited transaction” would be a sale of property, other than a foreclosure property, held primarily for sale to
customers in the ordinary course of business.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forgo attractive investment opportunities that could otherwise
generate strong risk-adjusted returns and instead pursue less attractive opportunities, or none at all.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among other
things, the sources of our income, the nature and diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our
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shareholders and the ownership of our stock.  Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may limit our ability to
operate solely on the basis of generating strong risk-adjusted returns on invested capital for our shareholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to liquidate otherwise attractive investments, which could result
in an overall loss on our investments.

To maintain qualification as a REIT, we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75% of the value
of our assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and qualified REIT real estate assets.  The remainder
of our investment in securities (other than government securities, qualified real estate assets and securities of one or
more taxable REIT subsidiaries) generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any
one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer.  In addition, in general,
no more than 5% of the value of our assets (other than government securities, qualified real estate assets and securities
of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries) can consist of the securities of any one issuer, and no more than 25% of the
value of our total assets can be represented by securities of one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries.  If we fail to
comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we must correct such failure within 30 days after
the end of the calendar quarter to avoid losing our REIT status and suffering adverse tax consequences.  If we fail to
comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, and the failure exceeds a de minimis threshold, we
may be able to preserve our REIT status if the failure was due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.  In this
case, we will be required to dispose of the assets causing the failure within six months after the last day of the quarter
in which the failure occurred, and we will be required to pay an additional tax of the greater of $50,000 or the product
of the highest applicable tax rate multiplied by the net income generated on those assets.  As a result, we may be
required to liquidate otherwise attractive investments.
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The board of directors’ revocation of our REIT status without shareholder approval may decrease our
shareholders’ total return.

Our board of directors may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election, without the approval of our
shareholders, if it determines that it is no longer in our best interest to continue to qualify as a REIT.  If we cease to be
a REIT, we would become subject to federal income tax on our taxable income and would no longer be required to
distribute most of our taxable income to our shareholders, which may have adverse consequences on our total return to
our shareholders.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Assuming the sale of the full 2,224,020 shares in the rights offering, we estimate that the aggregate net proceeds from
the offering, after deducting estimated offering expenses of approximately $510,050, will be approximately
$5,606,000. 

We intend to use the net proceeds from this rights offering to supplement the cash on hand to meet the following
obligations in order of priority, assuming the rights offering is fully subscribed. Because there is no minimum number
of shares that must be sold in the rights offering, we can provide no assurance regarding the amount of proceeds we
will actually raise. If the rights offering is not fully subscribed, proceeds of the offering will be allocated in order of
priority to the extent available.

Priority Use of Proceeds
Approximate

Amount

1 Supplement the funding necessary for the $5.5 million expanded liquidity facility
for GSD  $1.0 million

2 Pursue GSD’s development rights for the Flowerfield property  $700,000

3 Pay for necessary capital improvements in GSD’s real estate portfolio which we
manage  $1.0 million

4 Supplement Gyrodyne’s termination funding obligation under the Pension Plan of
up to approximately $2.0 million  $1.5 million

5 Pay accrued interest and principal on the 2014 Dividend Note and
payment-in-kind notes issued by Gyrodyne (see table below)  $1.4 million

6 Any unused balance will be allocated for general working capital
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The following table sets forth the issue date, maturity date, principal amount and interest rate with respect to each of
Gyrodyne’s outstanding notes to which we intend to apply proceeds from the rights offering:

Note Issue Date Maturity
Date

Principal
Amount Interest

Subordinated Global
Dividend Note

June 16,
2014

June 30,
2017 $302,813

5% per annum, payable semi-annually on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing
December 15, 2014, and may be payable in cash or
in the form of additional notes

Subordinated
Global Dividend
Note

December
15, 2014

June 30,
2017 $403,750

5% per annum, payable semi-annually on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing June
15, 2015, and may be payable in cash or in the form
of additional notes

Subordinated Global
Dividend Note

December
31, 2014

June 30,
2017 $682,033

5% per annum, payable semi-annually on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing June
15, 2015, and may be payable in cash or in the form
of additional notes

This expected use of the net proceeds from this rights offering represents our intentions based upon our current plans
and business conditions. As of the date of this prospectus, we cannot predict with certainty all of the particular uses
for the net proceeds to be received upon the completion of this rights offering or the amounts that we will actually
spend on the uses set forth above. The amounts and timing of our actual expenditures may vary significantly
depending on numerous factors, including whether or not the Merger is consummated, the progress of our efforts to
sell GSD’s properties, developments in the shareholder litigation relating to the tax liquidation and any unforeseen cash
needs. As a result, our management will retain broad discretion over the allocation of the net proceeds from this
offering.  
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Pending our use of the net proceeds from this offering, we intend to invest the net proceeds in a variety of capital
preservation investments, including short-term, investment-grade, interest-bearing instruments and U.S. government
securities. 

CAPITALIZATION

The following table shows our capitalization as of December 31, 2014 on a historical basis and as adjusted to reflect
the sale of 2,224,020 shares of our common stock, assuming all subscription rights are exercised, at the subscription
price of $2.75 per share and the receipt of the net proceeds from the rights offering of $5,606,000 after deducting
estimated offering expenses in the amount of $510,000. The pro forma information is being presented for illustrative
purposes. You should consider this table in conjunction with "Use of Proceeds" above as well as our "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our financial statements and the notes
to those financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. 

Historical

as Reported

Rights

Offering (1)
Pro Forma

Notes payable $ 17,553,210 $ - $ 17,553,210
Total long term debt 17,553,210 - 17,553,210
Shareholders Equity:
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 4,000,000 shares;
1,723,888 shares issued and 1,482,680 shares outstanding, actual 1,723,888 2,224,020 3,947,908

Additional paid-in capital 17,753,505 3,381,980 21,135,485
Accumulated other comprehensive income (633,682 ) - (633,682 )
(Deficit) retained earnings (9,653,951 ) - (9,653,951 )

9,189,760 5,606,000 14,795,760
Less: Cost of 241,208 Shares of Common Stock Held in Treasury
(2) (1,537,697 ) - (1,537,697 )

Total Gyrodyne stockholders’ equity 7,652,063 5,606,000 13,258,063
Non-controlling interest in GSD, LLC 15,805,548 - 15,805,548
Total Equity 23,457,611 5,606,000 29,063,611
Total Capitalization $ 41,010,821 $ 5,606,000 $ 46,616,821

(1)Net proceeds are based upon the 2,224,020 common shares that are being offered in the rights offering, asubscription price of $2.75 per share and after deducting anticipated offering expenses of $510,050.

(2)Number of treasury shares will not be adjusted as the rights offering will be fulfilled with authorized but previouslyunissued shares.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes that appear
elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve significant
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as
a result of various factors, including those discussed in “Risk Factors” elsewhere in this report. For further
information, see “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” above.

The following discussion is intended to assist you in understanding our business and results of operations together
with our present financial condition and reflects summary results from continuing operations unless otherwise noted.
This section should be read in conjunction with our historical consolidated financial statements and notes, as well as
the selected financial data included elsewhere in this report. 
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As of December 31, 2014, our consolidated portfolio consisted of four developed properties (which are owned by
GSD, a consolidated variable interest entity), consisting of 22 buildings with an aggregate of 261,336 rentable square
feet. GSD also owns undeveloped land parcels adjacent to existing properties for which development plans are
currently being formulated.

Factors Which May Influence Future Operations

Our operating focus is on transacting, developing, owning, leasing and managing GSD properties, all of which is
focused on maximizing value achievable in the tax liquidation process. As of December 31, 2014, our operating
portfolio was 79% leased to 101 tenants. As of December 31, 2013, our operating portfolio was 83% leased to 104
tenants. The year over year decrease in the gross portfolio occupancy percentage was primarily the result of
terminations at the Flowerfield Industrial Park and the Port Jefferson Professional Park. Our continued focus on
overcoming the challenges of negative absorption in the real estate industry through 2014 has resulted in increasing
the occupancy rates at the Cortlandt Manor Medical Center from 80% to 100%. The occupancy at the Fairfax Medical
Center is approximately flat with the prior year. The Port Jefferson Professional Park continues to be challenged by
local market conditions and the impact of the Healthcare Legislation.

Our leasing strategy for 2015 includes negotiating longer term leases, and focuses on leasing vacant space, negotiating
early renewals for leases scheduled to expire through 2016, and identifying new tenants or existing tenants seeking
additional space.

Lease Expirations

The following is a summary of lease expirations and related revenues of leases in place at December 31, 2014. This
table assumes that none of the tenants exercise renewal options or early termination rights, if any, at or prior to the
scheduled expirations: 

Fiscal Year End Number
of

Leases

Expiring

Square

Feet

Expiring

Total

Annual

Rent

% of Gross

Annual

Rental

Revenues

Represented
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By Such
Leases

2015 35 44,000 $ 831,000 19.37%
2016 31 51,000 1,149,000 26.78%
2017 8 15,000 365,000 8.50%
2018 3 8,000 262,000 6.10%
2019 8 32,000 659,000 15.35%
Thereafter 18 39,000 1,026,000 23.90%

The success of our leasing strategy will be dependent upon the general economic conditions and more specifically real
estate market conditions and trends in the United States and in our target markets of suburban New York, northern
Virginia and the eastern portion of the United States. We cannot give any assurance that leases will be renewed or that
available space will be re-leased at rental rates equal to or above the current contractual rental rates.

We actively manage the renewal process in conjunction with third party asset management firms. Historically, this has
resulted in a very low turnover rate with our tenants. However, industrial properties and medical properties in most of
the regions we operate have experienced negative absorption rates meaning that additional space for rent or sale
exceeds space sold or leased over the same period. The negative absorption rate is an indicator of the challenges in
maintaining or growing average occupancy, rental rates and addressing the demands for tenant incentives /
concessions. As a result, the Company continues to actively manage lease termination dates and often approaches
tenants up to one year in advance to gauge renewal interest and negotiate related leases. Where a termination is likely,
the Company begins marketing the property prior to termination to timely identify the market rent for the specific
space, expected vacancy period and market demanded tenant concessions and incentives. During 2014, the Company
provided approximately $95,000 in tenant incentives in the form of tenant improvements and lease concessions in the
form of rent abatement of approximately $201,000.
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The Company may offer tenant concessions in the form of rent abatements rather than tenant improvements to
maximize its working capital position. However, tenant improvement incentives may be offered in certain cases where
concessions are not effective in meeting the demands of the existing or prospective tenant.

During 2014, the Company incurred approximately $76,000 in leasing fees and commissions in exchange for revenue
commitments of approximately $3,200,000 with leases ranging from 1 year to 10.5 years. The leasing fees reflect a
renewal cost rate of 2% of the related revenue commitments. The Company often renews leases without external
brokers or other third party costs which during 2014 resulted in an additional $1.9 million in lease commitments. As a
result, the total lease commitments signed during 2014 was $5.1 million. The Company has approximately 19% of its
annual leasing revenue up for renewal in 2015, which favorably compares to 28% of leases up for renewal in 2014.
General economic conditions, coupled with rental markets in which we operate, will dictate how rental rates on new
leases and renewals will compare, favorably or unfavorably, to those leases that were signed in 2014.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”)
requires management to use judgment in the application of accounting policies, including making estimates and
assumptions. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances
relating to various transactions had been different, it is possible that different accounting policies would have been
applied resulting in a different presentation of our financial statements. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our
estimates and assumptions. In the event estimates or assumptions prove to be different from actual results, adjustments
are made in subsequent periods to reflect more current information. Below is a discussion of accounting policies that
we consider critical in that they address the most material parts of our financial statements and require complex
judgment in their application or require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company believes that GSD is a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”).  The financial statements of a VIE should be
consolidated with another company if the other company concludes that it is the primary beneficiary of the VIE.  In
determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE, a company analyzes whether it shares in the financial risk of loss as
well as the ability to participate in the financial success of the entity.  The Company has concluded that it is the
primary beneficiary of GSD and therefore that GSD’s financial statements should be consolidated with those of the
Company.
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Investments in Real Estate

Investments in real estate are carried at depreciated cost. Depreciation and amortization are recorded on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements (years) 5 - 39  
Machinery & equipment (years) 3 - 20  

Our estimates of useful lives have a direct impact on our net income. If expected useful lives of our investments in
real estate were shortened, we would likewise depreciate the assets over a shorter time period, resulting in an increase
to depreciation expense and a corresponding decrease to net income on an annual basis.

Management must make significant assumptions in determining the value of assets and liabilities acquired. The use of
different assumptions in the allocation of the purchase cost of the acquired properties would affect the timing of
recognition of the related revenue and expenses.

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense as incurred and significant replacements and betterments are
capitalized. Repairs and maintenance costs include all costs that do not extend the useful life of an asset or increase its
operating efficiency. Significant replacements and betterments represent costs that extend an asset’s useful life or
increase its operating efficiency.
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Revenue recognition – Minimum revenues from rental property are recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the related leases. The excess of rents recognized over amounts contractually due, if any, are included in deferred
rents receivable on the Company’s balance sheets. Certain leases also provide for tenant reimbursements of common
area maintenance and other operating expenses and real estate taxes. Tenant reimbursements to the Company for
expenses where the Company negotiates, manages, contracts and pays the expense on behalf of the tenant are
recognized as revenue when they become estimable and collectible. Ancillary and other property related income is
recognized in the period earned. The only exception to the straight line basis is for tenants at risk of default. Revenue
from tenants where collectability is in question is recognized on a cash basis when the rent is received.

Allowance for doubtful accounts – Management must make estimates of the collectability of accounts receivable.
Management specifically analyzes accounts receivable, historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer
credit-worthiness, current economic trends, and changes in customer payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of
the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair-Value – Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair-value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair-value, and expands disclosures about fair-value measurements. The guidance applies to
reported balances that are required or permitted to be measured at fair-value under existing accounting
pronouncements; accordingly, the standard does not require any new fair-value measurements of reported balances.

The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which permits companies to choose to measure
certain financial instruments and other items at fair-value in order to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by
measuring related assets and liabilities differently. However, we have not elected to measure any additional financial
instruments and other items at fair-value (other than those previously required under other GAAP rules or standards)
under the provisions of this standard.

The guidance emphasizes that fair-value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair-value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair-value
measurements, the guidance establishes a fair-value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant
assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that
are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market
participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the
ability to access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities
in active markets, as well as inputs that are observable for the asset or liability (other than quoted prices), such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. Level 3
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inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which is typically based on an entity’s own assumptions, as
there is little, if any, related market activity. In instances where the determination of the fair-value measurement is
based on inputs from different levels of the fair-value hierarchy, the level in the fair-value hierarchy within which the
entire fair-value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair-value measurement
in its entirety. Our assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair-value measurement in its entirety
requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

Impairment of Real Estate Investments- The Company assesses on a regular basis whether there are any indicators
that the carrying value of real estate assets may be impaired. Potential indicators may include an increase in vacancy at
a property, tenant reduction in utilization of a property, tenant financial instability and the potential sale of the
property in the near future. An asset is determined to be impaired if the asset's carrying value is in excess of its
estimated fair value. During the second quarter of 2014 and the third quarter of 2013, the Company recognized
aggregate impairment charges of $200,000 and $2,100,000, respectively, on real estate assets classified in continuing
operations. The Company has explored the possible disposition of some of its medical properties and determined that
the expected undiscounted cash flows based upon revised estimated holding periods of the Port Jefferson Professional
Park were below the current carrying value. Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying value of this property to
its estimated fair value.

Gains on sales of real estate - Gains on sales of real estate are recognized based upon the specific timing of the sale as
measured against various criteria related to the terms of the transactions and any continuing involvement associated
with the properties. If the sales criteria are not met, the gain is deferred and the finance, installment or cost recovery
method, as appropriate, is applied until the sales criteria are met. To the extent the GSD sells a property and retains a
partial ownership interest in the property, the Company recognizes gain to the extent of the third-party ownership
interest.
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Assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations- Assets and liabilities of properties that meet various held for sale
criteria, including whether it is probable that a sale will occur within 12 months, are presented separately in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as “Assets held for Sale”, with assets and liabilities being separately stated. The operating
results of these properties are reflected as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Properties classified as held for sale are carried at the lower of net carrying value or estimated fair value less costs to
sell and depreciation and amortization are no longer recognized. Properties that do not meet the held for sale criteria
are accounted for as operating properties.

For the period beginning with the end of the second quarter and ending late in the fourth quarter, the Company met the
requirements to report assets held for sale and discontinued operations. However, effective at the end of the fourth
quarter, the Company no longer meets the requirements to reflect assets held for sale and reclassified them to
continuing operations, accordingly, effective December31, 2014. See “Assets and Liabilities held for sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere herein for disclosure and discussion of new
accounting standards.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a comparison of the operating results of Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc. for the years
ended December 31, 2014, and 2013.

The Company reported net income attributable to Gyrodyne of $147,553 for the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to net income of $46,063,206 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Basic and diluted per share income
amounted to $0.10 for 2014 compared to per share income of $31.07 for the prior year. The Company declared a
special dividend of $682,033 (approximately $0.46 per share) on September 15, 2014, payable on December 31, 2014
to shareholders of record on September 26, 2014. The dividend was paid in the form of a global non-transferrable note
maturing in June 2017. The dividend represents the remaining undistributed 2013 REIT taxable income. The
Company met the minimum distribution requirements of REIT taxable income in 2013. The Company does not have
any REIT taxable income in 2014. 
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Rental revenues - Rental revenues are comprised solely of rental income and amounted to $4,439,467 and $4,487,083
for 2014 and 2013, respectively, a decrease of 47,616 or 1%. The (decreases) increases from 2013 results per property
amounted to $(33,329), $53,106, $118,809 and $(186,202) for Port Jefferson, Cortlandt, Fairfax and Flowerfield,
respectively. The reduction in revenue at Port Jefferson and Flowerfield was mainly due to the reduction in occupancy
rates that took place during 2013 at Port Jefferson and the two terminations in Flowerfield in 2014 which were
partially offset by an increase in effective rate per square foot in those properties. The increases in revenue at
Cortlandt and Fairfax were the result of an increase in the average occupancy rate supplemented by an approximate
5% increase in the effective rate per square foot at Cortlandt.

The comparison of rental revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Facility Rental Revenue December
31, 2014

December
31, 2013

Port Jefferson Professional Park $740,235 $773,564
Cortlandt Medical Center 758,371 705,265
Fairfax Medical Center 1,366,936 1,248,127
Flowerfield Industrial Park 1,573,925 1,760,127
Total $4,439,467 $4,487,083

Tenant reimbursements - Tenant reimbursements represent expenses negotiated, managed, and incurred directly by the
Company on behalf of or for the benefit of the tenants. Tenant reimbursements were $509,221 and $542,886 for 2014
and 2013, respectively. The decrease in tenant reimbursements was mainly due to the tenant reimbursements
associated with the lease terminations at Flowerfield offset by the increase in tenant reimbursements at Fairfax and
Cortlandt. The Fairfax tenant reimbursements were attributable to higher operating costs that can be passed through
and more leases that are incurring costs in excess of their base years as compared to 2013. The Cortlandt tenant
reimbursements increased due to a higher average occupancy rate as compared to 2013.
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The comparison of tenant reimbursements for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Facility Tenant Reimbursements Rental Revenue December
31, 2014

December
31, 2013

Port Jefferson Professional Park $117,940 $122,111
Cortlandt Medical Center 78,746 73,591
Fairfax Medical Center 122,437 112,812
Flowerfield Industrial Park 190,098 234,372
Total $509,221 $542,886

Total expenses excluding interest and income tax benefit - Expenses, excluding interest and income taxes, amounted
to $7,980,361 for 2014 and reflect a decrease of $12,779,051 from the 2013 amount of $20,759,412. The net decrease
was attributable to the 2013 dividend that triggered the 2013 federal excise taxes of $3,521,320 and distributions
under the Incentive Compensation Plan to each member of the Board and certain employees/former employees
totaling $5,044,600 and related payroll taxes of approximately $52,000. There were no incentive compensation
expenses in 2014. The remaining difference was mainly attributable to the $1,900,000 reduction in impairment
charges.

Rental operation expenses - Rental expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $2,605,844 and
$2,514,530, respectively, representing an increase of $91,314 or approximately 4%. The Company continues to
manage the operating expenses of its real estate portfolio to offset escalating insurance and energy costs. The increase
in rental expenses was primarily driven by an increase in building and property maintenance of approximately
$45,000, most of which was attributable to weather related maintenance and repairs.

The rental expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Facility Rental Expense December
31, 2014

December
31, 2013

Port Jefferson Professional Park $464,948 $443,913
Cortlandt Medical Center 474,901 488,836
Fairfax Medical Center 650,256 624,397
Flowerfield Industrial Park 1,015,739 957,384
Total $2,605,844 $2,514,530

General and administrative expenses - General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013 were $2,552,871 and $11,554,034, representing a decrease of $9,001,163. The net decrease was mostly
attributable to the 2013 federal excise tax of $3,521,320 and distributions to the Board, one former director, certain
employees and former employees, of $2,471,854, $378,345, $882,805 and $1,311,596, respectively, plus related
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payroll taxes of approximately $52,000 under the Incentive Compensation Plan. There were no incentive
compensation expenses in 2014.

Strategic alternative expenses – Strategic alternative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were
$1,836,476 and $3,637,123, respectively. The Board established the Strategic Alternatives Committee, comprised of 4
of the 7 members of the Board. The committee was charged with leading the process of evaluating strategic
alternatives which may have included one or more tax efficient liquidity events. Following the Committee’s
recommendation of a tax efficient liquidation, the Committee was dissolved. Over 80% of the fees are related to
investment banking and related legal fees to pursue and analyze such alternatives. Approximately 85% of the 2014
expenses are associated with the legal, investment banking settlement fee and financial advisory fees associated with
executing on the Plan of liquidation and the related merger. The expenses do not include any costs associated with full
time or part time personnel or overhead costs irrespective of the significant time being allocated to the process, as
such, the Company believes such costs are fixed and are appropriately allocated to General and Administrative
expenses.

Impairment charges – Impairment charges were $200,000 and $2,100,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The Company has explored the possible disposition of some of its medical properties and
determined that the expected undiscounted cash flows based upon revised estimated holding periods of the Port
Jefferson Professional Park were below the current carrying value. Accordingly, the Company reduced the carrying
value of this property to its estimated fair value for each of the respective years.
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Depreciation expense - Depreciation expense increased by $15,846, amounting to $969,571 in 2014 compared to
$953,725 during the prior year. The increase is a result of depreciation of fixed assets additions, including tenant
improvements of approximately $927,000.

Insurance claim recoveries in excess of cost - Insurance claim recoveries in excess of cost for the year ended
December 31, 2014 was $184,401. The Company had no insured costs net of recoveries for 2013. The Company
incurred storm related damages during 2013 that was covered under its insurance policy and received reimbursement
in excess of the basis of the building damage. The costs to replace the damaged roof and related fixtures is capitalized
and depreciated over its useful life.

Interest income – Interest income was $110,311 and $236,954 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, a decrease of $126,643.
The decrease is mainly attributable to lower balances in interest bearing savings accounts in 2014 as compared to
2013 resulting from the 2013 cash dividend distributions. This impact was partially offset by the purchase of mortgage
backed securities during 2014 which earned approximately 2%.

Interest expense - Interest expense in 2014 and 2013 was $749,004 and $5,748, respectively, an increase of $743,256.
The increase was attributable primarily to the interest expense associated with the global dividend note issued in
January 2014.

The comparison of interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 as follows:

Interest Expense December
31, 2014

December
31, 2013

Port Jefferson Professional Park Center $ - $ 4,874
Dividend notes 749,004 -
Other interest expense - 874
Total $749,004 $ 5,748

As a result of the changes in rental revenue, total operating expenses and other income (expense), the Company is
reporting a loss before benefit for income taxes of $(3,670,366) for 2014 as compared to $(15,498,237) for 2013.

Income Taxes - The benefit for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2014 is $565,000. The tax benefit is
derived from reversing the deferred taxes related to the Grove offset by the portion of deferred taxes currently
becoming payable and the income tax expense generated by the taxable income from managing GSD. The Company
received a Private Letter Ruling in 2013 that enabled it to distribute the condemnation gain tax free. As a result,
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following the declaration of the dividend in 2013, the Company reversed to the 2012 income tax provision with the
exception of alternative minimum taxes. The result was the tax benefit in 2013 of $61,553,442.

The Company reported net (loss) income of $(3,105,366) and $46,055,205 for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. The primary factors driving the reduction in income from 2013 to 2014 was the tax benefit in
2013 supplemented by the remaining items discussed above.

The Company reported a net loss from the non-controlling interest of $(3,252,919) and $(8,001) for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The non-controlling interest refers to GSD, the shares of which we
distributed to our shareholders as the non-cash portion of the First Special Dividend in 2013.

The net income attributable to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $147,553 and
$46,063,206, respectively.

The following is a comparison, for the years ended December 31, 2013, and 2012, of the operating results of
Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc.

The Company reported net income attributable to Gyrodyne of $46,063,206 for the twelve months ended December
31, 2013 compared to net income of $99,048,253 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. Basic and diluted
per share income amounted to $31.07 for 2013 compared to per share income of $66.80 for the prior year. The
Company declared a special dividend of $66.56 per share (approximately $98,685,000) on September 12, 2013,
payable on December 30, 2013 to shareholders of record on November 1, 2013. The dividend was comprised of cash
of 45.86 per share (approximately $68,000,000) and a noncash interest in GSD of $20.70 per share (approximately
$30,685,000). The Company had REIT taxable income in 2013. As a result, the Company declared a special dividend
of $10.89 per share payable in the form of interests in a global dividend note payable in kind or cash on January 31,
2014 to shareholders of record on December 31, 2013, which reflected a total distribution of $16,144,614. In the prior
year, the Company had REIT taxable income. As a result, the Company declared a special dividend of $38.30 per
share which was paid on December 14, 2012 to shareholders of record on December 1, 2012, which reflected a total
distribution for 2012 of $56,786,652.
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The Company is disclosing rental revenue, tenant reimbursements and rental expenses for 2013 and 2012 by property.
However, there were no proforma adjustments as there were no acquisitions during the comparative periods.

Rental revenues - Rental revenues are comprised solely of rental income and amounted to $4,487,083 and $4,448,402
for 2013 and 2012, respectively. The (decreases) increase from 2012 results per property amounted to $(24,616),
$(98,648), $21,643 and $140,302 for Port Jefferson, Cortlandt, Fairfax and Flowerfield, respectively. The reduction in
revenue at Port Jefferson and Cortlandt Manor was mainly due to the reduction in occupancy rates that took place
during 2012, which were partially offset by an increase in effective rate per square foot in those properties. The
increase in revenue at Fairfax and Flowerfield were the result of an increase in the average occupancy rate offset by
reductions in the effective rate per square foot.

The comparison of rental revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Facility Rental Revenue December
31, 2013

December
31, 2012

Port Jefferson Professional Park $773,564 $798,180
Cortlandt Medical Center 705,265 803,913
Fairfax Medical Center 1,248,127 1,226,484
Flowerfield Industrial Park 1,760,127 1,619,825
Total $4,487,083 $4,448,402

Tenant reimbursements - Tenant reimbursements represent expenses negotiated, managed, and incurred directly by the
Company on behalf of or for the benefit of the tenants. Tenant reimbursements were $542,886 and $540,706 for 2013
and 2012, respectively. The tenant reimbursements increase in Port Jefferson was attributable to the successful real
estate tax grievance, the benefit of which was passed on to our tenants in 2012. The increases in tenant
reimbursements in Fairfax and Flowerfield were due to higher occupancy rates. Reimbursements changed by property
but were attributable to changes in base years from renewals and changes in occupancy rates while the reduction in
tenant reimbursements in Cortlandt Manor were due to a combination of lower average occupancy rates and a change
in the base year for determining tenant reimbursements following certain lease renewals.

The comparison of tenant reimbursements for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Facility Tenant Reimbursements Rental Revenue December
31, 2013

December
31, 2012

Port Jefferson Professional Park $122,111 $100,536
Cortlandt Medical Center 73,591 136,718
Fairfax Medical Center 112,812 97,011
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Flowerfield Industrial Park 234,372 206,441
Total $542,886 $540,706

Total expenses excluding condemnation, interest and income tax expense - Expenses, excluding condemnation,
interest and income taxes, amounted to $20,757,052 for 2013 and reflect an increase of $9,973,968 from the 2012
amount of $10,783,084. The net increase was attributable to the increase in strategic alternative costs and impairment
charges of $2,624,080 and $2,100,000, respectively, federal excise taxes of $3,521,320 and distributions under the
Incentive Compensation Plan to each member of the Board, certain employees/former employees totaling $5,044,600
and related payroll taxes of approximately $52,000, an increase of $846,600 over the 2012 amount of $4,213,000 plus
related payroll taxes of approximately $37,000.
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Rental operation expenses - Rental expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $2,514,530 and
$2,308,036, respectively, representing an increase of $206,494 or approximately 9%. The Company continues to
manage the operating expenses of its real estate portfolio to offset escalating insurance and energy costs. The increase
in rental expenses was primarily driven by an increase in building and property maintenance of approximately
$187,000, which was mostly offset by benefits that would have been earned under the company’s defined benefit
pension plan.

The rental expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Facility Rental Expense December
31, 2013

December
31, 2012

Port Jefferson Professional Park $443,913 $396,954
Cortlandt Medical Center 488,836 479,807
Fairfax Medical Center 624,397 559,540
Flowerfield Industrial Park 957,384 871,735
Total $2,514,530 $2,308,036

General and administrative expenses - General and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012 were $11,551,674 and $6,561,910, representing an increase of $4,989,764. The net increase was mostly
attributable to the Federal excise tax of $3,521,320 and the 2013 distributions and related expenses under the
Company’s Incentive Compensation Plan exceeding those made in 2012 by $846,600. The 2013 distributions to the
Board, one former director, certain employees and former employees, were $2,471,854, $378,345, $882,805 and
$1,311,596, respectively plus related payroll taxes of approximately $52,000. The 2012 distributions under the
Incentive Compensation Plan to each member of the Board and a former Director, certain current employees and the
retired but vested former CEO, Mr. Maroney of $2,380,345, $1,053,250 and $779,405, respectively, reflecting a total
payout of $4,213,000 plus related payroll taxes of approximately $37,000.

Strategic alternative expenses – Strategic Alternative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were
$3,637,123 and $1,013,043, respectively. The Board established the Strategic Alternatives Committee, comprised of 4
of the 7 members of the Board. The committee was charged with leading the process of evaluating strategic
alternatives which may have included one or more tax efficient liquidity events. Following the Committee’s
recommendation of a tax efficient liquidation, the Committee was dissolved into the Board. Over 80% of the fees are
related to investment banking and related legal fees to pursue and analyze such alternatives. The expenses do not
include any costs associated with full time or part time personnel or overhead costs irrespective of the significant time
being allocated to the process. The Company believes such costs are fixed and are appropriately allocated to General
and Administrative expenses accordingly.

Depreciation expense - Depreciation expense increased by 6% or $53,630, amounting to $953,725 in 2013 compared
to $900,095 during the prior year. The increase in depreciation is mainly attributable to the Company’s capital
investment to improve occupancy and effective rental rates.
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Interest income – Interest income not including condemnation related interest, was $236,954 and $86,217 in 2013 and
2012, respectively, an increase of $150,737. The increase is mainly attributable to the purchase of mortgage backed
securities during February and March of 2012 which earned approximately 2% during 2013 and deposits into interest
bearing accounts following the expiration of the unlimited FDIC insurance on non-interest bearing accounts.

Interest expense - Interest expense in 2013 and 2012 was $5,748 and $965,506, respectively, a decrease of $959,758.
The decrease was attributable primarily to the prepayment in full and related assumption of all of the Company’s
outstanding mortgages. Late in the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company prepaid in full the mortgage loans secured by
the Fairfax Medical Center, Cortlandt Medical Center and the Flowerfield Industrial Park, respectively and in early
January 2013 the Company prepaid in full the outstanding mortgage on the Port Jefferson Professional Park.

The comparison of interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 as follows:

Facility Interest Expense December
31, 2013

December
31, 2012

Fairfax Medical Center $ 0 $424,936
Cortlandt Medical Center 0 100,598
Port Jefferson Professional Park Center 4,874 260,447
Flowerfield Industrial Park 0 176,772
Other interest expense 874 2,753
Total $ 5,748 $965,506

As a result of the changes in rental revenue, total operating expenses and other income (expense), the Company is
reporting a loss before Condemnation Proceeds and Provision (benefit) for income taxes of $(15,495,877) for 2013 as
compared to a loss of $(6,673,265) for 2012.
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(Expense) income on Condemnation - Condemnation (expense) income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012 were $(2,360) and $100,028,802, respectively. The Company successfully concluded its condemnation case
during 2012 resulting in an additional $98,685,000 for just compensation for the Property and reimbursement of
condemnation costs of $1,474,941. The Company also incurred condemnation costs in 2012 of $131,139 to conclude
pursuing its rights under this litigation.

Interest income on condemnation proceeds of $67,341,716 resulted from the Company’s successful conclusion of its
condemnation case for just compensation. The interest income was received in 2012.

Income Taxes - The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $61,649,000. The
Company received a Private Letter Ruling in 2013 that enabled it to distribute the condemnation gain tax free. As a
result, following the declaration of the dividend in 2013, the Company reversed to the 2012 income tax provision with
the exception of alternative minimum taxes. The result was the tax benefit in 2013 of $61,553,442.

The Company reported net income of $46,055,205 and $99,048,253 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The primary factors driving the reduction in income from 2012 to 2013 was the condemnation income
net of the tax expense in 2012 was significantly greater than the income tax benefit recognized in 2013 supplemented
by the remaining items discussed above.

The net loss from the non-controlling interest for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $(8,001). The Company did
not have a non-controlling interest for the year ended December 31, 2012. The non-controlling interest refers to GSD,
the shares of which we distributed to our shareholders as the non-cash portion of the First Special Dividend in 2013.

The net income attributable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $46,063,206 and
$99,048,253, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Variable Interest Entities
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On December 30, 2013, the Company distributed to its shareholders, the outstanding shares in GSD, a subsidiary of
Gyrodyne into which all of Gyrodyne’s real estate assets were previously contributed as part of an internal
restructuring, with the Company retaining a management interest. Pursuant to the limited liability company agreement
of GSD, the Company has unilateral control over the management of GSD including the ability to sell GSD or its
assets, sign leases, make capital improvements and pursue the rezoning effort on the Flowerfield Industrial Park and
its undeveloped land. In addition, the Company is providing GSD with a financing facility of up to $5.5 million. GSD
does not have any working capital or management to support its operations, and therefore relies 100% on the services
and working capital of the Company to manage and finance the operations of GSD.

In general, a reporting company must include in its consolidated financial statements the financial position and results
of any entity in which the reporting company has a controlling financial interest. The Company has no equity
ownership in GSD, but through its management interest it has the unilateral authority over GSD’s real estate assets,
including negotiating leases, making decisions regarding capital improvements, financing, acquisitions and
dispositions, the rezoning strategy on undeveloped property, negotiating management agreements, changing
governance documents and timing of dissolution or liquidation. Based on the foregoing, and in accordance with ASC
Topic 810-10, paragraph 15-14, the Company believes that it controls GSD. GSD is therefore a variable interest
entity.

The Company has consolidated GSD’s financial statements with the Company’s because the Company is considered to
be the primary beneficiary of GSD. The Company does not have any other variable interest entities. The consolidated
variable interest entity assets and liabilities at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were $33,763,279 and
$17,957,731 and $33,730,130 and $14,671,663, respectively. The Company monitors the credit quality of the
mortgage obligations of GSD which are securitized by the underlying related medical property each of which resides
in a single asset LLC. The discussion of the liquidity and capital resources is on a consolidated basis including the
variable interest entity, GSD.
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The below unaudited consolidating December 31, 2014 Balance Sheet and Statement of Operations reflects the
operations of Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc. and GSD.

Gyrodyne
Company of
America,
Inc. and
Subsidiaries

GSD, LLC Total Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS
REAL ESTATE
Rental Property:
Land $ - $4,569,693 $4,569,693 $- $ 4,569,693
Building and improvements - 33,405,129 33,405,129 - 33,405,129
Machinery and equipment - 344,733 344,733 - 344,733

- 38,319,555 38,319,555 - 38,319,555
Less accumulated depreciation - 8,204,417 8,204,417 - 8,204,417

30,115,138 30,115,138 - 30,115,138
Land held for development:
Land - 558,466 558,466 - 558,466
Land development costs - 1,961,345 1,961,345 - 1,961,345

- 2,519,811 2,519,811 - 2,519,811
Total real estate, net - 32,634,949 32,634,949 - 32,634,949
Cash and cash equivalents 4,028,337 - 4,028,337 - 4,028,337
Investment in marketable securities 5,950,098 - 5,950,098 - 5,950,098
Rent receivable, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of approximately
$89,000

- 7,452 7,452 - 7,452

Deferred rent receivable - 334,914 334,914 - 334,914
GSD line of credit 4,280,943 - 4,280,943 (4,280,943 ) -
Prepaid expenses and other assets 134,650 785,964 920,614 - 920,614
Mortgage receivable 12,889,463 - 12,889,463 (12,889,463) -
Total Assets $27,283,491 $33,763,279 $61,046,770 $(17,170,406) $ 43,876,364

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $575,099 $218,163 $793,262 $- $ 793,262
Accrued liabilities 220,573 - 220,573 - 220,573
Deferred rent liability - 94,737 94,737 - 94,737
Tenant security deposits payable - 474,425 474,425 - 474,425
GSD line of credit - 4,280,943 4,280,943 (4,280,943 ) -
Mortgage payable - 12,889,463 12,889,463 (12,889,463) -
Income taxes payable 750,000 - 750,000 - 750,000
Pension costs 552,546 - 552,546 - 552,546
Notes payable 17,533,210 - 17,533,210 - 17,533,210
Total Liabilities 19,631,428 17,957,731 37,589,159 (17,170,406) 20,418,753
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Commitments and Contingencies

EQUITY:
Common stock, $1 par value; authorized
4,000,000 shares; 1,723,888 shares
issued; 1,482,680 shares outstanding

1,723,888 - 1,723,888 - 1,723,888

Additional paid-in-capital 17,753,505 - 17,753,505 - 17,753,505
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (633,682 ) - (633,682 ) - (633,682 )

Deficit (9,653,951 ) (3,260,920 ) (12,914,871) 3,260,920 (9,653,951 )
9,189,760 (3,260,920 ) 5,928,840 3,260,920 9,189,760

Less cost of shares of common stock
held in treasury; 241,208 (1,537,697 ) - (1,537,697 ) - (1,537,697 )

Total Gyrodyne Stockholders’ Equity 7,652,063 (3,260,920 ) 4,391,143 3,260,920 7,652,063
Non-controlling interest in GSD, LLC - 19,066,468 19,066,468 (3,260,920 ) 15,805,548
Total Equity 7,652,063 15,805,548 23,457,611 - 23,457,611
Total Liabilities and Equity $27,283,491 $33,763,279 $61,046,770 $(17,170,406) $ 43,876,364
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Consolidated Statement of Operations – Year Ended December 31, 2014 (unaudited)

Gyrodyne
Company of
America,
Inc. and
Subsidiaries

GSD, LLC Total Eliminations Consolidated

Revenues
Rental income $ - $4,439,467 $4,439,467 $ - $ 4,439,467
Rental income – tenant reimbursements - 509,221 509,221 - 509,221
Other income 6,518,350 - 6,518,350 (6,518,350 ) -
Total 6,518,350 4,948,688 11,467,038 (6,518,350 ) 4,948,688

Expenses
Reimbursable expenses 2,673,932 - 2,673,932 (2,673,932 ) -
Rental expenses - 2,702,536 2,702,536 (96,692 ) 2,605,844
General and administrative expenses 2,552,871 2,051,060 4,603,931 (2,051,060 ) 2,552,871
Strategic alternative expenses 1,836,476 1,696,666 3,533,142 (1,696,666 ) 1,836,476
Impairment charges - 200,000 200,000 - 200,000
Depreciation - 969,571 969,571 - 969,571
Insurance claim recoveries in excess of
costs - (184,401 ) (184,401 ) - (184,401 )

Total 7,063,279 7,435,432 14,498,711 (6,518,350 ) 7,980,361

Other income (expense)
Interest income 876,486 - 876,486 (766,175 ) 110,311
Interest expense (749,004 ) (766,175 ) (1,515,179 ) 766,175 (749,004 )
Total 127,482 (766,175 ) (638,693 ) - (638,693 )
Net loss before benefit for income taxes (417,447 ) (3,252,919) (3,670,366 ) - (3,670,366 )
Tax benefit (565,000 ) - (565,000 ) - (565,000 )
Net income (loss) $ 147,553 $(3,252,919) $(3,105,366 ) - $ (3,105,366 )

The following summary discussion of our cash flows is based on the consolidated statements of cash flows in the 2014
Form 10-K – under “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” and is not meant to be an all-inclusive
discussion of the changes in our cash flows for the periods presented below:

2014 2013
Net cash used in operating activities $(5,470,298) $(8,105,339 )
Net cash used in investing activities (3,550,192) (1,437 )
Net cash used in financing activities - (73,009,119)
Ending cash and cash equivalents balance $4,028,337 $13,048,827
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Cash Flows

As we pursue strategic alternatives, we believe that a main focus of management is to effectively manage our balance
sheet through cash flow management of our tenant leases, maintaining or improving occupancy, and pursuing and
recycling capital.

We generally finance our operations and acquisitions through cash on hand. The Company filed definitive proxy
materials with the SEC on July 1, 2014, which included a plan of liquidation via a downstream merger into Gyrodyne,
LLC (a newly formed wholly-owned subsidiary) which will be owned post-merger by the former shareholders of the
Company, shareholders of GSD and interest holders of dividend notes. If the shareholders approve the proposed
merger, the Company will be reporting under the Liquidation Basis of Accounting and expects to complete the sale of
its assets and related distributions to shareholders by December 31, 2016.
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As of December 31, 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents totaling approximately $4.0 million and
investments in U.S. guaranteed hybrid mortgage backed securities of approximately $6.0 million. The Company
anticipates that the combination of its current cash balance and cash flow from continuing operations will be adequate
to fund business operations and the pursuit of the merger/tax plan of liquidation over the next twelve months. The
Company intends to use the net proceeds received from the rights offering to pay accrued interest on the 2014
Dividend Note and two payment-in-kind notes, to meet current funding obligations of the pension plan resulting from
its termination, to provide funding to GSD under the liquidity facility established pursuant to GSD’s operating
agreement, for pursuing development rights for the Flowerfield property through GSD, for necessary capital
improvements in GSD’s real estate portfolio which we manage and for general working capital.

The proposed Merger requires the approval by holders of two-thirds of all outstanding shares under New York law.
On June 5, 2014, Gyrodyne announced that a special meeting of Gyrodyne shareholders would be held on August 14,
2014 to authorize the Merger. Gyrodyne postponed the special meeting, first to August 27,2014 and then to December
5, 2014, to allow additional time for shareholders to vote on the Merger. Although the shares that were voted in these
previous attempts to conduct the special meeting were overwhelmingly voted in favor of the Merger, not enough
shares were voted to achieve the two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote requirement. Accordingly, on November 4,
2014, the Company announced that the Company’s special meeting originally scheduled for August 14, 2014 and
previously postponed to August 27, 2014 and then again to December 5, 2014, has been further postponed until the
first half of 2015. The Company and its advisors will continue to analyze potential options in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders, which includes this rights offering and may include other enhancements designed to
facilitate the ability to complete the Merger.

This prospectus is not to be considered material to solicit proxies or deemed an offer to sell the Gyrodyne, LLC
equity interests (“Gyrodyne, LLC Shares”), which solicitation and offer will only be made through a definitive
proxy statement/prospectus relating to the Merger and the issuance of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. Gyrodyne
filed definitive proxy materials with the SEC on July 1, 2014 with respect to the Plan of Merger. If our board
determines to try again to hold the special meeting to authorize the Plan of Merger, which is our current
intention, Gyrodyne will solicit proxies through such definitive proxy statement or, if necessary, a post-effective
amendment thereto.

The Company believes that the Merger, which our shareholders have voted overwhelmingly in favor of in our
previous attempts to conduct the special meeting, will preserve the tax benefits from distributions under a tax plan of
liquidation and simultaneously mitigate potential information reporting penalties from any failure to achieve a tax
liquidation in the 2 year period ending September 2015. The Company has approximately $10.0 million comprised of
cash and investments in mortgage backed securities which will be partially used to fund the strategic alternative
expenses in pursuit of the merger/tax plan of liquidation. The Company estimated and reported in the proxy
statement/prospectus filed on July1, 2014, under the heading “Estimated Cash Proceeds and Outlays: Indicated
Distribution Range” total gross cash proceeds from the sale of its assets of approximately $45.0 million. Based on the
Company’s current cash balance and the above forecast, the Company estimates distributable cash stemming from the
liquidation of the Company of approximately $43.6 million, plus the net proceeds from this Rights Offering.     
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In addition to these ongoing requirements, the continued economic challenges for small businesses, including the lack
of available credit to many of our tenant classes who are small businesses and the uncertainty facing medical tenants
brought about by the 2010 Federal health care reform legislation, could adversely affect our operating results and
accordingly the estimated cash proceeds from the plan of liquidation.

Net cash used in operating activities was $5,470,298 and $8,105,339 during the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The cash used in the current year was primarily the strategic costs of $1,836,476 (less
approximately $357,000 that was accrued and unpaid at December 31, 2014), the payment of the 2013 strategic
expenses that were not paid until 2014 of approximately $1 million and the 2014 payment of the unpaid balance of the
2013 ICP to directors and one former director totaling $2,850,199.

The cash used in operating activities in the prior year was primarily related to strategic alternative expenses of
$3,637,123 (less approximately $1 million that remained in accounts payable), federal excise tax of $3,521,320 and
the payments made under the incentive compensation plan to the Board, one former director, certain employees and
former employees, of $2,471,854, $378,345, $882,805 and $1,311,596, respectively. The payments triggered under
the Company’s Incentive Compensation Plan and the Federal excise tax were in conjunction with the declaration and
payment of the special dividend announced on September 12, 2013 and paid on December 30, 2013. The payments to
the Board and former director were paid in early January 2014 and therefore did not affect the cash used in operations.
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Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $3,550,192 and $1,437 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The cash used in investing activities in the current period was attributable to the purchase of
securities of approximately $2.5 million net of principal distributions. The securities are currently generating a yield
of approximately 2%. The investments are in mortgage-backed securities with either AA or AAA ratings fully
guaranteed by US government agencies (the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation). Additionally, the Company incurred land development costs of approximately $137,500 on
our undeveloped land at Flowerfield, tenant improvements of approximately $382,000 and approximately $545,000 in
common area capital expenditures. The land development costs are comprised of real estate taxes and non-recurring
capital improvement costs related to the Flowerfield property slated for development and currently not being utilized
by the industrial park. The cash used in investing activities in the prior period was attributable to land development
costs of approximately $108,000 on our undeveloped land at Flowerfield. On our operating real estate portfolio, we
incurred tenant improvements and common area improvements of approximately $493,600 and $396,000 to improve
occupancy rates and maximize our effective rental rate per square foot.

There was no cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014. The net cash used in financing
activities amounted to $73,009,119 for the year ended December 31, 2013. During 2013, the Company issued a
special dividend which resulted in a payment of $67,995,704. In addition, during 2013, the Company prepaid the last
remaining outstanding mortgage. This resulted in total principal payments of approximately $5,013,000.

Beginning in the second half of 2007, the residential mortgage and capital markets began showing signs of stress,
primarily in the form of escalating default rates on sub-prime mortgages, declining residential home values and
increasing inventory nationwide. This “credit crisis” spread to the broader commercial credit markets and has reduced
the availability of financing and narrowed interest rate spreads. These factors, coupled with the slowing economy,
reduced the volume of real estate transactions and increased capitalization rates. During 2014 and 2013, the economy
improved but at a rate that was slower than past economic downturns. Despite the fact that the Company has invested
in medical office buildings, an asset class that was less vulnerable to the commercial real estate downturn, if these
conditions return, our portfolio may experience lower occupancy and effective rents, which would result in a
corresponding decrease in net income, funds from operations, and cash flows.    The Long Island commercial real
estate market continues to show distress in the transaction market. In early 2014, data in the market reflected new
properties for sale continue to exceed the absorption rate for the same period. These conditions on Long Island while
improving remain reflective of a market where new properties for sale continue to exceed the absorption rate for the
same period. The continued economic challenges and distressed real estate forecasts are adversely affecting the credit
markets for commercial real estate causing some lenders to reduce or stop issuing credit or to move toward either
equity financing or a combination debt and equity often referred to as structured finance deals. Similar conditions
exist in our other geographic locations. The Company has invested in medical office buildings, an asset class that has
been facing challenges, partially attributable to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Healthcare and
Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (together, the “Healthcare Legislation”). If the conditions triggered by the
Healthcare Legislation continue, our portfolio may experience lower occupancy and effective rents, which would
result in a corresponding decrease in net income, funds from operations and cash flows. The Company successfully
increased its lease commitments to $16.5 million at December 31, 2014 compared to $15.5 million at December 31,
2013, which is mainly attributable to signing new long term leases and migrating existing tenants to long term leases.
However, the Company continues to face a competitive leasing environment which may adversely impact its ability to
grow its lease commitments.
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BUSINESS

Gyrodyne Company of America, Inc.

Gyrodyne, a self-managed and self-administered real estate investment trust formed under the laws of the State of
New York, manages a diversified portfolio of real estate properties comprising office, industrial and service-oriented
properties primarily in the New York metropolitan area. Prior to the payment of the First Special Dividend described
below, Gyrodyne owned a 68 acre site approximately 50 miles east of New York City on the north shore of Long
Island, which includes industrial and office buildings and undeveloped property that is the subject of development
plans and is referred to in this prospectus as “Flowerfield.” Prior to payment of the First Special Dividend described
below, Gyrodyne also owned medical office buildings in Port Jefferson Station, New York, Cortlandt Manor, New
York and Fairfax, Virginia. Gyrodyne is also a limited partner in the Grove, which in September 2013 sold its only
asset, an undeveloped 3,700 plus acre property in Palm Beach County, Florida.

Gyrodyne’s common stock is traded on NASDAQ under the symbol GYRO. Gyrodyne’s principal executive offices are
located at One Flowerfield, Suite 24, Saint James, New York 11780 and its telephone number is (631) 584-5400.
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Business History: Manufacturing to REIT

Following its inception in 1946 and for the next 25 years, Gyrodyne engaged in design, testing, development, and
production of coaxial helicopters primarily for the U.S. Navy. Following a sharp reduction in Gyrodyne’s helicopter
manufacturing business and its elimination by 1975, Gyrodyne began converting its vacant manufacturing facilities
and established its rental property operation at its principal location, Flowerfield. The Company has since
concentrated its efforts on the management and development of real estate. The Company subsequently completed its
conversion to a REIT, effective May 1, 2006. As a REIT that converted from a regular C corporation, Gyrodyne was
subject to a federal corporate level tax at the highest regular corporate rate (currently 35%) on all or a portion of any
gain recognized from a sale of assets occurring during a specified period after the date of its conversion (the
“recognition period,” and such tax, the “built-in gain tax”), to the extent of the built-in gain in those assets on the date of
the conversion. The recognition period is generally 10 years.

Condemnation; Acquisition of Properties

On November 2, 2005, the State University of New York at Stony Brook (the “University”) filed an acquisition map
with the Suffolk County Clerk’s office and vested title in approximately 245.5 acres of property at Flowerfield
pursuant to the New York Eminent Domain Procedure Law (the “EDPL”). On March 27, 2006, Gyrodyne received
payment from the State of New York in the amount of $26,315,000, which Gyrodyne had previously elected under the
EDPL to accept as an advance payment for such property.

On May 1, 2006, Gyrodyne filed a Notice of Claim with the Court of Claims of the State of New York seeking $158
million in damages from the State of New York resulting from the eminent domain taking by the University of the
245.5 acres of the Flowerfield property (the “Condemnation Litigation”).

Thereafter, Gyrodyne acquired ten buildings in the Port Jefferson Professional Park, Port Jefferson Station, New York
in June 2007, Cortlandt Medical Center in Cortlandt Manor, New York in July 2008 (and additional properties in
Cortlandt Manor in August 2008 and May 2010), and the Fairfax Medical Center, Fairfax City, Virginia in 2009 with
proceeds from the $26,315,000 advance payment.

In July 2012, Gyrodyne received $167,501,657 from New York State pursuant to judgments in Gyrodyne’s favor in the
Condemnation Litigation, which consisted of $98,685,000 in additional damages (the “2012 Proceeds”), $1,474,941 in
costs, disbursements and expenses, and $67,341,716 in interest. As the interest portion was considered REIT taxable
income for the 2012 taxable year (although not for purposes of the REIT gross income tests, pursuant to a private
letter ruling received by Gyrodyne in 2011), our board of directors determined that it was in the best interests of
shareholders to distribute $56,786,644 in the form of a cash dividend. On November 19, 2012, our board of directors
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declared a special cash dividend of $38.30 per share, which was paid on December 14, 2012. The declaration of the
dividend also required a cash payment to participants of Gyrodyne’s Incentive Compensation Plan (“ICP”) in the
aggregate amount of $4,213,000 to be allocated and paid to ICP participants in accordance with ICP rules. As of
December 31, 2012, Gyrodyne intended to defer, for federal income tax purposes, recognition of the $98,685,000 gain
on receipt of the 2012 Proceeds by investing this amount in qualifying REIT properties.

Strategic Process

Strategic Review. In December 2005, we announced our corporate strategy to position Gyrodyne so that we are best
able to achieve one or more shareholder liquidity events in a reasonable period of time that would put the maximum
amount of cash or marketable securities in the hands of our shareholders in a tax efficient manner. In pursuit of that
strategy, we set out and accomplished the following: conversion to a REIT, diligent management of the condemnation
lawsuit, active management of our real estate portfolio to improve our operating cash flow, active pursuit of the
re-zoning effort of our Flowerfield property to maximize its value, efficient use of our capital to support the value of
our real estate portfolio and increase of our working capital without materially increasing our debt service
requirements.

In August 2012, Gyrodyne announced that it was undertaking a strategic review, which was designed to maximize
shareholder value through one or more potential cash distributions and/or through a potential sale, merger or other
strategic combination, consistent with Gyrodyne’s stated goal of providing one or more tax efficient liquidity events to
its shareholders. In August 2012, Gyrodyne retained Rothschild Inc. (“Rothschild”), as financial advisor, and Skadden,
Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, as legal advisor, and created a committee of its board of directors composed of
four directors to lead the strategic review process. Rothschild’s mandate did not include certain services in connection
with the Merger and Plan of Liquidation. Commencing in October 2012, Gyrodyne solicited interest in proposals to
acquire Gyrodyne from over 260 entities, and, in March 2013, an information memorandum was circulated to over 30
entities who had executed nondisclosure agreements. In the several months thereafter, members of our board of
directors and management met with several bidders, permitted such bidders to conduct due diligence and indicative
bids were received from a number of parties. Some of such indicative bids were for the whole Company and others
contemplated the sale of a partial interest to a bidder who would assume control, but none of such bids were fully
developed or contained value parameters and other terms acceptable to our board of directors and the Strategic
Alternatives Committee. 
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On March 12, 2014, Gyrodyne and Rothschild entered into an amendment to the Rothschild engagement letter,
pursuant to which the engagement of Rothschild was terminated and Gyrodyne agreed to pay Rothschild $970,967.14
in full satisfaction of any and all amounts due or alleged to be due under the engagement letter by reason of the First
Special Dividend, the Second Special Dividend, any other corporate transaction publicly announced prior to March
12, 2014 or any amount that might have otherwise become due by reason of our obligation to pay Rothschild a success
fee in connection with certain transactions that may be consummated during a specified period following a
termination. Under the engagement letter, approximately $850,000 of the fee was recognized in 2013 as a result of the
special cash dividend and the balance of approximately $120,000 was recorded as an expense in the first quarter of
2014. Gyrodyne had previously paid Rothschild a total of $629,032.26, exclusive of reimbursed expenses, pursuant to
the engagement letter. Strategic alternative expenses incurred for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
were $1,836,476, $3,637,123, and $1,013,043, respectively.

2013 Private Letter Ruling. Following a change in tax law in January 2013 reducing the recognition period applicable
for the 2012 taxable year to 5 years, Gyrodyne applied for a private letter ruling, which we call the “2013 PLR” in this
prospectus, from the IRS in March 2013, concluding that Gyrodyne’s receipt of the 2012 Proceeds occurred outside of
the applicable recognition period for 2012, and therefore permitting Gyrodyne to distribute, by means of a dividend
such as the First Special Dividend described below, the gains realized from its receipt of the 2012 Proceeds, subject to
a 4% excise tax but without incurring the built-in gains tax. On September 12, 2013, Gyrodyne received the 2013
PLR, which provides a favorable ruling from the IRS.

Strategic Alternatives. In the informal session held on September 6, 2013, our board of directors considered the
financial effects of a range of distribution scenarios, ranging from no distribution and reinvestment in REIT qualified
assets to a full distribution of the $98.7 million using funded debt. In doing so, it considered the impact of the 4%
excise tax applicable to a 2013 distribution of the 2012 Proceeds, transaction costs and payments required to be made
to the Incentive Compensation Plan (“ICP”) participants as a result of a special dividend. At the September 6 meeting,
Rothschild presented materials designed to facilitate a discussion with respect to the sizing of a potential cash
distribution to shareholders, focusing on three alternative scenarios for distributing cash to shareholders: (i) distribute
$45.0 million in cash to shareholders in 2013 and reinvest $53.7 million in replacement properties; (ii) distribute $98.7
million in a combination of cash and dividend notes in 2013; and (iii) distribute $98.7 million in a combination of cash
and interests in a liquidating trust or a newly formed limited liability company into which Gyrodyne would transfer its
remaining assets. The presentation also discussed the possibility of a plan of liquidation, and considerations with
respect to a partial cash distribution and a full cash distribution of the entire $98.7 million.

At its September 9, 2013 meeting, our board of directors discussed that, in light of the receipt of the 2013 PLR and the
timeframe necessary to achieve the benefits thereof, and given the lack of any developed acceptable third party
acquisition or other control transaction with a third party with respect to Gyrodyne, that it appeared unlikely any such
transaction would be developed on a basis more favorable to shareholders than the distribution permitted by the 2013
PLR. Our board of directors continued to review the issues related to a significant distribution of cash to its
shareholders, including whether such distribution should be as part of a plan of liquidation.

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

106



Tax Liquidation; Adoption of Plan of Liquidation Further to Gyrodyne’s previously stated goal of providing one or
more tax efficient liquidity events to our shareholders and taking into account, among other factors, Gyrodyne’s receipt
of the 2013 PLR, on September 12, 2013, our board of directors concluded that it was in the best interests of
Gyrodyne and its shareholders to liquidate Gyrodyne for federal income tax purposes. In adopting the Plan of
Liquidation for federal income tax purposes, our board of directors also determined to pursue the actual disposition of
our remaining assets in an orderly manner designed to obtain the best value reasonably available for such assets. The
completion of the merger into Gyrodyne, LLC within two years following the adoption of the Plan of Liquidation
would complete the Tax Liquidation even though the actual disposition of the properties within the same period had
not necessarily occurred. Our board of directors believed that the prompt completion of the Tax Liquidation by means
of the Merger while permitting a longer period to dispose of the remaining assets would help obtain better values by
enabling the sales to take place without the potential timing constraints created by completing the Merger as promptly
as practicable. In addition, the ability to extend the time of holding the properties would permit Gyrodyne to seek
enhancements of the value of Flowerfield including by pursuing various development or zoning opportunities. 
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First Special Dividend. On September 13, 2013, our board of directors declared the First Special Dividend, in the
amount of $98,685,000, or $66.56 per Gyrodyne share, of which approximately $68,000,000, or $45.86 per share, was
to be paid in cash. On such date, Gyrodyne announced that the non-cash balance of the First Special Dividend
($30,685,000) would be payable in the form of cash proceeds from any further asset dispositions effected prior to
payment of the dividend, dividend notes, interests in Gyrodyne, LLC or any other limited liability company to which
Gyrodyne might transfer its remaining assets (or into which it might merge), or a combination of such forms at the
discretion of our board of directors. Distribution of non-cash consideration was necessary because Gyrodyne did not
have sufficient cash on hand to cover the full amount of the First Special Dividend.

On December 19, 2013, our board of directors determined that the non-cash portion of the First Special Dividend
would be paid by distribution of all of the equity interests in GSD, a subsidiary of Gyrodyne into which Gyrodyne
transferred its properties, and determined that, after consideration of a management presentation regarding the
estimated fair market value of the properties to be transferred to GSD, the aggregate estimated fair value of the equity
interests in GSD (the “GSD Interests”) to be distributed in the First Special Dividend was $30,685,000 (an amount
determined by our board of directors to be equal to the estimated fair market value of the properties, net of all
liabilities encumbering such properties, including mortgage loans of $13,840,889 as of December 31, 2013 payable to
a subsidiary of Gyrodyne). Gyrodyne contributed to GSD 100% of the economic interest in all of Gyrodyne’s real
estate properties: Flowerfield and the medical office buildings in Port Jefferson Station, New York, Cortlandt Manor,
New York and Fairfax, Virginia. We refer to such properties as the Contributed Properties. The board determined to
transfer the Contributed Properties to GSD and to make the non-cash portion of the First Special Dividend in GSD
Interests in order to facilitate its ability to maximize recognition of built-in gains in the Contributed Properties while
minimizing built-in gains tax at the corporate level.

The First Special Dividend was paid on December 30, 2013 to shareholders of record as of November 1, 2013. As
required by NASDAQ rules governing special dividends of this magnitude, the ex-dividend date was set one business
day following the payment date.

Payment of the First Special Dividend was not conditioned on the approval of the proposal to authorize the Plan of
Merger. However, failure to complete the Tax Liquidation of Gyrodyne by the second anniversary of the adoption
date of the Plan of Liquidation will impact the tax characteristics of the First Special Dividend to the recipients. See
“Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences.”

In connection with the First Special Dividend, Gyrodyne incurred costs of $3.4 million for the 4% excise tax, $1.6
million for transaction costs and approximately $5.0 million for ICP payments.

Solvency Opinion. In connection with the First Special Dividend, our board of directors requested the opinion of
Valuation Research Corporation, a nationally recognized provider of solvency opinions, as to the solvency of
Gyrodyne after giving effect to the First Special Dividend. On September 13, 2013, at a meeting of our board of
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directors, Valuation Research delivered its opinion that, immediately after the completion of the First Special
Dividend, (i) the aggregate fair value and present fair saleable value of our assets exceed the sum of our total
liabilities; (ii) we will be able to pay our debts as such debts mature or otherwise become absolute or due; and (iii) we
do not have unreasonably small capital.

Initial Adoption of the Plan of Merger; Changes to Internal Structure. On October 9, 2013, our board determined
that in order to most clearly and directly accomplish its goal of distribution of the $98.7 million as a return of capital
to shareholders, and in light of relevant consideration of issues of business continuity, shareholder liquidity and
timeliness of execution, Gyrodyne would pursue the Tax Liquidation by means of a merger of Gyrodyne into
Gyrodyne, LLC. The board determined that accomplishing the Tax Liquidation by means of the Merger would allow
continuation of Gyrodyne’s operations as Gyrodyne, LLC, thereby allowing the actual disposition of the medical office
properties and steps related to the actual development or disposition of the Flowerfield property to be undertaken in an
orderly manner designed to obtain the best value reasonably available for the assets. Our board also believed that the
Merger was more readily understandable to our shareholders, while avoiding the potential negative inferences that
could be drawn by prospective counterparties who could seek to take advantage of Gyrodyne had it been operating
under a plan of dissolution. Our board also determined that, if the merger into Gyrodyne, LLC was not completed by
December 31, 2013, the most likely in-kind distribution in the First Special Dividend would be of nontransferable
interests in GSD. In order to achieve the full benefits of the First Special Dividend, Gyrodyne needed to make a
distribution of in-kind assets with a value of at least $30,685,000 in the aggregate. In order to facilitate the First
Special Dividend and the Merger pursuant to the Plan of Merger, in October 2013 Gyrodyne determined to contribute
all of its interests in the Contributed Properties to a new subsidiary entity, GSD, a limited liability company, of which
Gyrodyne was the sole member prior to the issuance of interests to Gyrodyne shareholders in the First Special
Dividend. 
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Second Special Dividend . The transfer of the Contributed Properties by Gyrodyne to GSD resulted in the recognition
of approximately $28.4 million of capital gain income by Gyrodyne in 2013. Giving effect to offsetting deductions,
Gyrodyne determined that it would have approximately $18 million in REIT income for 2013. In order to satisfy
applicable REIT distribution requirements, on December 20, 2013, Gyrodyne declared an additional dividend (the
“Second Special Dividend”), payable on January 31, 2014 to Gyrodyne shareholders of record as of December 31, 2013.
The Second Special Dividend was paid in the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global dividend
note due June 30, 2017 (the “Dividend Note”) aggregating $16,150,000 ($10.89 per share) in principal amount. The
Dividend Note bears interest at 5.0% per annum, payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year,
commencing June 15, 2014, and may be payable in cash or in the form of additional notes. On June 16, 2014, the
initial semi-annual interest payment on the Dividend Note was paid in kind in the form of non-transferrable
uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note due June 30, 2017 in the principal amount of $302,813 that
otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to the initial semi-annual interest payment date thereunder.
Payment of the Second Special Dividend was not conditioned on the approval by Gyrodyne’s shareholders of the Plan
of Merger. However, failure to complete the Tax Liquidation of Gyrodyne by the second anniversary of the adoption
date of the Plan of Liquidation will impact the tax characteristics of the Second Special Dividend to the recipients. See
“Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences.”

2013 Revisions to the Plan of Merger. On December 19, 2013, our board of directors determined that, having
declared the First Special Dividend to achieve the benefits of the 2013 PLR and the Second Special Dividend to make
the required distribution of 2013 REIT income, that the entire non-cash portion of the First Special Dividend would be
satisfied by issuance of all of the GSD Interests and that the Second Special Dividend would be paid in the form of
Dividend Notes. The board also determined to amend the Plan of Merger to provide that both Gyrodyne and GSD
would merge into Gyrodyne, LLC and that in such merger the GSD Interests distributed in the First Special Dividend
and the common shares of Gyrodyne would be converted into, and the Dividend Notes issued as the Second Special
Dividend would be redeemed for, Gyrodyne, LLC Shares, thereby resulting in a simplified capital structure and
permitting holders of GSD Interests and holders of Dividend Notes as well as Gyrodyne shareholders to receive freely
transferable Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. The board also authorized the approval of the Merger by Gyrodyne in its capacity
as the sole member of GSD and Gyrodyne, LLC. The Plan of Merger provides that holders of common stock of
Gyrodyne will receive approximately 15.2% of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares in the aggregate, holders of the Dividend
Notes ($16,150,000 initial aggregate principal amount and accrued interest thereon) would receive approximately
29.2% of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares in the aggregate, and holders of GSD Interests would receive approximately
55.6% of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares in the aggregate. The board of directors determined these allocations based on
the relative values it attributed to the three categories of securities that will be exchanged or redeemed for Gyrodyne,
LLC Shares, namely the assumed pro forma book value of Gyrodyne of $8,450,000 (approximately $5.70 per share),
the principal amount of the Dividend Note ($16,150,000 or $10.89 per share) and the fair market value of GSD
Interests as determined by our board ($30,685,000 or $20.70 per share). (Our board of directors recognized that the
GSD Interests and Dividend Notes were not transferrable, and the holders would not be able to readily realize value,
but as the board of directors intended that such restrictions would be eliminated with the registration of interests and
Dividend Notes either pursuant to the Merger or otherwise, that it was appropriate not to apply a valuation discount
based on such temporary liquidity factors.)

Adjustment to Plan of Merger Allocations

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

110



The Plan of Merger originally provided for an allocation of Gyrodyne LLC Shares to be issued in the Merger of
15.2% to Gyrodyne shareholders, 29.2% to the holders of the Dividend Notes and 55.6% to the holders of common
shares of GSD (collectively, the “Initial Allocations”). The Plan of Merger as revised by the December 2013 amendment
provides that each of the Initial Allocations set forth therein of Gyrodyne LLC Shares to be issued in the Merger in
exchange for Gyrodyne common shares, GSD Interests and interests in the Dividend Note are subject to adjustment in
the discretion of the Gyrodyne board of directors. The Plan of Merger provides that any changes made to the Initial
Allocations will be announced at least ten days prior to the meeting of shareholders at which shareholders of
Gyrodyne will be asked to consider and vote upon the Plan of Merger.
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At a board of directors meeting held on April 24, 2015, our directors determined to adjust the allocation of common
shares of Gyrodyne, LLC to be issued pursuant to the Merger to account for certain developments since such
allocations were originally set in December 2013. Assuming the full exercise of the subscription rights in the rights
offering, the common shares of Gyrodyne, LLC to be issued in the Merger will be allocated as follows:

●Approximately 22.6% in the aggregate to Gyrodyne shareholders;

●Approximately 30.0% in the aggregate to holders of interests in dividend notes issued by Gyrodyne in the aggregateprincipal amount of $17,533,000 (the “Dividend Notes”); and

●Approximately 47.4% in the aggregate to holders of common shares of GSD.

Gyrodyne’s board of directors determined the foregoing allocation adjustments based on the increase in the adjusted
net book value of Gyrodyne shares due to the rights offering and the anticipated net proceeds to Gyrodyne of
$5,606,000 from the rights offering, assuming all 2,224,020 shares are sold. In addition, the allocation reflects
adjusted net book value, face value and “fair value” (based on appraised values of underlying properties owned by GSD,
less liabilities) of Gyrodyne, the Dividend Notes and GSD, respectively, in each case as of December 31, 2014. This
methodology is consistent with the valuation metrics used to determine the original allocations in December, 2013.

Gyrodyne announced the foregoing allocation adjustments in a press release dated April 27, 2015, a copy of which
was filed on April 28, 2015 with the SEC under cover of a Current Report on Form 8-K.

As directors of Gyrodyne, our board members have fiduciary obligations to act in the best interests of Gyrodyne and
our shareholders. Our directors will also be acting on behalf of Gyrodyne in its capacity as the managing member of
GSD, and in such capacity has sole and absolute discretion regarding the management of the affairs of GSD, including
with respect to the Merger. See “Risk Factors-- If the Merger is consummated, the allocation of Gyrodyne, LLC Shares
to be issued to Gyrodyne shareholders, GSD shareholders and holders of interests in the Dividend Note is subject to
adjustment in the discretion of the Gyrodyne board of directors”, and “--We no longer own our properties, and there
could be conflicts between our shareholders and holders of GSD Interests”.

It is possible that the Gyrodyne board of directors may make further adjustments to the foregoing allocations prior to
the shareholders meeting at which shareholders will be asked to vote on the Merger to the extent any developments
materially impact the relative values of Gyrodyne, the Dividend Notes and GSD, including without limitation, any
material shortfall in the number of shares actually sold in the rights offering from the maximum number of shares
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offered. Any such further allocation adjustments will be announced via press release, a copy of which will be filed
with the SEC under cover of a Current Report on Form 8-K, issued and filed at least ten days prior to the shareholders
meeting at which shareholders will be asked to vote on the Merger. 

Managed Properties

On December 30, 2013, as part of the First Special Dividend we distributed to our shareholders, as the non-cash
portion of the special dividend announced on September 12, 2013, all of the equity interests of GSD, which owned
100% of the interests in our four real properties, subject to related mortgage debt in favor of Flowerfield Mortgage
Inc., a subsidiary of Gyrodyne, with Gyrodyne having the contractual right to manage the business and properties of
GSD. Based on management provisions set forth in GSD’s limited liability company agreement which designates sole
management authority in Gyrodyne, we concluded that GSD is a variable interest entity and that GSD’s financial
statements should be consolidated with Gyrodyne’s. Accordingly, we may use references to "we" or "our" to refer to
Gyrodyne and GSD and "Gyrodyne's properties" or "GSD's properties" (or derivations thereof) interchangeably in this
prospectus. In this regard, however, it should be noted that GSD has legal title to the properties and will incur any
operating or capital losses resulting from the properties, due to risks as outlined below or otherwise. However, such
losses may adversely impact GSD's ability to meet debt service obligations to Gyrodyne, repayments of mortgages to
Flowerfield Mortgage, Inc., or payment of management fees to Gyrodyne, or may result in capital needs at GSD that
might require additional capital from Gyrodyne or external sources, and in fact has required additional working capital
from Gyrodyne.

GSD has 100% ownership in two medical office parks comprising 91,581 rentable square feet, ten of fourteen
buildings in another medical office park comprising 39,329 rentable square feet and a 68 acre site consisting of a
130,426 rentable square foot multitenant industrial park and undeveloped property that is the subject of development
plans. The medical office properties are subject to mortgages owned indirectly by Gyrodyne. As the owner of the
properties previously held by Gyrodyne, GSD has all the attributes of ownership with respect to such properties,
including the right to receive rental income. 
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Substantially all of GSD’s properties are subject to net leases in which the tenant must reimburse GSD for a portion, or
substantially all, of the costs and/or cost increases for utilities, insurance, repairs and maintenance, and real estate
taxes. However, certain leases provide that GSD is responsible for certain operating expenses.

Following the distribution of all of the common membership interests of GSD to our shareholders in the First Special
Dividend, Gyrodyne has been managing GSD pursuant to the terms of GSD’s limited liability company agreement (the
“LLC Agreement”) which provides that Gyrodyne has sole and absolute discretion regarding the management and
affairs of GSD. On December 24, 2014, FPI, the taxable REIT subsidiary, Gyrodyne and GSD entered into a
management services agreement (the “Management Services Agreement”) pursuant to which FPI agreed to continue
providing management services to GSD under substantially the same terms previously provided under the
management provisions contained in the LLC Agreement. In our capacity as GSD’s managing member, we have
unilateral authority, without seeking GSD shareholder approval, over the management of the real estate assets,
including leasing and sale of GSD’s real estate holdings and the execution of any agency and brokerage agreements to
facilitate such leases and sales, investing in GSD’s real estate holdings through capital improvements and proceeding
strategically with seeking to maximize the value of the undeveloped Flowerfield property. Under the LLC Agreement,
Gyrodyne is entitled to be paid market-rate compensation for its services as well as reimbursement for any costs and
expenses incurred by and properly allocable to GSD. In connection with such management services, Gyrodyne was
obligated to provide an initial liquidity facility to GSD in an amount up to $2.5 million as Gyrodyne may determine,
as GSD’s managing member, from time to time. During the third quarter of 2014, our board authorized an increase in
the liquidity facility to $3.5 million, and in January 2015 our board authorized a further increase to $5.5 million. The
foregoing income (excluding the interest income on the debt facilities is earned by FPI for managing GSD and is not
deemed to be REIT qualified income and therefore is appropriately payable to FPI, Gyrodyne’s taxable REIT
subsidiary.

Flowerfield. Effective December 30, 2013, GSD owns a 68 acre site approximately 50 miles east of New York City
on the north shore of Long Island, which includes industrial and office buildings and undeveloped property that is the
subject of development plans and is referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as “Flowerfield.” Flowerfield's
location also places it in hydrological zone VIII, one of the most liberal with respect to effluent discharge rates. GSD
currently has 130,426 square feet of rentable space located on approximately 10 acres of developed property at
Flowerfield. As of December 31, 2014, there were 40 tenants, comprising 45 leases and 10 long-term tenants under
month-to-month commitments. The annual base rent at Flowerfield based on the rates in effect as of December 31,
2014 is $1,521,000 which included month-to-month annualized base rent of $132,000 on 10,917 square feet. The
occupancy rate is 70% as of December 31, 2014. The Flowerfield property is located in Smithtown Township. Studies
including environmental, archeological, ecological and traffic have been conducted in connection with development
plans -- all with no significant adverse findings. The Company believes that material costs will not be incurred in
connection with compliance with environmental laws. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31,
2013, Gyrodyne had no material expenses related to environmental issues.

In June 2007, Gyrodyne filed an application with the Town of Smithtown, New York to develop a gated, age
restricted community on the remaining Flowerfield property that includes 39 single-family homes, 60 townhouses and
210 condominiums. The residential mix and total number of residential units could change prior to or upon approval
by local government agencies. Living space would range from 1,600 square feet for the smallest condominiums to
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2,800 square feet for detached single-family homes. Amenities would include a clubhouse with recreation facilities,
pedestrian and bicycle paths, and extensive landscaping. The application requires a change of zone of approximately
62.4 acres from "light industrial" (approx. 55.5 acres) and "residential" (approx. 6.9 acres) to "planned residential".
The costs associated with the ownership and development of the property through December 31, 2014 consisted of
architectural and engineering costs, legal expenses, economic analysis, soil management and real estate taxes totaling
approximately $1,961,000. We cannot predict the outcome of the application and the Company has not aggressively
pursued it as other options are being evaluated. Gyrodyne has an additional 5.2 acres bordering our industrial park that
is currently zoned residential and is not part of the application for planned residential.

Port Jefferson. On June 27, 2007, Gyrodyne acquired ten of the fourteen buildings in the Port Jefferson Professional
Park in Port Jefferson Station, New York, which as of December 30, 2013 is owned by GSD, subject to a mortgage
obligation to a Gyrodyne subsidiary of approximately $4,147,000. As of December 31, 2014, the mortgage obligation
is approximately $3,720,000 which is eliminated in the consolidated balance sheet.. The buildings were acquired for
an aggregate purchase price of $8,850,000 or $225 per square foot. The buildings, located at 1-6, 8, 9 and 11 Medical
Drive and 5380 Nesconset Highway in Port Jefferson Station, are situated on 5.16 acres with 39,329 square feet of
rentable space. As of December 31, 2014, there were 15 tenants, comprising 14 leases; the difference reflects one
long-term tenant under a month to month agreement. The annual base rent based on the rates in effect as of December
31, 2014 is $743,000 which included month–to-month annualized base rent of $21,000 on approximately 800 square
feet. The occupancy rate was 70% as of December 31, 2014. Gyrodyne funded $5,551,191 of the purchase price by
the assumption of the existing mortgage debt on the property and the remainder in cash after adjustments. The balance
of the mortgage loan was prepaid in full in January 2013 by a subsidiary of Gyrodyne which took an assignment of the
loan and mortgage. The acquisition of this property qualified for the deferral treatment under Section 1033 of the
Internal Revenue Code. 
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Cortlandt Manor. On June 2, 2008, Gyrodyne acquired the Cortlandt Medical Center in Cortlandt Manor, New York,
which as of December 30, 2013 is owned by GSD, subject to a mortgage obligation to a Gyrodyne subsidiary of
approximately $3,512,000. As of December 31, 2014 the mortgage obligation is approximately $3,302,000, which is
eliminated in the consolidated balance sheet. The property consists of five office buildings which are situated on 5.01
acres with 31,198 square feet of rentable space on the date of acquisition. The purchase price was $7 million or $231
per square foot. As of December 31, 2014, there were 15 tenants, comprising 15 leases, renting space with an annual
base rent of approximately $821,000, based on the tenant base and rates in effect as of December 31, 2014. The
property was 100% occupied as of December 31, 2014. Of the $7 million purchase price for the property, Gyrodyne
paid $1,750,000 in cash and received financing in the amount of $5,250,000. The balance of the mortgage loan was
prepaid in full in November 2012 by a subsidiary of Gyrodyne which took an assignment of the loan and mortgage.
The acquisition of this property qualified for the deferral treatment under Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Following certain capital improvements, the rentable square feet currently is 31,421 square feet.

On August 29, 2008, Gyrodyne acquired a 1,600 square foot single-family residential dwelling located on 1.43 acres
at 1987 Crompond Road, Cortlandt Manor, New York, which as of December 2013 is owned by GSD. The purchase
price was $305,000. Gyrodyne was able to take advantage of a distressed sale by the seller as the property is located
directly across the street from the Hudson Valley Hospital Center and adjoins the Cortlandt Medical Center. The
property is zoned for medical office use by special permit and is potentially a future development site for expansion of
the Cortlandt Medical Center. This property has not been mortgaged.

On May 20, 2010, Gyrodyne acquired the building located at 1989 Crompond Road, Cortlandt Manor, New York,
which as of December 30, 2013 is owned by GSD. The property consists of 2,450 square feet of rentable space on 1.6
acres. The purchase price for the property was approximately $720,000. Gyrodyne financed approximately 90% of the
purchase price utilizing its then revolving credit facility, which was prepaid in full in December 2012. The property
was 100% occupied as of December 31, 2014 by two tenants with a total annual base rent of $35,700. This property is
adjacent to the 1.43 acre property acquired by Gyrodyne in August 2008, and these two properties combined with the
5.01 acre Cortlandt Medical Center site result in Gyrodyne owning approximately eight acres across Crompond Road
from the Hudson Valley Hospital Center.

Fairfax. On March 31, 2009, Gyrodyne acquired the Fairfax Medical Center in Fairfax City, Virginia, which as of
December 30, 2013 is owned by GSD, subject to a mortgage obligation to a Gyrodyne subsidiary of approximately
$6,181,000. As of December 31, 2014 the mortgage obligation is approximately $5,867,000, which is eliminated in
the consolidated balance sheet. The property consists of two office buildings which are situated on 3.5 acres with
57,621 square feet of rentable space at date of acquisition. The purchase price was $12,891,000 or $224 per square
foot. As of December 31, 2014, there were 29 tenants, comprising 30 leases, renting space with an annual base rent of
$1,463,000, based on the rates in effect as of December 31, 2014. The occupancy rate as of December 31, 2014 was
93%. Of the $12,891,000 purchase price, Gyrodyne paid $4,891,000 in cash and received financing in the amount of
$8,000,000. The acquisition of this property qualified for the deferral treatment under Section 1033 of the Internal
Revenue Code and completed the tax-efficient reinvestment program of the $26.3 million advance payment received
in connection with the condemnation of the 245.5 acres of the Flowerfield property. The balance of the mortgage loan
was prepaid in full in December 2012 by a subsidiary of Gyrodyne, which took an assignment of the loan and
mortgage.
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Management Services Agreement

On December 24, 2014, Gyrodyne and FPI entered into the Management Services Agreement with GSD, pursuant to
which we agreed to continue providing certain management services to GSD through FPI, including acquisition and
disposition services, asset management services, accounting and other administrative services, property management
services and shareholder services.

Pursuant to the Management Services Agreement, in consideration for these services GSD will:

●reimburse FPI for 85% of Gyrodyne’s general and administrative expenses and pay a fee to Gyrodyne equal to 8.5%
of such reimbursed amount;

●reimburse FPI for all rental expenses, whether value added (such as contractor and consultant expenses) or non-valueadded (such as utilities and taxes) paid by Gyrodyne in respect of the Properties;
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●pay a fee to FPI equal to 8.5% of all value added rental expenses paid by Gyrodyne in respect of the Properties (butno fee in respect of non-value added rental expenses);

●reimburse FPI for 100% (without mark-up) of any bonuses paid by Gyrodyne to its employees and directors andrelated payroll taxes on account of any sales of GSD’s properties; and

●pay interest to Gyrodyne at the rate of 5.0% per annum on any funds advanced by Gyrodyne to GSD pursuant to theliquidity facility made available to GSD by Gyrodyne.

Gyrodyne believes the foregoing fees are fair to both Gyrodyne (including FPI) and GSD based upon a number of
factors, including a management services benchmarking study commissioned by Gyrodyne and a market analysis
conducted by Management to determine whether or not the fee arrangement with GSD was “market”.

Before approving the Management Services Agreement, our board of directors carefully considered and ultimately
determined that the management fees payable by GSD to FPI are fair to both Gyrodyne (inclusive of FPI) and GSD. In
this regard, the directors discussed the fact that the management services arrangement was originally expected to be in
effect for a relatively short period of time (i.e., between January 2014 (after the distribution of the GSD Interests to
our shareholders ) and consummation of the Merger), and it is now understood that the Merger will not be
consummated until the end of the second quarter or the third quarter of 2015, if at all. The directors considered the
fairness issues from several different angles, including the fact that Gyrodyne does not receive any fees for providing
GSD a line of credit, currently of up to $5.5 million. In concluding that the fee structure was fair to both Gyrodyne
and GSD when viewed in its totality, the directors also took into consideration a management services benchmarking
study commissioned by Gyrodyne and a market analysis conducted by Management which indicated that the fee
arrangement with GSD is “market”.

Callery Judge Grove, L.P.

All references to Gyrodyne in the below paragraph refers to Flowerfield Properties, Inc., the taxable REIT subsidiary.

The Company has maintained an interest in the Grove, which originally represented a 20% limited partnership interest
in the Grove. The Grove owns a 3,700+ acre citrus grove located in Palm Beach County, Florida (the “Grove Property”),
which is the subject of a plan for mixed-use development. Based on four subsequent capital raises through 2009, each
of which the Company chose not to participate in, the Company’s share was diluted to approximately 9.99% as of
December 31, 2010, and has since been diluted to 9.32% as of December 31, 2013. During 2014, certain partners
voluntarily forfeited their limited partnership interest back to the partnership, directly resulting in an increase in
Gyrodyne’s partnership interest to 10.12%. On March 18, 2011, the Grove’s lender, Prudential Industrial Properties,
LLC ("Prudential"), commenced a foreclosure action against the Grove by filing a complaint in the Circuit Court of
Palm Beach County to foreclose upon the Grove property, alleging that the Grove has defaulted on its loan from
Prudential and that the Grove is indebted to Prudential in the amount of over $37 million in principal and over $8
million in interest and fees. On September 19, 2013, the Grove was sold, the foreclosure lawsuit was dismissed and
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Grove’s debt to Prudential was repaid. The investment is held in a taxable REIT subsidiary of the Company with $0
value and the Company had a $1,315,000 deferred tax liability as of December 31, 2013, related to the Grove, which
represents taxable losses not yet recorded pursuant to the equity method of accounting. Mainly as a result of the sale,
Gyrodyne recognized a tax gain that triggered approximately $618,000 of deferred taxes becoming currently due in
2015. The remaining deferred taxes of approximately $697,000 were recognized as a tax benefit in 2014. Gyrodyne
did not receive any distribution in connection with the sale. Under the agreement with the purchaser, Grove may
receive certain additional payments if certain development benchmarks are achieved by the purchaser. Gyrodyne
cannot predict whether these benchmarks will be achieved or as to the timing or amount of any further distributions by
Grove. 

Market Outlook

Real estate pricing is generally influenced by market interest rates. However, the movements are not simultaneous and
pricing generally lags behind interest rate adjustments for a period of time.

Today’s economic environment remains characterized by historically low interest rates which continues to compress
capitalization rates for commercial properties. Commercial property prices have nearly recovered to 2007
pre-recession values in many sectors. Analysts believe that the economy is slowly moving from recovery status
toward an expansionary cycle. Demographic trends are also favorable. In the past few years the population of the
United States has grown, but new real estate development during this period has been low relative to population
growth.
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Regulators and U.S. government bodies can have a major impact on our business. The U.S. Federal Reserve is a major
participant in, and its actions significantly impact, the commercial real estate debt markets. For example, quantitative
easing, a bond buying program implemented by the U.S. Federal Reserve to keep long-term interest rates low and
stimulate the U.S. economy, has had the effect of reducing the difference between short-term and long-term interest
rates. On October 29, 2014, however, the Federal Open Market Committee of the Federal Reserve Board announced
an end to quantitative easing signaling that the Federal Reserve believes the U.S. economy is growing at a measured
but sustained pace and that the need for continued stimulus has diminished. These actions and comments suggest that
the Federal Reserve will eventually return to a normalized monetary policy. However, the Federal Reserve has
provided no clear indication as to when it will raise interest rates. In addition, in as much as commercial lending rates
could increase irrespective of whether the Federal Reserve raises rates, it is difficult to determine whether, when and
at what pace commercial lending rates and available liquidity will change.  Any increase in real time rates could cause
a disruption in the commercial lending market which could adversely affect the real estate industry, our real estate
operations and or the value of any achievable real estate sales proceeds.

The property management industry is directly affected by the overall economy in general and the commercial real
estate market in particular. Our business may be affected by the market for medical office, residential and industrial
properties as well as the general financial and credit markets and other market or economic challenges experienced by
the U.S. economy or real estate industry as a whole. As a result, our business could be impacted by general economic,
financial and industry conditions, including (1) obtaining financing to renovate our current real estate holdings and or
pursue the rezoning efforts on the undeveloped property, (2) difficulty in consummating property transactions, (3)
increased challenges in re-leasing space, and (4) potential risks stemming from late rental receipts, tenant defaults, or
bankruptcies.

As a result of the economic downturn that began in the second half of 2007, demand for medical office, industrial,
retail space and undeveloped property declined nationwide due to bankruptcies, downsizing, layoffs and cost cutting.
Real estate transactions and development opportunities remain lessened compared to the period prior to the current
economic downturn and capitalization rates rose. While the economy has improved, particularly the real estate
industry, the recovery has been slow and not equally experienced across the United States. As a result, the cost and
availability of credit during the downturn was, and if down markets return will continue to be, adversely affected by
illiquid credit markets and wider credit spreads. Economic weakness and uncertainty during the prior downturn has
led many lenders and institutional investors to reduce and, in some cases, cease to provide funding to borrowers. In
light of the weak recovery, the adverse impact on commercial lending may continue which could adversely affect the
net proceeds from the sale of any properties we currently manage.

The aforementioned economic and industry trends may adversely impact our financial condition and results of
operations because of the adverse impact they may have on the liquidity and financial condition of tenants and on the
perception of investment opportunity on the part of potential real estate property purchasers. Our business may also be
adversely affected by local economic conditions, as substantially all of our revenues are derived from GSD’s properties
located in Westchester and Suffolk Counties in New York and Fairfax County in Virginia. GSD's current portfolio
consists primarily of medical office and industrial buildings comprising approximately 260,000 rentable square feet,
and lacks the diversity of larger portfolios. If negative economic conditions persist or even deteriorate, GSD's results
of operations, financial condition and ability to attract debt, may be negatively impacted, and result in decreased
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management fees and mortgage payments to Gyrodyne, which could reduce our ability to repay the Dividend Notes or
pay dividends to Gyrodyne’s shareholders.

Health Care Industry

In March 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Healthcare and Education Reconciliation Act
of 2010 (together, the “Healthcare Legislation”) were signed into law. The complexities and ramifications of the
Healthcare Legislation are significant, and will be implemented in a phased approach beginning in 2010 and
concluding in 2018. 

The Healthcare Legislation has affected medical office real estate due to the direct impact on the tenant base. At this
time, the full effects of the Healthcare Legislation and its impact on our business, our revenues and financial condition
and those of GSD’s tenants are not yet known. We believe that the Healthcare Legislation is causing medical practices
to review their real estate options which include maintaining status quo, increasing space to accommodate a higher
volume of patients, combining practices with other professionals and being acquired by hospitals with the
professionals becoming hospital employees rather than continuing independent practices of medicine. Our business is
being impacted by factors including (1) difficulty transitioning doctors to longer term leases, (2) difficulty maintaining
or raising rental rates, (3) increased challenges in re-leasing space and (4) difficulty transitioning tenants into larger
spaces.
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As of December 31, 2014, the average effective rental revenue per square foot adjusted for tenant improvements was
$19.83 and is comprised of an average effective rental rate from the medical properties and industrial park of $24.15
and $14.35, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the average effective rental revenue per square foot adjusted for
tenant improvements was $18.71 and was comprised of an average effective rental rate from the medical properties
and industrial park of $23.56 and $13.87, respectively. The Company defines the average effective revenue per square
foot as the annual rate per square foot stated in the lease reduced by the average annual tenant improvement allowance
provided for in such leases.

The above discussed risks from the Healthcare Legislation and the slow recovery from the global credit and financial
crisis did not adversely impact the average rental rate in 2014 compared to the 12 months ended December 31, 2013,
but has adversely impacted occupancy rates. GSD has approximately 19% of its leases, based on rent, up for renewal
during the 12 months ending December 31, 2015 which is compared with 28% up for renewal for the 12 months
ending December 31, 2014. During the first three quarters of 2012, Gyrodyne incurred lease terminations and rental
rate degradation. Late in the third quarter of 2012, Gyrodyne developed and implemented a new and more aggressive
leasing strategy inclusive of rent abatements and incentives along with improvements to the common areas of its
properties. The leasing activity in the fourth quarter of 2012 through September 30, 2013 indicate that the new leasing
strategy improved building occupancy in Fairfax but Gyrodyne did not experience similar improvement from the
strategy at its remaining properties. Approximately 43% of our 2012 lease terminations were due to migration of
tenants from our Cortlandt Medical Center to the neighboring hospital following the completion of a major hospital
renovation and expansion. The hospital is now full and we believe the long term impact of the expanded and growing
hospital will be beneficial to the Cortlandt Medical Center which is the closest professional medical center in the
immediate vicinity of the hospital. Although Gyrodyne has managed to increase the occupancy rate at the Cortlandt
Medical Center, it has done so by lowering rent as a result of challenges in the local market. While the economy
improved between 2012 and 2014, it may not be an accurate predictor of conditions in 2015. General economic
conditions and a rising interest rate environment, coupled with rental markets in which we operate, will dictate how
rental rates on new leases and renewals will compare, favorably or unfavorably, to those leases that were signed in
2014 and 2013. During the year ended December 31, 2014, Gyrodyne incurred brokerage commissions and related
legal fees of approximately $76,000 on new leases and renewals and provided approximately $95,000 in related tenant
improvements. Additionally, Gyrodyne provided approximately $200,000 of tenant concessions in the form of rent
abatements. The commissions, tenant improvements and concessions resulted in $3.2 million of total lease
commitments over the term of the respective leases, with a total of $5.1million in additional commitments in all. The
Company believes any significant long-term leases signed in 2015 may be accompanied by tenant incentives and/or
rent concessions that will equal or exceed those made in 2014.

Business Strategy

On December 30, 2013, Gyrodyne distributed to its shareholders all of the equity interests of GSD, which owned
100% of the interests in our four real properties, subject to related mortgage debt in favor of Flowerfield Mortgage
Inc., also a subsidiary of Gyrodyne, with Gyrodyne having the contractual right to manage the business and properties
of GSD. The board has also approved the Plan of Merger, subject to the approval of shareholders of Gyrodyne holding
at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares, pursuant to which Gyrodyne and GSD will be merged with and into
Gyrodyne, LLC with Gyrodyne’s shareholders, holders of GSD equity interests and holders of interests in dividend and
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payment-in-kind note all exchanging their respective interests for Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. Under New York law, the
Plan of Merger requires the approval of shareholders of Gyrodyne holding at least two-thirds of the outstanding
shares.

On June 5, 2014, Gyrodyne announced that a special meeting of Gyrodyne shareholders would be held on August 14,
2014 to authorize the Merger. Gyrodyne postponed the special meeting, first to August 27,2014 and then to December
5, 2014, to allow additional time for shareholders to vote on the Merger. Although the shares that were voted in these
previous attempts to conduct the special meeting were overwhelmingly voted in favor of the Merger, not enough
shares were voted to achieve the two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote requirement. Accordingly, on November 4,
2014, Gyrodyne announced a further postponement of the special meeting until the first half of 2015. Given the small
size of holdings of many Gyrodyne shareholders and the nature of various holders, we believe many holders may not
have paid enough attention to the Merger to exercise their right to vote. The board believes, however, that
shareholders who would exercise their subscription rights in the rights offering may be more interested in the current
structure of Gyrodyne and thus more likely to desire completion of the Merger. If all rights in the rights offering are
exercised and all of the shares issuable upon exercise of the rights are sold in this offering, there will be 3,706,700
shares outstanding and holders of at least 2,471,134 shares will need to vote in favor of the Merger to satisfy the
requirement that holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares vote in favor of the Merger. Gyrodyne intends to
conduct the special meeting to authorize the Merger as soon as reasonably possible time after the consummation of the
rights offering.
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This prospectus is not to be considered material to solicit proxies or deemed an offer to sell the Gyrodyne, LLC
equity interests (“Gyrodyne, LLC Shares”), which solicitation and offer will only be made through a definitive
proxy statement/prospectus relating to the Merger and the issuance of the Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. Gyrodyne
filed definitive proxy materials with the SEC on July 1, 2014 with respect to the Plan of Merger. If our board
determines to try again to hold the special meeting to authorize the Plan of Merger, which is our current
intention, Gyrodyne will solicit proxies through such definitive proxy statement or, if necessary, a post-effective
amendment thereto.

Although the consummation of the Merger will complete the Tax Liquidation, the board currently intends that,
following the Merger, Gyrodyne, LLC will operate with a business plan to dispose of its current real property assets in
an orderly manner designed to obtain the best value reasonably available for such assets. Proceeds of such dispositions
will be used to settle any claims, pending or otherwise, against Gyrodyne, LLC and to make distributions to holders of
Gyrodyne, LLC Shares. When all properties of Gyrodyne, LLC are disposed of, it is intended that Gyrodyne, LLC
will dissolve and a final distribution will be made.

Sales of properties, either by GSD or by Gyrodyne, LLC if the Merger is consummated, could take the form of
individual sales of assets, sales of groups of assets organized by business, type of asset or otherwise, a single sale of
all or substantially all of the assets or some other form of sale (including the sale of GSD itself prior to the Merger).
The assets may be sold to one or more purchasers in one or more transactions over a period of time. It is not
anticipated that any shareholder votes will be solicited with respect to the approval of the specific terms of any
particular sale of assets approved by Gyrodyne’s board, or if after the Merger by Gyrodyne, LLC’s board. The prices at
which the various assets may be sold depend largely on factors beyond our control, including without limitation the
condition of financial markets, the availability of financing to prospective purchasers of the assets, regulatory
approvals, public market perceptions and limitations on transferability of certain assets.

We focus our business strategy on maximizing the intrinsic value per share through aligning our operating and
investment strategy with our goal of executing on a tax efficient liquidity event or series of tax efficient liquidity
events. This strategy involves a balance between preserving capital and improving the market value of the real estate
portfolio which we currently manage for GSD. Our objectives are as follows:

●managing the real estate portfolio currently held by GSD to improve operating cash flow while simultaneouslyincreasing the market values of the underlying operating properties;

●pursuing the re-zoning effort of the Flowerfield property on behalf of GSD to maximize its value;

●Manage the sale of properties

●
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focusing use of capital by Gyrodyne or GSD to that which preserves or improves the market value of GSD's real
estate portfolio;

●maximizing funds from operations (“FFO”) and company adjusted FFO (“AFFO”);

●managing the Merger and liquidation process.

We believe pursuing these objectives help us achieve our strategic goal in the long term, strengthen our business and
enhance the value of our underlying real estate portfolio in the short term.

Uncertainties as to the precise value of our non-cash assets and the ultimate amount of our liabilities make it
impractical to predict the aggregate net value ultimately distributable to shareholders in a liquidation. Claims,
liabilities and expenses from operations, including operating costs, salaries, income taxes, payroll and local taxes,
legal, accounting and consulting fees and miscellaneous office expenses will continue to be incurred following
shareholder approval of the Plan of Merger. However, certain professional fees, such as legal expenses and the fees of
outside financial advisors have recently increased, as a result of our strategic review, the 2013 PLR, the rights
offering, the liquidation process and the shareholder litigation. These expenses will reduce the amount of assets
available for ultimate distribution to shareholders, and, while a precise estimate of those expenses cannot currently be
made, management and our board believe that available cash and amounts received on the sale of assets will be
adequate to provide for our obligations, liabilities, expenses and claims (including contingent liabilities) and to make
cash distributions to shareholders. However, no assurances can be given that available cash and amounts received on
the sale of assets will be adequate to provide for our obligations, liabilities, expenses and claims and to make cash
distributions to shareholders. If such available cash and amounts received on the sale of assets are not adequate to
provide for our obligations, liabilities, expenses and claims, distributions of cash and other assets to our shareholders
will be reduced and could be eliminated.
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Tax Status 

Gyrodyne has qualified, and expects to continue to qualify in the current fiscal year, as a real estate investment trust
(REIT) for federal and state income tax purposes under section 856(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). As
long as Gyrodyne qualifies for taxation as a REIT, it generally will not be subject to federal and state income tax. If
Gyrodyne fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, it will be subject to federal and state income tax on its taxable
income at regular corporate rates. Unless entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, Gyrodyne will also be
disqualified for taxation as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year in which it loses its qualification.
Even if Gyrodyne qualifies as a REIT, it may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property and
to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed income.

On September 15, 2014, our board declared a special supplemental dividend in the amount of $682,033 or $0.46 per
share of Gyrodyne common stock. The dividend was paid in the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a
dividend note on December 31, 2014 to all shareholders of record on September 26, 2014 (the “2014 Dividend Note”).
The dividend is intended to distribute Gyrodyne’s undistributed 2013 REIT taxable income.

If the Merger is completed, Gyrodyne, LLC, the surviving company in the Merger, will not qualify as a REIT but will
be structured as a limited liability company which will be treated as a partnership, which is a pass-through entity for
Federal income tax purposes. Gyrodyne, LLC will generally be treated as a partnership for federal income tax
purposes so long as 90 percent of its gross income is “qualifying income” under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue
Code. “Qualifying income” includes real property rents and gain from the sale or other disposition of real property
(including property held for sale to customers as described in section 1221 (a)(1)). If Gyrodyne, LLC fails to meet this
requirement it may be taxable as a corporation.

Competition

The rental properties managed by Gyrodyne (owned by subsidiaries of GSD, a consolidated variable interest entity)
are located in St. James, Port Jefferson Station, and Cortlandt Manor, New York and Fairfax, Virginia. Gyrodyne
competes in the leasing of medical, professional and general office space and engineering, manufacturing and
warehouse space with a considerable number of other real estate companies, some of which may have greater
marketing and financial resources than Gyrodyne and may generally be able to accept more risk than we can prudently
manage, including risk with respect to creditworthiness of tenants. Principal factors of competition in our rental
property business are: the quality of properties, leasing terms (including rent and other charges and allowances for
tenant improvements), attractiveness and convenience of location, financial strength of its competitors, the quality and
breadth of tenant services provided and reputation as an owner and operator of quality office properties in its relevant
market. Additionally, our ability to compete depends upon, among other factors, trends in the national and local
economies, investment alternatives, financial condition and operating results of current and prospective tenants,
availability and cost of capital, construction and renovation costs, taxes, governmental regulations, legislation and
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population trends.

In seeking new opportunities and the sale of properties, Gyrodyne competes with other real estate investors, including
pension funds, insurance companies, foreign investors, real estate partnerships, other public and private real estate
investment trusts, private individuals and other domestic real estate companies, many of which have greater financial
and other resources than Gyrodyne. Competition among industrial and medical office rental properties on Long Island,
Cortlandt Manor, New York and Fairfax, Virginia is intense. Furthermore, Gyrodyne also competes in the
development of industrial, medical office and residential property where the competition is equally intense, and where
our competitors often are substantially larger and have significantly greater resources than Gyrodyne.

Bankruptcy

Neither Gyrodyne nor any of its subsidiaries have ever been in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceeding.
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Internal Growth and Effective Asset Management

Tenant Relations and Lease Compliance. We strive to maintain strong contacts with our tenants in order to
understand their current and future real estate rental and development needs. We directly monitor each of our rental
properties to ensure they are properly maintained and meet the needs of our tenants.

Extending Lease Maturities. We seek to extend leases in advance of expirations to achieve high occupancy levels.
Additionally, our renewal efforts focus on converting our leases to longer terms at each of our properties, to achieve a
multitenant portfolio with a balanced rollover risk.

Financing Strategy

Debt Financing. Historically, our principal source of financing had been cash on hand, cash flow from operations and
property specific debt in order to leverage specific acquisitions. In 2010, we used a revolving line of credit to finance
the acquisition of property in Cortlandt Manor, New York, support capital improvements and general working capital.
The economic uncertainty made it challenging to negotiate debt at acceptable terms during 2011. As a result, during
2011, Gyrodyne raised capital through a sale of additional common stock – see Equity Financing. Following our receipt
of condemnation proceeds in July 2012, our principal source of financing became cash on hand and cash flow from
operations. Gyrodyne believes it is currently well capitalized with adequate cash levels to operate the business.

In accordance with REIT distribution requirements, on December 20, 2013, Gyrodyne announced a dividend of
$10.89 per share which was paid on January 31, 2014 to shareholders of record on December 31, 2013. The dividend
was paid in the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global dividend note payable in kind or cash that
matures on June 30, 2017. The annual interest rate is 5% payable semi-annually in kind or cash on June 15th and
December 15th.

Dividend note. The transfer of the properties by Gyrodyne to GSD resulted in the recognition of approximately $28.4
million of capital gain income by Gyrodyne in 2013. Giving effect to offsetting deductions, we determined that
Gyrodyne would have approximately $18 million in REIT income for 2013. In order to satisfy applicable REIT
distribution requirements, on December 20, 2013 we declared an additional dividend, payable on January 31, 2014 to
the Company’s shareholders of record as of December 31, 2013. This dividend was paid in the form of
non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global subordinated dividend note due June 30, 2017 (the “Dividend
Note”) aggregating $16,150,000 ($10.89 per share) in principal amount. The Dividend Note bears interest at 5.0% per
annum, payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year, commencing June 15, 2014, and may be
payable in cash or in the form of additional notes.

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

128



On June 16, 2014, the initial semi-annual interest payment on the Dividend Note was paid in kind in the form of
non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note due June 30, 2017 in the principal amount
of $302,813 that otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to the initial semi-annual interest payment
date thereunder.

On December 15, 2014, the second semi-annual interest payment on the original Dividend Note was paid in kind in
the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note due June 30, 2017 in the
principal amount of $403,750 that otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to the initial semi-annual
interest payment date thereunder. The initial interest due of $7,570 on the note issued on June 16, 2014 was paid in
cash on December 15, 2014.

On September 15, 2014, our board declared a special supplemental dividend in the amount of $682,033 or $0.46 per
share of Gyrodyne common stock. The dividend was paid in the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a
dividend note on December 31, 2014 to all shareholders of record as of September 26, 2014. The dividend is intended
to prevent the imposition of federal corporate income tax on Gyrodyne’s undistributed 2013 REIT taxable income.

Equity Financing. During 2011, Gyrodyne filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission to register a number of shares of Gyrodyne’s common stock to be offered in a rights offering by
Gyrodyne to its shareholders with maximum gross proceeds of $9,210,000, or $10,210,000 if an over-allotment option
was exercised. Gyrodyne received subscriptions for approximately 294,685 shares, greatly exceeding the maximum
shares offered of 173,305. Gyrodyne elected to exercise its overallotment option to issue an additional 19,336 shares,
the maximum to be issued in the over-allotment option as disclosed in the registration statement, and thus covered
approximately 16% of the shares subscribed for pursuant to over-subscription exercises. Shareholders were allocated
100% of their basic subscriptions. The rights offering resulted in 192,641 common shares issued, and net proceeds
(after expenses) raised of $9,961,476. The proceeds were used for potential additional expenses in the condemnation
litigation, pursuing development rights for the Flowerfield property, necessary capital improvements in our real estate
portfolio and general working capital.
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Environmental Matters

In connection with the conduct of our business, we may order a Phase 1 environmental report and, when necessary, a
Phase 2 environmental report. Based on a review of such reports, and our ongoing review of each of our properties, as
of the date of this prospectus, we are not aware of any environmental condition with respect to any of the properties
which we believe would be reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and/or results
of operations. There can be no assurance that (i) changes in law, (ii) the conduct of tenants, (iii) activities related to
properties in the surrounding area, (iv) contamination through the water table due to the low elevation and immediate
proximity of the industrial park to the Long Island Sound or (v) the discovery of environmental conditions the extent
or severity of which were unknown, will not expose us to material liability in the future. We have not conducted a
comprehensive environmental review of all of the Contributed Properties or of our operations. No assurance can be
given that we have identified all of the potential environmental liabilities at the Contributed Properties or that such
liabilities will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Gyrodyne believes that each of the Contributed Properties is in compliance, in all material respects, with federal, state
and local regulations regarding hazardous waste and other environmental matters and is not aware of any
environmental contamination at any of the Contributed Properties that would require any material capital expenditure
by GSD for the remediation thereof. No assurance can be given, however, that environmental regulations will not in
the future have a materially adverse effect on the Contributed Properties.

Insurance

Gyrodyne and GSD carry comprehensive liability, property, terrorism and umbrella insurance coverage which
includes fire, flood, earthquakes and business interruption insurance and covers all of the Contributed Properties. We
also maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance. Gyrodyne annually reviews its policies with regard to both risk
management and the underlying premiums and believes the policy specifications, insurance limits and deductibles are
appropriate given the relative risk of loss, the cost of the coverage and industry practice, and, in the opinion of our
management, all of the Contributed Properties are adequately insured.

Major Tenants

The three largest tenants by revenue as of December 31, 2014 consist of a state agency located in the industrial park,
another tenant in the industrial park and a tenant in one of our medical parks.
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For the year ended December 31, 2014, rental income from the three largest tenants represented approximately 8%,
5% and 5% of total rental income. The reduction in rental income from our largest tenant from 11% in 2013 to 8% in
2014 was the result of two lease terminations by a state agency comprising approximately 8,700 square feet.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, rental income from the three largest tenants represented approximately 11%,
5% and 5% of total rental income. For the year ended December 31, 2012, rental income from the three largest tenants
represented approximately 11%, 5% and 5% of total rental income.

The current economic challenges facing state and local budgets has impacted 2 of the 3 largest tenants. One of these
tenants had multiple leases, two of which did not renew during 2014. However, there can be no assurance that the
remaining leases will renew for the same square footage, at favorable rates, if at all.

Transaction summary for the year ended December 31, 2014

The following summarizes our significant transactions and other activity during the year ended December 31, 2014.

For a discussion of the Management Services Arrangement see 2014 financial statements - Footnote #4, Principles of
Consolidation, of the third quarter 2014 10-Q.

Under the aforementioned agreement, the Company received reimbursement of costs and management fees of
$6,131,690 and $386,660, respectively, and earned interest income on its debt facilities to GSD of $766,175.
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Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2014, Gyrodyne invested approximately $3.1 million in additional hybrid
mortgage backed securities with AA and AAA rating fully guaranteed by US government agencies (the Federal
National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation). Gyrodyne received principal
payments during the year ended December 31, 2014 of approximately $654,000 from its investments in conforming
agency fixed rate mortgage pass through securities with either AA or AAA ratings fully guaranteed by US
government agencies (the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation). The portfolio is currently generating a yield of approximately 2%.

Debt Financing

On December 30, 2013, the Company distributed 100% of the interests in GSD to its shareholders to satisfy the
non-cash portion of the dividend declared on September 13, 2013 and paid on December 30, 2013. Gyrodyne
contributed 100% of its real estate to GSD prior to the distribution, with the medical properties subject to mortgage
obligations payable to FMI of $13,840,889. The Company retained management control that gave it unilateral control
over GSD, including enjoying some of the financial rewards as well as some of the exposure to future losses of GSD.
The Company has determined that GSD is a variable interest entity, of which Gyrodyne is the primary beneficiary,
and therefore GSD has been consolidated in our financial statements. The terms of the mortgage debt match the terms
of the mortgage debt acquired in December 2012 and January 2013 from the original lenders as these mortgages were
assumed internally for legal purposes and continued to be registered and valid for all of 2014 with the intercompany
balances eliminated. GSD’s net assets are excluded from stockholders equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, GSD’s net losses are excluded from the net losses attributable to the Company. GSD will
generally be treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes so long as 90 percent of its gross income is
“qualifying income” under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code. “Qualifying income” includes real property
rents and gain from the sale or other disposition of real property (including property held for sale to customers as
described in section 1221 (a)(1)). If GSD fails to meet this requirement it may be taxable as a corporation.

PROPERTY RELATED MORTGAGE AND REVOLVING DEBT
OUTSTANDING

MORTGAGE
BALANCE
PAYABLE TO
FMI*@12/31/13

MORTGAGE
BALANCE
PAYABLE
TO FMI*
@12/31/14

Cortlandt Medical Center $ 3,512,079 $3,302,079
Fairfax Medical Center 6,181,431 5,867,118
Port Jefferson Professional Park 4,147,379 3,720,266
Total $ 13,840,889 $12,889,463
Revolving debt 262,741 4,280,943
Total $ 14,103,630 $17,170,406
*On consolidated financial statements, GSD’s obligation to FMI is eliminated.
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Dividend Note

The transfer of the properties by Gyrodyne to GSD resulted in the recognition of approximately $28.4 million of
capital gain income by Gyrodyne in 2013. Giving effect to offsetting deductions, we determined that Gyrodyne would
have approximately $18 million in REIT income for 2013. In order to satisfy applicable REIT distribution
requirements, on December 20, 2013 we declared an additional dividend, payable on January 31, 2014 to the
Company’s shareholders of record as of December 31, 2013. This dividend was paid in the form of non-transferrable
uncertificated interests in a global subordinated dividend note due June 30, 2017 aggregating $16,150,000 ($10.89 per
share) in principal amount. The Dividend Note bears interest at 5.0% per annum, payable semi-annually on June 15
and December 15 of each year, commencing June 15, 2014, and may be payable in cash or in the form of additional
notes.

On June 16, 2014, the initial semi-annual interest payment on the Dividend Note was paid in kind in the form of
non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note due June 30, 2017 in the principal amount
of $302,813 that otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to the initial semi-annual interest payment
date thereunder.

On December 15, 2014, the second semi-annual interest payment on the original Dividend Note was paid in kind in
the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a global 5% subordinated note due June 30, 2017 in the
principal amount of $403,750 that otherwise is identical to the Dividend Note other than as to the initial semi-annual
interest payment date thereunder. The initial interest due of $7,570 on the note issued on June 16, 2014 was paid in
cash on December 15, 2014.
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On September 15, 2014, our board declared a special supplemental dividend in the amount of $682,033 or $0.46 per
share. The dividend was paid in the form of non-transferrable uncertificated interests in a subordinated global
dividend note on December 31, 2014 to all shareholders of record as of September 26, 2014. The terms of the note are
identical to the original Dividend Note other than the face value of the note and the initial semi-annual interest
payment date thereunder. The dividend was intended to prevent the imposition of federal corporate income tax on
Gyrodyne’s undistributed 2013 REIT taxable income.

Leasing Activity

New Leases and Renewals:

During 2014, the Company signed eight new leases comprising annual base rent of $254,901, excluding tenant
reimbursements, at an average rate per square foot of $22.74, which were offset by fifteen terminations comprising
$497,884 in annual revenue, excluding tenant reimbursements at an average rate per square foot of $16.80. The net
impact was a decrease in annual lease commitments and rented square footage of approximately $243,000 and 18,000
square feet, respectively. A total of thirty-four lease renewals were signed during 2014 comprising approximately
51,000 square feet, $981,000 in annual revenue and $3,202,000 in total commitments. Additionally, we entered into
two expansions and one reduction with existing tenants resulting in a net increase of approximately 1,200 square feet,
annual revenue of $7,000 and total lease commitments of $63,000.

Medical Parks – During 2014, we entered into five new leases in our medical parks encompassing approximately 9,000
square feet, $231,000 in annual rent and total lease commitments over the term of such leases of approximately
$1,796,000. We also renewed fourteen leases comprising approximately 22,000 square feet, $559,000 in annual
revenues and total lease commitments of approximately $2,515,000. There were no lease expansions in the medical
parks during 2014.

Industrial Park – During 2014, we entered into three new leases in the Flowerfield industrial park encompassing
approximately 2,000 square feet and $24,000 in annual revenue and total lease commitments of approximately
$36,000. We also renewed twenty leases comprising approximately 29,000 square feet, $422,000 in annual revenue
and total lease commitments of approximately $687,000. There were two expansions signed comprising
approximately 3,400 square feet, $34,000 in annual revenue and $63,000 in total lease commitments. Offsetting the
expansions was one reduction comprising approximately 2,200 square feet and $27,000 in annual revenue.

Lease Terminations/Defaults - We aggressively negotiate renewals to ensure we maximize the revenue stream and
market value of our properties. There were five lease terminations in our medical parks comprising approximately
6,000 square feet and $167,000 in annual revenues. Additionally, our industrial park experienced ten lease

Edgar Filing: GYRODYNE CO OF AMERICA INC - Form S-1/A

134



terminations comprising approximately 23,700 square feet and $331,000 of annual revenue.

The medical parks do not have any tenants in default. There were three defaults in the industrial park which resulted in
evictions comprising approximately 7,000 square feet and a reduction of $88,000 in annual revenue. As a result of the
defaults, the Company incurred bad debt expense of approximately $27,000. The Company received judgments in the
defaults totaling approximately $60,000 for past rent and legal fees which the Company will not recognize until paid.

Retention Bonus Plan

Pursuant to the terms of the Management Services Arrangement, the bonus payments made by the Company will be
reimbursed by GSD (See “Management Services Arrangements”). There were no bonus payments made under this plan
during the year ended December 31, 2014.

In September 2013, our board of directors determined that it is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders to pursue the actual disposition of the Company’s remaining assets and to complete the Company’s tax
liquidation by means of the proposed merger of the Company and GSD with and into Gyrodyne, LLC, if approved and
consummated. Following the proposed merger, Gyrodyne, LLC would operate with a business plan to dispose of the
properties previously transferred from the Company to GSD (the “Contributed Properties”), and any other assets, in each
case in an orderly manner designed to obtain the best value reasonably available for such assets. Accordingly, in May
2014, our board of directors authorized a Retention Bonus Plan designed to recognize the nature and scope of the
responsibilities related to such business plan, to reward and incent performance in connection therewith, to align the
interests of directors, executives and employees with our shareholders and to retain such persons during the term of
such plan. The Retention Bonus Plan provides for bonuses to directors and discretionary bonuses to officers and
employees determined by the gross sales proceeds from the sale of each property and the date of sale.
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The Retention Bonus Plan consists of a bonus pool funded with an amount equal to 5% of the specified appraised
value of each of the Contributed Properties (set forth in the Plan), so long as the gross selling price of a property is
equal to or greater than 100% of its appraised value (based on appraisals utilized to support the value of the real estate
included in the non-cash dividend distributed on December 30, 2013). Additional funding of the bonus pool will occur
on a property-by-property basis when the gross sales price of a property is in excess of its appraised value as follows:
10% on the first 10% of appreciation, 15% on the next 10% of appreciation and 20% on appreciation greater than
20%. Furthermore, if a specified property is sold on or before a designated date specified in the Retention Bonus Plan,
an additional amount equal to 2% of the gross selling price of such property also is funded into the bonus pool.

The bonus pool is distributable in the following proportions to the named participants in the bonus plan for so long as
they are directors or employees of the Company, GSD or Gyrodyne, LLC: 15% for the Chairman, 50% for the
directors other than the Chairman (10% for each of the other five directors) and 35% (the “Employee Pool”) for the
Company’s executives and employees. Such share of the bonus pool is earned only upon the completion of the sale of a
property at a gross selling price equal to or greater than its appraised value and is paid to the named beneficiaries of
the Retention Bonus Plan or their designees within 60 days of the completion of such sale or, if later, within 60 days
of receipt of any subsequent post-completion installment payment related to such sale. All allocations to individual
beneficiaries of the Employee Pool shall be determined by the board of directors of the Company or its successor in
consultation with its President.

Proxy/Prospectus – Merger with GSD

The Company received comments from the SEC on November 18, 2013. Consequently, the Company proceeded with
holding its 2012 annual meeting on December 27, 2013, without seeking authorization for the merger transaction at
that time because of NASDAQ rules requiring listed companies to hold an annual meeting not later than twelve
months following the fiscal year end. On May 8, 2014, the Company responded to such comments and filed a revised
preliminary proxy statement (amendment No. 1) with the SEC. The Company received comments from the SEC on
May 29, 2014 and responded to such comments and filed a revised proxy statement (Amendment No. 2) with the SEC
on June 17, 2014. The Company received comments from the SEC on June 24, 2014 and responded to such comments
and filed a revised proxy statement (Amendment No. 3) with the SEC on June 26, 2014. The Company received
comments from the SEC on June 26, 2014 and responded to such comments and filed a definitive proxy statement
(Amendment No. 4) with the SEC on July 1, 2014. On September 25, 2014, the Company announced the Annual and
special meetings would be held coextensively on December 5, 2014 at Flowerfield Celebrations, Mills Pond Road,
Saint James, New York 11780, at 11:00 a.m., Eastern Time. The Company was advised by its proxy solicitor,
MacKenzie Partners, that with approximately 45% of the outstanding shares voted by delivery of proxy cards,
approximately 97% of such shares were voted in favor of the merger.  Despite the overwhelming percentage of
received votes in favor of the merger, not enough shares have been voted to reach the two-thirds majority needed
under New York law.  Accordingly, on November 4, 2014, the Company announced that the Company’s special
meeting originally scheduled for August 14, 2014 and previously postponed to August 27, 2014 and then again to
December 5, 2014, had been further postponed until the third quarter of 2015. At the special meeting, the Company
will ask the shareholders of the record date to authorize the plan of merger. The Company and its advisors continue to
analyze potential options in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders, which may include enhancements
designed to facilitate the ability to complete the merger transaction. See “The Rights Offering – Reasons for the Rights
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Offering” .

Condemnation Lawsuit

In early July 2012, the Company received $167,530,657 from the State of New York (the “State”) in payment of the
Judgments in the Company’s favor in the condemnation litigation with the State. The amount received consisted of
$98,685,000 in additional damages, $1,474,941 in reimbursement of costs, disbursements and expenses, and
$67,370,716 in interest. Following notification from the State, the Company returned $29,000 due to an error in the
original interest calculation and remittance prepared and paid by New York State.
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The $167.5 million payment brought to a successful resolution the Company’s case for just compensation, commenced
in 2006 for the 245.5 acres of its Flowerfield property in St. James and Stony Brook, New York (the “Property”) taken
by the State. The State had paid the Company $26,315,000 for the Property at the time of the taking, which the
Company elected, under New York’s eminent domain law, to treat as an advance payment while it pursued its claim
for just compensation. The Court of Claims ruled in the Company’s favor in June 2010 when it awarded the Company
$125,000,000, thereby requiring the State to pay an additional $98,685,000 plus statutory interest of nine percent from
the date of taking on November 2, 2005 to the date of payment. That judgment, as well as a related judgment for costs,
disbursements and expenses, was affirmed by the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of the State of New York
for the Second Judicial Department and the New York State Court of Appeals.

The Company recorded the income of $167,501,657 and the condemnation costs incurred in its 2012 financial
statements, including the interest through date of payment.

Taxes

The Company received PLR-135927-10 (“PLR”), a Private Letter Ruling dated March 1, 2011 addressing the tax impact
to REIT status of the condemnation proceeds. The PLR ruling states the condemnation claim will not be considered in
determining whether the Company satisfies the REIT asset test under Internal Revenue Code Section 856(c)(4) and (i)
under Section 856(c)(5)(J) the interest on the award and the reimbursement of costs derived from the claim will not be
considered in determining whether the Company satisfies the REIT gross income test under sections 856(c)(2) and
856(c)(3). The Company believes the ruling supports its long term ability to maintain its REIT status including the
impact from the resolution of the condemnation case.

In accordance with Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue Code, the Company deferred recognition of the gain on the
condemnation of its real property for income tax purposes. During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, the
Company applied for and received an additional approved IRS extension of time to replace the condemned property
with like-kind property by April 30, 2014. The previous deadline was April 30, 2013. If the Company replaced the
condemned property with like-kind property by April 30, 2014 (or such extended period approved by the Internal
Revenue Service at its discretion), recognition of the gain would have been deferred until the newly acquired property
was disposed of.

At December 31, 2012, the Company recorded deferred income tax expense of $61,649,000, which included a federal
net built-in-gains tax of $34,057,000 assessed on the real estate portion of the condemnation proceeds received in July
2012, related to the converted Flowerfield property pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 1374. This Section
assesses a corporate level tax, measured at the time the Company converted to a REIT, on the built-in-gain on the
Flowerfield property at the time of conversion. The remaining expense relates to a corporate level tax on the
undistributed profits of the Company.
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Following a change in tax law in January 2013, retroactive to January 2012, reducing the recognition period for REIT
owned property applicable for the 2012 taxable year to five years, the Company applied for a private letter ruling
(“PLR”) from the IRS in March 2013 and ultimately received a favorable ruling on September 12, 2013. The PLR
concludes that the Company’s receipt of the additional damages in July 2012 in connection with the judgment in the
Company’s favor in its condemnation litigation with the State of New York occurred outside of the applicable
recognition period for 2012, and therefore permits the Company to distribute, by means of a dividend such as the
Special Dividend described below, the gains realized from its receipt of the 2012 Proceeds, subject to a 4% excise tax,
in order to avoid incurring the corporate level tax.

On September 13, 2013, the Board declared the First Special Dividend, in the amount of $98,685,000, or $66.56 per
share, of which approximately $68,000,000, or $45.86 per share, was paid in cash. The balance of the Special
Dividend was payable in the form of interests in a limited liability company, GSD, to which Gyrodyne transferred its
real estate assets.

In conjunction with the Special Dividend, the company reversed the deferred taxes of $61,649,000 less alternative
minimum taxes paid or accrued of $95,558.

Taxes attributable to the taxable REIT subsidiary:

Taxes attributable to the limited partnership investment in The Grove:

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had a deferred tax liability related to The Grove of $1,315,000. During 2014,
approximately $618,000 of the deferred taxes were recognized as currently payable with the balance of $697,000
recognized as a tax benefit in 2014. 
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Taxes attributable to the operating results of managing GSD:

The Company incurred a tax expense of approximately $132,000 resulting from approximately $327,000 of taxable
income from the management of GSD.

Strategic Alternatives

On March 12, 2014, the Company and Rothschild Inc. (“Rothschild”) entered into an amendment to the engagement
letter dated as of August 8, 2012 (the “Engagement Letter”) between Rothschild and the Company, pursuant to which
the engagement of Rothschild was terminated and the Company agreed to pay Rothschild $970,967 in full satisfaction
of any and all amounts due or alleged to be due under the Engagement Letter by reason of the Special Dividend, the
Second Special Dividend, any other corporate transaction publicly announced prior to March 12, 2014 or any amount
that might have otherwise become due by reason of the Company’s obligation to pay Rothschild a success fee in
connection with certain transactions that may be consummated during a specified period following a termination.
Under the Engagement Letter, approximately $850,000 of the fee was recognized in 2013 as a result of the special
cash dividend and the balance of approximately $120,000 was an expense incurred in the first quarter of 2014. The
Company had previously paid Rothschild a total of $629,032, exclusive of reimbursed expenses, pursuant to the
Engagement Letter. Rothschild had been serving as the Company’s financial advisor in connection with the strategic
process. Strategic alternative expenses incurred for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $1,836,476 and
$3,637,123, respectively.

Subsequent Events

Leasing Activity

Subsequent to December 31, 2014 the Company signed 12 new leases and lease extensions comprising approximately
11,000 square feet, $193,000 in annual revenue and $384,000 in total lease commitments. Additionally, 2 existing
tenants expanded their existing space by approximately 1,400 square feet which will increase annual revenue by
approximately $14,000 and lease commitments by approximately $63,000.

As of March 31, 2014, the Company has experienced 5 lease terminations comprising approximately 7,500 square feet
with approximately $186,000 in annual revenue.
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The continued economic volatility for small businesses and medical practices has impacted property management
firms, including Gyrodyne’s ability to renew leases at comparable rates if at all, without providing either rent
abatements or comparable other lease incentives. During 2012 through December 2014, medical office parks and
industrial parks continued to face challenges to maintain both rental rates and occupancy. Gyrodyne sees continuing
challenges to maintain both rental rates and occupancy during the slow and volatile economic recovery. The below
table reflects Gyrodyne’s rental revenue, at its industrial park vs. the combined rental revenue of its medical parks and
the related occupancy rate and effective rental rate of each.

Three Months
Ended

March 31,
2014

Three Months
Ended

June 30, 2014

Three Months
Ended

September 30,
2014

Three Months
Ended

December 31,
2014

Year Ended

December 31,
2014

Industrial Park Rental Revenue $428,281 $380,695 $383,230 $381,719 $1,573,925
Combined Medical Park Rental
Revenue $692,364 $725,493 $728,702 $718,983 $2,865,542

Occupancy Rate Industrial Park 81% 74% 72% 70% 70%
Occupancy Rate Combined Medical
Parks 85% 85% 85% 88% 88%

Total Occupancy Rate 83% 79% 78% 79% 79%
Average Effective Rental Rate Per
Square Foot – Industrial Park $14.00 $13.97 $14.57 $14.35 $14.35

Effective Rental Rate Per Square
Foot- Medical Parks $23.63 $24.03 $24.20 $24.15 $24.15

Average Total Effective Rental rate
per square foot $19.04 $19.38 $19.79 $19.83 $19.83
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Our leasing activity has resulted in total lease commitments as of December 31, 2014 and December31, 2013 of
$16,560,000 and $15,528,000, respectively. There were eight new leases and thirty-four renewals during the year
ended December 31, 2014, with the resulting annual revenue commitment partially offset by fifteen terminations.
Gyrodyne has launched aggressive leasing strategies at each of its medical parks. During the year ended December 31,
2014, Gyrodyne estimates approximately $296,000 of tenant incentives, inclusive of rent abatements of approximately
$201,000, were provided to attract new tenants. However, the economy continues to be challenging and, to compete
effectively with other local landlords, Gyrodyne may offer aggressive tenant improvements in exchange for signing
medium and long term lease commitments.

Discontinued operations

During the second quarter of 2014, we engaged real estate brokers to sell the Cortlandt Manor Medical Center and the
Fairfax Medical Center. The Cortlandt Manor Medical Center was acquired by Gyrodyne in 2008 and the neighboring
lots were acquired by Gyrodyne in 2009 and 2010. The Fairfax Medical Center was acquired by Gyrodyne in 2009.
These acquisitions were part of an overall strategy of reinvesting tax free under Section 1033 of the Code the
$26,315,000 payment received from New York State in 2006 which the Company elected under New York State’s
eminent domain law to treat as an advance payment while it pursued its claim for just compensation. In late 2013,
these properties were contributed to a wholly owned subsidiary of Gyrodyne, GSD, subject to mortgage obligations
payable to Gyrodyne, and distributed to our shareholders as the non-cash portion of a dividend, with Gyrodyne
retaining only a managing member interest (no ownership interest). As of April 1, 2014, all of the assets and liabilities
that relate to the Cortlandt Manor Medical Center and the Fairfax Medical Center were reported as assets held for sale,
and liabilities held for sale, respectively. Additionally, all of the operations related to the Cortlandt Manor Medical
Center and the Fairfax Medical Center were reported as discontinued operations, and were reported as such in the
unaudited consolidated financial statements. The prior period assets and liabilities and operations related to these
entities were recast as assets and liabilities held for sale, and discontinued operations retroactively for all periods
presented on the Company’s quarterly reports for the second and third quarters of 2014. 

The Company has not sold the Cortlandt Manor and Fairfax properties. In addition, in early 2015, the Company
became aware that various aspects of the plaintiff’s claims in a putative class action lawsuit against the Company,
members of the Company’s board of directors, GSD and Gyrodyne, LLC were interfering with the aforementioned
proposed sale of such properties. As stated in the 2014 Form 10-K - under “Item 3. Legal Proceedings--Putative Class
Action Lawsuit”, the defendants believe the lawsuit is without merit. The Company will vigorously defend such action
and take steps to seek to eliminate the issues created by the pending action that are impeding the sale. The Company
believes that the issues will be resolved in the Company’s favor and that it will be able to liquidate the properties
proposed to be sold with no impact to fair value, assuming the market itself does not materially change during the
period the Company needs to resolve such issues. As a result of this interference in the sale process, however, the
Company believes that as of December 31, 2014, it no longer met the requirements for such assets and liabilities to
qualify as assets and liabilities as held for sale and discontinued operations and therefore has reclassified them to
operating assets and liabilities and continuing operations and is not reporting discontinued operations for the year
ended December 31, 2014.
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Legal Proceedings

Putative Class Action
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